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Revenues EPS? EBITDA Margins °

(in millions)
$3.04 24.2%
$1,255 22.7%
$2.58
$991
18%
10% Growth
Growth!
2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006

The strategic initiatives Millipore put in place at the beginning of 2005
are accelerating revenue growth and increasing profitability. In 2006,
the company generated its second straight year of attractive revenue
and earnings growth. The company is moving faster, entering new markets,
implementing new projects, and improving its execution. As a result,
Millipore is shortening the distance between strategy and execution.

1.Revenue growth excludes acquisitions and is adjusted for changes in foreign currency rates

2.Non-GAAP financial measure; please refer to page S-2 for GAAP to non-GAAP reconciliation of this and
other financial measures referenced in this Annual Report

3.Non-GAAP operating income plus depreciation & amortization, less amortization expense included in
non-GAAP reconciliation
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BIOSCIENCE BIOPROCESS

SHORTENING THE DISTANCE
FROM LAB TO MARKET

Millipore is a leading life science company with products, services, and knowledge
that drive increased productivity for life science researchers and biopharmaceutical

manufacturers. In the laboratory, our products increase the speed of scientific discovery,
while our products used in biopharmaceutical manufacturing ensure the purity of
drugs and reduce the time it takes to bring new drugs to market. Millipore is a trusted
partner in advancing the needs of our customers.
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SHAREHOLDER LETTER

shortening the distance between

TODAY & TOMORROW

2006 was a year of transformational
change for Millipore.

We generated industry-leading financial performance while
completing two acquisitions, driving a large number of
improvement initiatives, and making important investments
for the future. We reported organic revenue growth of nine
percent in 2006 which resulted in an eighteen percent
increase in non-GAAP earnings per share. We are sustaining
the high level of performance we established in 2005 and
we are capitalizing on new opportunities to further increase
our growth and profitability.

Two years ago | laid out a new direction for the company and
articulated five strategic goals:

e To become a strategic supplier to our bioscience
research customers

e To strengthen our leadership position with our
biopharmaceutical customers

* To lead the industry in product quality and manufacturing
effectiveness

* To become a magnet for talent
e To double the value of the company by 2009

Our progress toward achieving these goals has been
excellent. We are effectively executing our strategy as
we transform Millipore from a good company known for
filtration products to a leading life science company.
During 2006, our acquisition of Serologicals helped to



accelerate Millipore’s transformation by enabling both of
our divisions to significantly expand their product portfolios
and addressable markets.

Bioscience Division

The Serologicals transaction added important new capabil-
ities and products to the company, which is making our
Bioscience Division more competitive in attractive life
science research markets. Today, we are able to offer our
customers more differentiated product offerings in fast
growing markets such as stem cell research, drug discovery
products and services, and cell biology reagents. New
product combinations are being created between “classic”
Millipore products and the products we acquired. Our
combined global sales organization has grown significantly,
which will enable us to leverage a broader product portfolio,
particularly in emerging international markets.

The addition of Serologicals comes at a time when the
Bioscience Division is already generating strong results.
Over the past two years, Bioscience has significantly
accelerated its performance. In 2006, the division generated
ten percent organic revenue growth, its highest growth in
the past five years. The main drivers for this improvement
were better execution of sales and marketing strategies,
new product introductions, and investments in international
markets such as China and India. With the addition of the
products we acquired from Serologicals, we have expanded
our growth opportunities and we can leverage Millipore’s
brand in new markets.

Martin D. Madaus
Chairman, President and CEO

As aresult of our larger business portfolio in Bioscience, we
have structured the division around four key business units.

e [aboratory Water — We provide the most complete range of
point-of-use laboratory water purification systems that
remove contaminants and ensure water purity for

laboratory researchers.

® Biotools — We sell a broad range of high-quality products
that separate, isolate, and purify biological samples in order
to ensure the integrity of scientific experiments.

e Research Reagents — We help life science researchers
study the structure and function of cells and proteins by
providing antibodies and reagents that help identify and
measure cellular interactions and functions.

e Drug Discovery - We offer products and services that
enable biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies to
evaluate which drug candidates are most likely to function
effectively and safely in the human body.

The future prospects of the Bioscience business continue
to be attractive. We have revamped our approach to the
market, built scale and capabilities, and added key new
product lines through acquisitions and internal R&D.

Our Bioscience management team will implement the same
sales and marketing strategies in our research reagents
and drug discovery businesses that have worked exceptionally
well for our laboratory water and biotools businesses in
2006. We have high expectations and we are confident that
the Bioscience Division will continue to deliver strong
results in the future.



SHAREHOLDER LETTER

Bioprocess Division

In our Bioprocess Division, we have added four businesses
through acquisition over the past two years to expand our
product offering beyond our core technologies. Millipore is
the premier brand in our industry. We have the opportunity
to leverage it in new markets, while strengthening our
competitive position. Our largest acquisition, Serologicals,
provides us with a strategic offering in the upstream
biopharmaceutical market where we did not compete
before. As customers seek to enhance manufacturing
efficiency in the biopharmaceutical production process,
Millipore has the know-how, credibility, and broad

product portfolio to address this complex challenge in a
comprehensive and innovative way.

While integrating our acquired businesses, we continued to
advance several important initiatives in 2006. We restructured
our R&D organization and moved into a new R&D Center in
Bedford, Massachusetts. This state-of-the-art building will
enable us to upgrade our capabilities and increase the
productivity of our R&D organization. We also expanded the
use of our products in important classes of biologic drugs,
such as monoclonal antibodies and bioengineered vaccines.
Excluding changes in foreign currency, the division generated
eight percent organic revenue growth, its second straight year
of strong growth. This growth was driven by the healthy
fundamentals of the biotech industry, which we expect will
continue to be strong in the future.

Like the Bioscience Division, we have structured the
Bioprocess Division around four key business units.

e Filtration & Chromatography — We offer the broadest range
of filtration, purification and chromatography technologies
to separate and purify drugs so that they are potent, safe,
and efficiently manufactured.

e Advanced Manufacturing Solutions — We sell a broad range
of disposable manufacturing components that can
be configured and validated for biologic drug production.

Additionally, we offer stainless steel equipment, such as
chromatography columns, manufacturing skids, mixers,
and valves.

e Process Monitoring Tools — We provide products that
enable the sampling and testing of drugs throughout the
manufacturing process and in a drug’s final form.

e Bio-Products & Technologies — The process of manufact-
uring biologic drugs begins with growing cells in a bioreactor
to produce proteins. We sell fatty acid supplements,
recombinant insulin, bovine serum albumin, and other
growth factors that improve the ability of cells to efficiently
produce proteins.

The execution of our strategy has balanced the growth
profile between both our Bioscience and Bioprocess
divisions. This balance is important as we execute on our
long-term goal of doubling the value of the company. By
expanding into new markets, we now have attractive growth
opportunities in both divisions.

Global Supply Chain and Quality Initiatives

During 2006, we made significant progress on our strategic
objective to lead the industry in product quality and
manufacturing effectiveness. We invested in two new quality
systems, which will help us to raise our quality standards
even higher. We are also more than halfway complete with our
global supply chain initiatives. These initiatives are focused
on consolidating our manufacturing sites, implementing new
procurement practices, and streamlining our manufacturing
processes by using Lean Manufacturing and Six Sigma
methodologies. Our execution of this project has been
excellent and has resulted in higher gross margins for the
company. Over the next two years, we expect that our margins
will continue to increase as these investments generate
significant savings for the company. Our supply chain and
quality initiatives are creating significant value for our
shareholders and are differentiating us from our competitors.



Becoming a Magnet for Talent

Millipore is a growth company that offers rewarding career
opportunities. We are a re-energized organization with a
strong core, a proud tradition, and a great future. Our people
are the heart of our business. Therefore, our ability to retain
and attract the best people is critical to our future success.
Over the past two years, we added more than 2,000
employees through acquisitions and internal growth. During
2006, we hired new human resources leadership, built new
skills within the organization, and launched a leadership
development program. We also changed our incentive
structure to create better rewards for our best performing
employees. In the coming year, we will continue to make
investments in training and workforce development to make
Millipore one of the most desirable companies to work for

in the life science tools industry.

In summary, we are meeting the revenue and profitability
goals we shared with investors. We are building new
capabilities and we are making the investments necessary
to drive growth in the future. After significant growth

in 2005, we generated another strong year of financial
performance. The results from our efforts in 2006 are clear.

e We are successfully implementing our strategy
e We are on track to meet our long-term goals

e We are delivering consistent and industry-leading
financial performance

2007: Driving Value from our Investments

| am excited about the changes we have made and the results
these changes have generated. Our journey continues with
the completion of the Serologicals integration by the middle
of 2007 and the execution of several key initiatives. In 2007,
we will be focused on driving value from the acquisitions

and other investments we have made over the past two
years. Millipore employees are energized by our new set of

opportunities, our new products, and the new markets we
have entered. The transformation of Millipore is not complete,
we still have much more to accomplish, but we are a much
stronger company today than we were just two years ago.

During 2007, we will continue to strengthen the company by
driving R&D productivity to higher levels. A dual focus on
innovation and the effectiveness of our product development
will help us to deliver sustainable revenue and earnings
growth in the future. | am working with our R&D and product
management teams to create a better pipeline of products
and services that address larger markets and have a more
meaningful impact on our performance.

From a financial standpoint, we will be focused on
sustaining attractive earnings and revenue growth, as well
as generating a significant amount of cash flow to reduce
our debt. With higher margin products, lower inventory,
and lower capital spending, we expect to strengthen our
balance sheet in the coming year.

I would like to thank our employees for their outstanding
effort and dedication, our customers for their loyalty, and
our shareholders for their support. With the substantial
improvement we have made and our bright future, |
believe Millipore offers long-term investors a very
compelling opportunity to create value.

Sincerely,

Martin D. Madaus
Chairman, President and CEO
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BIOSCIENCE

IN THE LAB, WE ACCELERATE THE PACE
OF SCIENTIFIC DISCOVERY

Millipore’s Bioscience Division provides consumable products and other enabling
technologies that optimize laboratory productivity and workflows in life science
research and development. The division helps scientists to advance their under-
standing of molecular biology, cellular biology, protein and genomic research, and
drug discovery. Bioscience is organized around four key business units that
provide offerings such as water purification systems, sample preparation prod-
ucts, reagents, and drug discovery services.

WATER

RESEARCH DRUG
REAGENTS H DISCOVERY
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BIOPROCESS

IN BIOMANUFACTURING, WE INCREASE SPEED,
REDUCE RISK, AND PROVIDE A COMPETITIVE EDGE

Millipore’s Bioprocess Division provides products and expertise that enable
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies to efficiently manufacture thera-
peutics, particularly biologic drugs and vaccines. We help companies increase
their speed-to-market by improving their manufacturing cycle times and we lower
their risk by reducing manufacturing deviations. Bioprocess is organized around
four key business units and provides products for applications such as cell culture,
filtration, chromatography, disposable manufacturing, and sterility testing.

BIO-PRODUCTS & FILTRATION &
TECHNOLOGIES CHROMATOGRAPHY
ADVANCED PROCESS

MANUFACTURING

SOLUTIONS MONITORING TOOLS
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BIOSCIENCE

Life science researchers are under increasing competitive and
economic pressure to improve the productivity of their research.
This trend is forcing drug companies to find faster ways to
screen and identify new drug candidates. For academic
researchers, this trend means they must reduce the time it
takes to translate their work into published research.
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Millipore’s products make researchers more productive by Our validated assays and applications expertise allow cus-
reducing the time between discovery in the lab and discover- tomers to consistently and reliably generate results in the
ing new drugs, or publishing findings in important scientific laboratory, thereby increasing confidence in their research.
journals. Millipore understands the complex problems of its

customers and provides the scientific advice they value.
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: LABORATORY BIOTOOLS
WATER
RESEARCH DRUG
REAGENTS DISCOVERY

More Flexibility

Purified water is the most common reagent used in scientific
experimentation. The presence of impurities can have an
adverse impact on experimental outcomes, increase costs,
and decrease productivity for laboratory researchers.
Millipore is the trusted leader in delivering high-quality water
systems that meet the needs of many different kinds of
scientific research.
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WITH PURE WATER

“Our focus on genomics research requires that we have the
flexibility to quickly access different qualities of water for our
experiments. By working with the Milli-Q® Advantage system,
we simply change the final filter at the point of dispense and
get the precise water quality that is delivered exactly when
we need it. This improves our productivity immensely by
saving on downtime and cleaning.”

Dr. Alain Perret, Head of Biochemistry

Genoscope, National Centre for Sequencing, Evry, France
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Millipore helps companies address the challenging task of
determining which drug candidates are most likely to func-
tion effectively and safely in the human body. Our products
and services enable our customers to screen their com-
pounds against specific drug targets of interest, such as
kinases, ion-channels, and G-protein-coupled receptors
(GPCRs). As a trusted service partner, Millipore improves
researchers’ productivity as they seek new ways to treat
diseases in the cardiovascular, oncological, neurological and
metabolic areas.

¥

“In an effort to better identify promising drug candidates,
we turned to Millipore’s KinaseProfiler™ service to make
more informed decisions about where to invest our resources.
Because of the excellent customer and technical support we
receive from Millipore, we are able to focus our investments
on advancing our strategic R&D projects rather than develop-
ing internal capabilities that we would only use periodically.”
Francis X. Sullivan, Senior Group Leader

Array BioPharma, Inc.
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BIOPROCESS

Millipore is aleader in helping companies to scale their production
of drugs and vaccines from the small volumes needed in pre-
clinical development and early-stage clinical trials to the much
larger volumes needed after regulatory approval. The company’s
Bioprocess experts design robust processes that optimize effi-
ciency, increase yields, and minimize risk for customers.
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The world’s leading biotechnology and pharmaceutical compa- The company has more than 500 Bioprocess professionals in the
nies trust Millipore to increase their speed-to-market in order to field and at customer sites working closely with companies to
meet substantial worldwide demand for their products. Millipore’s solve complex problems every day. When customers want to
products are used to manufacture most of the biologic drugs on excel at biomanufacturing and improve their processes while
the market today. reducing their risk, they choose Millipore.
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Improved Performance

Fewer Manufacturin
Deviations

MAKING LIFE{SA\/ING DRU\GS SAFE
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One of the burning issues facing biopharmaceutical manufac-
turers today is the dual challenge of effectively meeting
market demand while delivering safe and effective medicines
to the patient. Millipore’s filtration and chromatography prod-
ucts separate and remove cellular debris, bacteria, viruses,
and other contaminants typically present during the produc-
tion of biologic drugs. Additionally, the company offers
process monitoring tools that customers use to test the purity
of drugs. Millipore is proud of the role its products play in
ensuring that life-saving drugs are safe for patients to use.
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“Millipore plays a key role in enabling us to quickly and safely
deliver life-saving drugs to the market. We rely on their prod-
ucts to remove bacteria, viruses, and other contaminants
from our biologic drugs, and their testing products enable us
to ensure the purity of our products. We value Millipore’s
expertise and consider them an important partner in meet-
ing the demands of our industry.”

Jorg Thémmes, Ph.D. Director, Purification Development

Biogen Idec Inc.
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Fewer Cleaning
Requirements
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THE FUTURE: DISPOSABLE

Biopharmaceutical companies are increasingly seeking
to replace stainless steel hardware with disposable plastic
products. These disposable products eliminate the need for
cleaning validation and shorten cycle times between process-
ing runs. Millipore’s suite of disposable technologies includes
filtration products, process containers, connectors, and
valves. In addition to these products, Millipore offers design,
validation, and support services required to integrate and
deliver a complete disposable solution.
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As biopharmaceutical companies increase their productivity
and yields, Millipore’s product breadth and expertise will
enable them to transform the technologies they use to
produce their drugs. For example, disposable technologies
can help biopharmaceutical companies lower the up-front
capital investment typically required to manufacture
biologic drugs. Leaders in the industry are increasingly
turning to Millipore as their trusted partner for supplying
disposable technologies.
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CORPORATE
CITIZENSHIP

Millipore is committed to being a leading corporate citizen
and reducing its impact on the environment. Since establish-
ing the Millipore Foundation twenty-two years ago, Millipore
has supported scientific and technological education, helped
to improve the quality of life in communities where it operates,
and assisted employees with volunteer efforts. The Founda-
tion has contributed millions of dollars in educational, cultural,
and healthcare-related initiatives. Additionally, Millipore’s
commitment to corporate citizenship can be seen in our pas-
sion for the environment. We recognize that manufacturing
products in a safe, effective, and responsible way is good for

16

all of our stakeholders. We use “green” design concepts in
many of our buildings; we have improved methods of recycling
the water we use in manufacturing; and we have implemented
strategies to conserve energy. The company has been recog-
nized by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
and the state of New Hampshire for its environmental conser-
vation efforts. Millipore’s commitment to reducing the impact
of its operations on the environment will continue to grow. This
commitment is important for our employees, investors, and
customers, and is fundamental to being a responsible corpo-
rate citizen.



FORM 10-K



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006

or
[ ] Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Act of 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 001-09781 (0-1052)

MILLIPORE CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Massachusetts 04-2170233
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
290 Concord Road, Billerica, MA 01821
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(978) 715-4321

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of Class Name of Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock, $1.00 Par Value New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.

Yes [ ] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will
not be contained, to the best or registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in
Part III of Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See
definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer [ ] Non-accelerated filer [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes [ ] No

The aggregate market value of Common Stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, based upon the closing sale price of the
registrant’s Common Stock on June 30, 2006, the last business day of its most recently completed second fiscal quarter, as reported
on the New York Stock Exchange, was approximately $1,995,286,967. Shares of Common Stock held by each executive officer
and director and by each person known to beneficially own more than 5 percent of the outstanding Common Stock have been
excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive
determination for other purposes.

As of February 24, 2007, 53,930,618 shares of the registrant’s Common Stock were outstanding.

Documents Incorporated by Reference
Document Incorporated into Form 10-K

Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting Part I1I




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

PART I
Item 1. BUSINESS . o .ttt 3
Item TA.  Risk Factors .. ... ... 21
Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments . . .......... .. 31
Item 2. Properties . . ... 31
Item 3. Legal Proceedings . . . .. ..ottt 32
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders ................ ... .. .. ..... 32
PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities .. ... ... ... ...t 33
Item 6. Selected Financial Data . ......... .. 33
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

OPCTALIONS « .« . vt ettt ettt e e e e e e e 36
Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk ........................ 57
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data ........... .. ... .. .. .. .. . .. ... ... 57
Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial

DISCLOSUIE . .« .ottt e e 102
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures . .. ......... .. 102
Item 9B.  Other Information . ... ... . e 102
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate GOVernance .. ......................... 103
Item 11. Executive COMPENSAtION . . ..o\ttt ettt et e e e e e e 103
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder MAtters . ... .. ..ottt e e e 103
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence ............ 104
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services .. .......... . i 104
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules ........... .. .. .. . . .. . . ... 105
SIGNATURES . . 110

» o«

In this Form 10-K, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “Millipore”, the “Company”, “we” or
“us” shall mean Millipore Corporation and its subsidiaries.



PART I

Item 1. Business.

Overview

Millipore is a global life science company that provides technologies, tools and services facilitating the
discovery, development and production of new therapeutic drugs, vaccines and detection tools, together with
other applications. We serve the worldwide biotechnology, pharmaceutical and life science research industries by
improving productivity and efficiency. We primarily sell consumable products. Our products and services are
based on a variety of enabling technologies, including filtration, chromatography, cell culture supplements,
antibodies and cell lines. In life science research, our Bioscience division offers products and services for drug
discovery, gene and protein research, research in the fields of molecular biology, cell biology and
immunodetection, and general laboratory applications. For the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries, our
Bioprocess division offers products and services for process development, scale-up, production, validation and
quality assurance of therapeutics. Our intimate knowledge of our customers’ research and manufacturing process
needs ensures that our products and services are designed, recommended, used and supported to maximize the
benefit to our customers.

Our History

Millipore Corporation was formed as a Massachusetts corporation in 1954. During much of our history, we
have developed and sold products based on our proprietary filtration and other separations technologies into a
variety of industries. In 2002, we exited our microelectronics business in order to focus primarily on the life
science markets. Beginning in 2005, we began implementing a new strategy that sharpened our focus on the fast
growing biopharmaceutical manufacturing and laboratory research markets.

Recent Developments

In July 2006, we acquired Serologicals Corporation (“Serologicals”) for approximately $1.5 billion,
including the assumption of debt. We view the acquisition of Serologicals as a transformational step which
enhances our product portfolio and complements our brand, sales force and customer relationships. In particular,
we believe the acquisition has:

e strengthened significantly the market position of our Bioscience division by increasing its product
portfolio in fast growing life science research markets such as drug discovery, research reagents, cell
signaling research and stem cell research;

e secured our presence in the upstream bioprocess market by gaining a portfolio of cell culture
supplement products for our Bioprocess division;

e enabled us to leverage our strong sales and marketing presence in international markets such as Europe,
Asia and Japan to increase sales of Serologicals products;

e given us the means to accelerate our organic growth over the long term by taking advantage of
Serologicals’ demonstrated track record of launching new products into high growth markets; and

e created overall critical mass and size by diversifying and expanding our product offerings.
In connection with this acquisition, we issued 3.75 percent convertible senior notes amounting to $565.0

million, 5.875 percent senior notes amounting to €250.0 million (approximately $330.0 million), and amended
our existing revolving credit facility.

In April 2006, we acquired Newport Bio Systems, Inc. (“Newport”) for $8.6 million, including the

assumption of debt. Newport was a provider of process containers, tubing manifolds, and assembly systems for
collecting, storing, and transferring process fluids used in biopharmaceutical production. The addition of
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Newport’s single-use process containers to our Mobius™ disposable solutions provides us with the industry’s
broadest range of disposable bioprocessing components. By manufacturing all of the components of an integrated
disposable solution, we eliminate the need for our customers to validate multiple products from multiple
suppliers. This acquisition reflects our strategic focus on increasing our presence in the disposable manufacturing
market and builds on our 2005 acquisition of NovAseptic A.B. (“NovAseptic”).

We have continued our expansion in high growth Asian markets, including China and India, by substantially
increasing both the number of Millipore sales representatives and distributors in Asia. Our Bioscience division
has also invested in a dedicated Chinese training function to facilitate further penetration into that market.

We continue to execute a number of initiatives to improve further our profitability. These include significant
reductions in the number of our worldwide manufacturing facilities, aggressive improvements to our
procurement and manufacturing processes, market and customer segmentation, and enhancements of sales
productivity.

We also continue to implement our plan to integrate the Serologicals businesses and functions into
Millipore. We remain on schedule against all of our major milestones and anticipate completing our formal
integration by mid-2007.

Our Customers
Customers of our Bioscience division include:
e Research departments at biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies
» Life science research companies

e Private and public research laboratories, such as universities, medical research centers and governmental
institutions

* Hospitals and clinical laboratories

e Clinical research organizations

e Environmental, industrial and other analytical laboratories

The research in which our Bioscience customers engage spans many areas of life science, including drug
discovery, research in areas such as genomics, proteomics, stem cells, cell signaling and nuclear function, other
laboratory research, and clinical and analytical laboratory activities.

Customers of our Bioprocess division include:

e Pharmaceutical companies

e Biotechnology companies

e Contract drug manufacturers

e Diagnostics and medical device companies

* Beverage companies

e Environmental testing companies

These Bioprocess customers are engaged in the development, scale-up, manufacturing and testing of
therapeutic, vaccine and diagnostic products, as well as a variety of health care and other products.

Although no single customer accounts for 10 percent or more of our sales, some of our individual customers
do purchase significant quantities of our products. Our Bioprocess division tends to have higher customer
concentration than our Bioscience division.



Our Business
Overview

We compete in two related markets, life sciences research and biopharmaceutical manufacturing. Our
Bioscience division serves the life sciences research market, principally composed of companies and institutions
conducting basic research, drug discovery and other analytical laboratory work. Our Bioprocess division serves
the biopharmaceutical manufacturing market, principally composed of biotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies that develop, manufacture and sell products for the diagnosis, prevention and treatment of diseases.

In response to accelerating demand for healthcare improvement and disease prevention, new therapeutic
products and vaccines, particularly biologics based on recombinant proteins, are being developed, approved and
produced in growing numbers.

We leverage our brand, global infrastructure, proprietary technologies, highly qualified sales force and
manufacturing operations to support our worldwide operations. We sell thousands of products and we are
continually developing and/or acquiring new proprietary products and technologies to advance our businesses.
With the addition of the Serologicals product portfolio, we believe we now offer a balanced product mix with
strong growth and profitability characteristics.

Most of our products are consumables that are used, disposed and replaced, such as reagent kits or filtration
cartridges. We derive some revenue from standard hardware products ranging from small benchtop laboratory
water systems to large filtration systems. We also sell custom products, including our process scale filtration and
chromatography systems and columns, as well as membrane sheets and rolls and bulk chromatographic media
sold outside of our primary markets. In addition, we provide a variety of services, including drug target screening
and selectivity testing, microbial contamination testing, consulting, manufacturing process validation and product
maintenance services.

Because of the differing applications required by each of our target markets, we believe our approach to
these markets benefits from more specialized and focused attention. Accordingly, we have aligned our business
to better address each of these markets. The following describes more specifically the principal markets in which
we compete and selected examples of our solutions and products relevant to each of these markets.

Bioscience Markets
Industry Background

As researchers seek to understand complex biological systems and to identify and characterize new
therapeutic targets, the market demand for tools that improve productivity and efficiency in the laboratory has
grown. Intensive and expensive laboratory research is required to feed the pipeline of biologics, bioengineered
vaccines and other therapeutic and diagnostic products in development. Research organizations have come under
increasing competitive and economic pressure to improve their screening and identification of new drug
candidates with more speed and accuracy. In particular, the rapid growth in the development of new therapeutics
has brought a heightened focus on protein research, including protein identification and characterization.
Laboratory markets have also grown with the increase in concerns about bioterrorism and the emergence of new
public health threats.

Our Bioscience division addresses major fields of life science research, including molecular biology,
cellular biology, protein research and drug discovery.

Molecular biology research involves the study of the molecular underpinnings of living organisms. Of
particular interest is gene expression, the processes by which an organism uses, implements and replicates its
genetic information. The genetic material of living organisms comprises double-stranded molecules of
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deoxyribonucleic acid (“DNA”). The information contained in DNA is transcribed to a single-stranded molecule
similar in composition to DNA, called ribonucleic acid (“RNA”). The RNA then translates this information into
proteins, large molecules made of amino acids, that are used in all cellular processes. Proteins have many
different functional properties and include antibodies, proteins forming the structure of a cell, certain hormones
and enzymes.

Cellular biology research includes the study of the genetic functioning and biochemical composition of
cells, including their physiological properties and structure. Equally important is the examination of cells’ life
cycles, environmental interactions, division, differentiation, growth and death. The understanding gained from
these studies has broad application in the fields of developmental biology, carcinogenesis, cell communication,
virology, immunology, and vaccine and diagnostic development.

Areas of life science research include understanding an organism’s production of proteins and their impact
on cellular function, and manipulating DNA to modify the production of proteins. Researchers are able to modify
an organism’s naturally occurring DNA to produce a desired protein not usually formed by the organism, or to
increase the rate of production of a naturally formed protein. These techniques are commonly referred to as
“genetic engineering” or “gene-splicing”.

Our Bioscience division is organized around four specific market segments within the life sciences research
market as described below.

Biotools—Market Needs

All life science researchers conduct experiments on biological samples, such as cells, proteins and nucleic
acids. The consistency and reproducibility of experimental results requires that the samples used by researchers
are pure and properly isolated. The varying physical and biochemical characteristics of biological samples make
the processes of isolation extremely complex.

Research, clinical and analytical laboratories use many sample preparation steps, including media
preparation, clarification, protein depletion, purification, concentration, desalting and blotting, for a variety of
laboratory procedures.

Specialty membranes, consumable devices, reagents and kits are used for purifying, preparing or screening
biological samples. For example, filtration devices and specialty membranes can be designed to accommodate
the parameters of a wide variety of experiments, such as protein binding and chemical compatibility. As another
example, customized antibodies that serve as biological markers can be used to locate enzymes, structural
components and modifications that often occur transiently, in minute amounts or in specific locations, and to
measure them with great accuracy. Consistent and repeatable sample preparation saves time and reduces costs.

Biotools—Millipore Solutions

We offer a broad range of high-quality products that separate, isolate, and purify biological samples in order
to ensure the integrity of scientific experiments. Our products improve throughput, automation and cost-
effectiveness of sample preparation, concentration and desalting or other separations required for protein and
gene research, drug discovery applications, including DNA sequencing, plasmid prep, detection and microarray
applications, screening of potential drug compounds, in-gel digestion, albumin depletion and antibody
purification. These products help researchers to process samples more efficiently and become more productive.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples
*  Filtration devices e Montage® series of Kits
*  Specialty membranes e Ultrafree®-CL centrifugal filters
e Protein purification and characterization kits and ¢  MultiScreen® Filter Plate
products e Immobilon® Western AP Chemiluminescent
Substrate



Research Reagents—Market Needs

Researchers regularly use a broad range of research products, including specialty reagents, kits, antibodies
and molecular biology tools for research in such areas as neuroscience, infectious disease, oncology, metabolic
disorders, stem cells and cell signaling.

Life science researchers who study the structure and function of cells and proteins require innovative and
high quality biological reagents to conduct their experiments consistently. A reagent is a substance used to detect,
quantify, produce, modify or otherwise manipulate a biological target. Biological reagents include antibodies,
peptides, dyes, enzymes and other proteins and biochemical agents that are used to identify and measure cellular
interactions, proteins, cell signaling and other cellular functions.

Kits enhance research productivity by combining in one box all the disposables, reagents and protocols
needed to reliably and reproducibly conduct a particular experiment. Kits include assays for the detection of
viruses, protein and gene activity and stem cell differentiation, as well as RNAi gene silencing systems and
multiplexed immunoassays. An assay is a test technique for measuring a biological response or for determining
characteristics such as the presence, absence, composition, purity, activity or location of a biological target.

For further efficiency and economy, research scientists also outsource various services, including the
development and production of custom antibodies, peptides, assays and other biochemical markers.

Research Reagents—Millipore Solutions

We offer a broad range of biological reagents including antibodies, dyes and biochemical reagents. To aid in
research productivity, we also provide kits for researchers focused in many medical fields including
neuroscience, oncology, metabolic disorders and other major therapeutic areas. We also offer cutting edge
products to advance life science research in stem cells, nuclear function and chromatin biology. By combining
the breadth of our products and services with our application and scientific expertise, we believe we consistently
increase our relevance and value to our research customers.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples
* Antibodies and assay kits for protein identification ¢  Customized antibodies and kits for:
e Cell based assays e Cell signaling
*  Nuclear function assays and kits e Neuroscience
*  Stem cell research products e Cell biology
e HEScGRO™ Medium for Human Embryonic
Stem (hES) Cell Culture

e ReNcell™ Immortalized Cells and Media
e MultiScreen® Filter Plates for Elispot

Drug Discovery—Market Needs

A major focus in life science research relates to the discovery of new therapeutic targets and of new
compounds that can act to modulate the behavior of these targets. To improve the efficiency and economy of this
research, the development of detection tools for disease targets and efficacy improvement of existing therapeutics
to targeted patient groups must proceed in parallel. In each case, the overriding goal is the transformation of
medical practice from a “diagnose and treat” model to one of “predict and prevent”. In order to achieve this goal,
an approach is required that attempts to understand the target and its interaction with a potential therapeutic
compound in the context of the whole organism. An excellent proxy for the organism is the cell. Accordingly,
cell based assays and multiple assay measurements (known as multiplex assays) that create results not possible in
a traditional biochemical assay are growing in importance.

When potential drug targets have been identified, biotechnology and pharmaceutical researchers must
evaluate which drug candidates are most likely to function effectively and safely in the human body. This

7



complex task of prioritizing drug candidates requires that they be screened both for specificity and affinity for the
specific target of interest, and for potential side effects due to off-target interactions.

The majority of new biotherapeutic targets are proteins, either newly discovered or those for which their
function is better understood through recent research. Proteins are used in all cellular processes and therefore the
enhancement or inhibition of a protein’s function can result in a desired therapeutic effect. Three major classes of
target proteins are kinases, G-protein-coupled receptors (“GPCRs”), and ion channels.

A kinase is an enzyme that chemically modifies other proteins, usually resulting in a functional change of
the target protein. Kinases regulate the majority of cellular pathways, especially the transmission of signals
within the cell, affecting cell growth, movement and death. Because kinases have profound effects on a cell, their
activity is highly regulated. Disregulated kinase activity is a frequent cause of disease, particularly cancer. Drugs
which inhibit specific kinases have been shown to be effective in the treatment or prevention of otherwise
intractable diseases.

GPCRs are a common form of protein receptor that transmits external stimuli into various intracellular
response pathways. A receptor is a protein in a cell that binds to a specific molecule (a “ligand”), such as a
neurotransmitter, hormone, or other substance. The receptor then initiates a cellular response to the ligand,
usually a physiological change that modifies the biochemical nature of a protein in the cell. Often these modified
proteins will in turn interact with and modify other cellular proteins leading eventually to new expression and the
synthesis of new proteins. GPCRs constitute part of the communication system between the cell and its external
environment. These proteins are active in most organ systems and offer many opportunities for therapeutic
intervention in areas including cancer, cardiac dysfunction, central nervous system disorders, obesity,
inflammation, diabetes and pain. A protein compound that inhibits or stimulates a GPCR, and the resulting
change in cell signaling, is a prime target candidate for further development into a biotherapeutic.

Ion channels are proteins that facilitate the movement of ions, such as sodium or potassium, in and out of
cells through the cell membrane. These proteins participate in a variety of biological processes, with essential
roles in nervous system function and cardiac regulation. Consequently, compounds that control ion channels
offer the opportunity to develop therapeutics that offer efficacy in heart disease and nervous disorders. Because
of their central role, ion channels also represent an important tool to screen for off-target effects of a compound.

Researchers use high throughput biochemical and cell-based assays to identify, mark and characterize these
and other proteins. Scientists can measure the effectiveness and ancillary effects of a potential therapeutic
compound at the biochemical and cellular level, which provides information to enable the selection of the most
appropriate candidates through the clinical development process. Many research laboratories often outsource
drug discovery screening to improve efficiency and cost.

Drug Discovery—Millipore Solutions

We provide bulk reagents required to perform the complex analyses involved in prioritizing drug candidates
through screening for specificity and affinity for a target class of interest. Our purified kinases and our
membrane-based assay tools are used in bioassays, cell-based assays, high throughput screening, and toxicity and
pharmacological profiling. For example, the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) has now
mandated that all potential therapeutic compounds must be screened against the hERG ion channel, a protein
believed to be the cause of serious incidences of cardiac arrhythmia. We provide cell lines that overexpress this
particular target for use in such screening.



We also offer outsourced drug discovery screening services to ascertain activity and safety for drug
candidates. As an outsourcing partner to the world’s leading biotechnology and pharmaceutical firms, we offer an
efficient, full service to screen molecules prior to the expensive and time consuming development of safe drugs
to treat cardiovascular, oncology, neurology, metabolic and many other disorders.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples

*  Drug development products and services for: e GPCRProfiler™ Service, cell-based functional
e Kinases GPCR profiling
e GPCRs e KinEASE™ FP Kinase Assays
e Jon channels e Kinase Selectivity Screening Service

*  Multiplex protein biomarker immunoassays and e LINCOplex™ Multiplexed Biomarker
services Immunoassays

*  GLP Ligand binding assays for clinical trials
*  Multi-well plates

Laboratory Water Market—Market Needs

Purified water meeting a variety of specific standards is an essential resource in most laboratory
environments and water purification systems are present in nearly every laboratory. Daily demand in a laboratory
for purified water can range from a few liters to several thousand liters. Such water is used in a diverse range of
applications, from complex protein research and trace element analysis to simple glassware rinsing. Different
applications require different water qualities, ranging from laboratory grade to analytical grade to ultrapure
water. Source water is available to laboratories from various sources, such as tap water or pretreated, bottled
water. Purification systems must vary to accommodate the quality of the source water and the desired end
quality. For example, a system may apply the final polish on water already pretreated by reverse osmosis,
distillation or deionization to produce ultrapure water.

Laboratory Water Market—Millipore Solutions

We offer a wide choice of sophisticated laboratory water purification systems that remove contaminants and
ensure water purity for critical laboratory analysis and clinical testing. We produce a range of bench-top and
central laboratory water systems that provide the flexibility to produce the water quality needed for a variety of
laboratory needs and applications.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples
»  Laboratory water purification systems, e Milli-Q® Advantage
consumables and accessories e Direct Q®
*  Field service for installed equipment  Elix®
e RiOs™

. A10 on line TOC monitor
. Maintenance services
. Validation services



Bioprocess Market
Industry Background

Our Bioprocess division provides tools and services that enable the commercial production of bioengineered
and pharmaceutical substances, including biologics, vaccines and other biotherapeutic products. Manufacturers
of these products are under increasing competitive and economic pressure to:

* maintain safety and quality

* minimize process deviations

e shorten production time

e improve manufacturing productivity and yield
e ensure security of supply

¢ reduce costs

Manufacturing of therapeutics generally encompasses production of two broad categories of molecules,
small molecule drugs and large molecule drugs. Small molecule therapeutics are primarily chemical compounds
that are made through an organic or inorganic chemistry process. These are sometimes referred to as synthetic
pharmaceuticals. Chemical or pharmaceutical companies manufacture these therapeutics and their active
ingredients in bulk. Biotechnology companies primarily produce large molecule therapeutics, most of which are
protein-based. These include the fast growing segment of biologics.

Biologics are products derived from living organisms, generated in a bioreactor or fermentor, and used in
the prevention or treatment of disease. They include therapeutic products and vaccines based on recombinant
proteins, such as monoclonal antibodies, enzymes, coagulation factors, cytokines, hormones, growth factors,
plasma products or transgenic and gene therapy products.

In many instances, recombinant proteins replace or mimic naturally occurring human proteins and are
produced by cells containing modified DNA. One subset of recombinant protein-based drugs, monoclonal
antibodies, has been shown to be extremely effective at treating otherwise intractable diseases such as cancer.
This has led to a fast growing market for therapeutic monoclonal antibodies, which are difficult to produce and
require a variety of complex technologies and processes to enable their development and production.

Industry sources predict that volumes of monoclonal antibodies and bioengineered vaccines will continue to
grow substantially over the next five years. There are currently over 1,450 biologics in various stages of
development or approved by regulators, of which approximately 457 are monoclonal antibodies and
approximately 445 are bioengineered vaccines. In contrast, growth in sales of small molecule pharmaceuticals is
expected to be lower. This lower growth rate is primarily a result of continued exposure to intense generic
competition as the patents expire on the chemical compounds comprising the drugs. Synthetic pharmaceuticals,
however, continue to constitute a significant percentage of all marketed therapeutic products and are
manufactured in large volumes.

As the demand for marketed biologics and vaccines grows and new products are approved, the market for
products that facilitate and accelerate the identification, development and production of biologics and
bioengineered vaccines is expanding. Although most biologics and bioengineered vaccines are discovered and
produced today by biotechnology companies (companies that focus on development of large molecule
therapeutics), many pharmaceutical companies (companies that have historically focused on small molecule
pharmaceuticals) are increasing efforts to identify and develop biologics and bioengineered vaccines as well.

Successfully bringing a biologic or a bioengineered vaccine to the market is a complex and lengthy process.
It begins with extensive laboratory research and discovery, continues with years of development, clinical trials
and scale-up of the manufacturing process, and culminates with establishing a manufacturing process that meets
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regulatory approvals and generates sufficient quantities of a safe, effective and approved drug. Biologics and
bioengineered vaccines originate from live organic material such as a genetically modified cell line. The desired
product must be extracted and purified from this original organic material. Growing from the initial small
quantities of these original biologics or bioengineered vaccines, to larger pilot scale quantities, and ultimately to
full production scale, cannot be achieved without increasingly effective cell culture and purification processes.

We view the value chain of our bioprocess customers to include:

e process development and scale up;

e upstream processing (the growth and fermentation process in bioreactors);
e downstream purification and filtration (harvesting); and

e continuous compliance monitoring and testing.

We believe we are the only company in our markets to provide solutions for both the upstream and
downstream requirements of our bioprocessing customers. Our Bioprocess division is aligned to serve the breadth
of this development and manufacturing process by targeting four principal markets as further described below.

Bio-Products & Technologies—Market Needs

Biologic products must be grown in living cells, such as bacteria, yeast or mammalian cells since they
cannot be synthesized chemically. The process of manufacturing many biologics and bioengineered vaccines
begins with growing mammalian or other cell types which have been genetically transformed to produce large
amounts of a therapeutic protein. These proteins ultimately become therapeutic drugs.

The cells are grown in cell cultures held in large bioreactor or fermentation tanks of varying capacity. The
process is managed through the maintenance of optimal temperature, pressure and other environmental
conditions. In order to achieve high protein concentrations, cells in the bioreactor require nutrients and
supplements. As the cells grow and metabolize, they secrete into the cell culture medium the therapeutic protein
that is then harvested, purified and further processed.

Cell culture is an important technology that is also used in many other essential biomedical applications
such as the production of proteins that serve as key components of clinical diagnostic assays, vaccine production,
the development of cell and tissue therapies, screening for toxicity during drug discovery and numerous research
applications involving the study of genes and cell biology.

Bio-Products & Technologies—Millipore Solutions

To facilitate the manufacture of biologic drugs in mammalian cell cultures, we offer high quality nutrients
and supplements for these cultures. Our product portfolio includes the leading branded fatty acid supplements,
recombinant insulin, bovine serum albumin, and other growth factors that improve the ability of cells to produce
proteins efficiently. We are actively expanding our portfolio of cell culture supplements, particularly animal-free,
recombinant products.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples

e Cell Culture Supplements e Probumin®, serum albumin
*  EX-CYTE®, media growth supplement
o Incelligent™, recombinant human insulin
e UCOE™ gene expression technology

Filtration & Chromatography—Market Needs

The production of biologics requires the extraction of proteins from the fluids in which these proteins are
grown. The process also requires the removal of impurities such as bacteria, viruses, cellular debris and other

11



contaminants. Accordingly, manufacturing processes for biologics, particularly for monoclonal antibodies, are
separation-intensive, often requiring numerous filtration and chromatography steps for clarification,
concentration and sterilization. A complex biologic can require as many as ten different separation processes. A
typical synthetic drug may require between one and four filtration and sterilization steps.

Filtration & Chromatography—Millipore Solutions

We offer the broadest range of filtration, purification and chromatography technologies to clarify,
concentrate, purify and remove viruses or other biological contaminants from biologics, synthetic
pharmaceuticals and beverages. We enable our biologics manufacturing customers to meet their purification and
sterilization needs along the entire value chain by providing robust scaleable downstream process solutions and
expertise. Our filtration and chromatography products are scalable to match customer needs at different stages of
the development process through full-scale drug production.

Our pharmaceutical customers use our prefiltration and sterilization filters in the processing of synthetic
pharmaceuticals. Although anticipated growth rates of synthetic pharmaceuticals are low compared to projected
growth rates for all new therapeutics, use of our products in synthetic pharmaceutical manufacturing remains a
significant portion of our business due to the large number of approved synthetic pharmaceuticals and
corresponding processing lines for such products.

We provide a variety of filtration tools to meet our beverage customers’ processing needs, including tools to
remove bacteria and yeast. The beverage market represents a relatively small percentage of our revenues. From
time to time we also sell membrane sheets and rolls and bulk chromatographic media to manufacturers of
diagnostic products and other medical devices, environmental testing products or other products, for use as a
material or component in these products. We also offer a line of monoclonal antibodies that serve as reagents for
classifying antigens on red blood cells and detecting regular and irregular antibodies in blood specimens.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples

*  Sterile Filtration e Durapore® sterilizing grade filters

e Virus Filtration *  Viresolve® virus clearance devices

*  Tangential Flow Ultra-Filtration e Pellicon® tangential flow filtration devices
*  Clarification & Pre-filtration e Millistak+® clarification and prefiltration
*  Chromatography Media devices

e Prosep® chromatographic media

Advanced Manufacturing Solutions—Market Needs

Until recently, all biotherapeutic drugs were produced with stainless steel or glass equipment. Although
stainless steel and glass equipment remain the prevalent processing tools, the industry has sought ways to reduce
the costs and cycle time delays associated with cleaning fixed equipment in place between manufacturing runs.
Contamination risks also arise if the equipment is not thoroughly purged of all residual materials from prior
production runs. Companies have begun to migrate to single use, disposable technologies. These eliminate the
need for cleaning and shorten cycle times between processing runs. Biopharmaceutical manufacturers are also
seeking flexible manufacturing components and solutions that can be configured and validated to meet
customized biological manufacturing needs.

Advanced Manufacturing Solutions—Millipore Solutions

We design and manufacture sophisticated systems for use in sterile biomanufacturing environments, such as
chromatography columns, manufacturing skids, mixers, and valves. We are also a leading innovator in the
transition from such systems to disposable manufacturing by offering a broad range of disposable manufacturing
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components. In the past several years, we have developed and/or acquired rights to certain products and
technologies designed to simplify and to reduce the time and expense of certain steps in the downstream and final
fill processes of biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturing primarily by replacing stainless steel hardware
with disposable plastic products. Our hardware products range from large stainless steel process scale filtration
and chromatography systems and columns with selling prices that can be greater than a million dollars to small
filter housings or valves.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples

*  Disposable Assemblies *  Mobius™ Disposable Solutions suite

*  Aseptic Components e Acerta™ disposable filling systems

*  Engineered Systems e Lynx® disposable manufacturing connectors
*  Chromatography Columns *  PureFlex™ Process Container Film products

¢ K-Prime® BioChromatography Systems

Process Monitoring Tools—Market Needs

During the production of therapeutic drugs, companies take multiple steps to ensure their products are
produced safely and without contamination. Regulatory agencies such as the FDA require drug manufacturers to
ensure the purity and sterility of products before they are released to the public. Sampling and testing of
therapeutics throughout the manufacturing process for bioburden, microbial contamination and sterility levels are
both prudent and necessary. Such testing delays each step of production, however, and presents opportunities for
process improvements.

The processing of beverages (including wine, beer, and bottled juices and water) may include the need to
monitor for microbiological contamination and to remove bacteria and yeast.

Process Monitoring Tools—Millipore Solutions

We provide a broad range of products that enable sampling and testing of drugs and intermediate products
throughout the manufacturing process. Our process monitoring products are designed to test for microbiological,
viral or other contamination in biologics and synthetic pharmaceuticals as a quality control or assurance step in
their manufacture or processing. Our solutions reduce the risk to our customers of manufacturing scale-up
problems and shorten their drugs’ time-to-market. We are also developing next-generation technologies that are
faster and more sensitive to allow bioprocess manufacturers to identify contamination earlier in their processes.
Our alliance with Gen-Probe Incorporated (“Gen-Probe”) is designed to produce new process monitoring tools
capable of significantly reducing the time-to-result from days or weeks to hours. We expect it will take several
years to fully develop these products. We also offer outsourced testing for biological and viral contamination of
biologics.

Beverage manufacturers use our products for quality control and process applications, principally to monitor
for microbiological contamination and to prevent spoilage by removal of bacteria and yeast from products such
as wine, beer, bottled juices and water. The beverage market represents a relatively small percentage of our
revenues.

Types of Products and Applications Millipore Product Examples

o Sterility Testing *  Steritest™ devices and systems

*  Bioburden Monitoring e Milliflex® Rapid microbiology detection

e Sterile Sampling systems

*  Contract Lab Services e NovaSeptum® disposable sampling systems
*  Rapid Microbial Testing *  MicroSafeSM laboratory services
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Our Strategy

Our strategy is to provide differentiated solutions to the life science research and biopharmaceutical
manufacturing markets, which we believe have significant needs for new products that drive results, productivity
improvements and new research goals. Since 2005, our strategy has been organized around five objectives. The
table set forth below shows these objectives and some selected milestones relating to each.

Objective Selected Milestones (2005 and 2006)
To strengthen our leadership position with *  Acquired Serologicals (upstream bioprocess
biotechnology manufacturing customers by expanding markets)
our Bioprocess product offerings *  Acquired NovAseptic and Newport (disposable

bioprocessing solutions)

e Introduced new products in clarification, virus
screening and chromatography

e Completed new $50 million R&D facility

e Allied with Gen-Probe to develop microbial

testing
To establish Millipore as a strategic supplier in *  Acquired Serologicals businesses, accessing
bioscience research markets by increasing our market segments including stem cells,
laboratory productivity platforms and market reach neuroscience research and drug discovery

*  Expanded our capability to develop and launch
new products through the Serologicals
acquisition

e New product introductions, including:
e Milli-Q® Advantage
e Immobilon® Western detection reagents
e MilliCell® 24- and 96- well assays

*  Expanded sales and distribution presence in

Asia
To lead our industry in product quality and *  Progressed ahead of schedule on
manufacturing effectiveness implementation of focused factory and supply

chain initiatives
e Invested $6.5 million to enhance our corporate
quality systems

To attract, retain and develop talented and motivated e Established a new human resources leadership

employees team

*  Added over 2,000 new employees since
January 1, 2005

To double the value of the company between 2005 to * Increased revenue growth significantly in the

2009 last few years

*  Improved penetration of high growth and high
margin markets

e Accelerated supply chain and sales and
marketing initiatives to increase gross margin

Sales, Marketing and Customer Support

We sell our products to end users worldwide, primarily through our own direct global sales force.
Augmenting our direct sales, we also sell our products through our website and, in selective locations and
markets, through independent distributors.
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We market to our customers through advertising, trade shows, conferences, and other marketing techniques.
Our marketing efforts focus on application development for existing products and on new and differentiated
products for newly identified and proposed customer needs. We seek to educate customers regarding the variety
of analytical, separation and purification problems that may be addressed by our products as well as to adapt our
products and technologies to such problems as identified by our customers. Our technical support services are
important to our marketing efforts. These services include assisting in defining a customer’s needs, evaluating
alternative solutions, selecting or designing a specific system to perform the desired separation or other
application, training users, and assisting the customer in compliance with relevant government regulations.

Our direct sales organization is a critical competitive differentiator for us.

Our Technologies

Many of our products use technologies based on membrane filtration and chromatography. Membranes use
size exclusion to filter either the wanted or the unwanted particulate or bacterial, molecular or viral entities from
fluids. Some of our membrane materials also use affinity, ion-exchange or electrical charge mechanisms to effect
the desired separation. Microfiltration and ultrafiltration membranes are incorporated into devices, cartridges and
modules of different configurations to address a variety of customer purification and separation needs.
Chromatography media is used to purify or separate biopharmaceutical compounds or to remove contaminants
from these compounds by adsorption (the adherence of molecules in solution or suspension to the surfaces of the
media). Our laboratory water purification products combine membrane, resin and other separations technologies.
Certain of our sample preparation products use both membranes and chromatographic separation techniques.

Over the last several years, through acquisitions, alliances, licenses and research and development
investments, we have expanded and diversified our technology base beyond our core membrane filtration and
chromatography technologies.

We have focused this expansion and diversification on biopharmaceutical and life science research
applications. Most recently, our acquisition of Serologicals expanded the types of technologies that we offer
within our product portfolio, including customized monoclonal antibodies, cell culture supplements, cell lines
and immunity detection technology. Other examples include our disposable manufacturing initiatives, our
NovaSeptum sterile sampling technology and our MicroSafe biological testing processes. Through our alliance
with Gen-Probe, we are working to develop next-generation process monitoring tools for the biopharmaceutical
manufacturing market by coupling Millipore membrane-based sample preparation technologies with Gen-Probe’s
nucleic acid amplification and gene sequencing technologies. In the life sciences research market, we enter into a
large number of collaborative arrangements with academic researchers and other suppliers to introduce, in
combination with our internal research and development efforts, thousands of new products each year.

Research and Development

We believe that a strong research and product development effort is important to our future growth. Our
research and development spending was $86.6 million, $66.1 million and $62.5 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Our ongoing research and development activities include the development of new membranes and
chromatography media, the upgrading of membrane and media based systems to afford the user greater
purification capabilities, and the extension and enhancement of existing Millipore technologies to respond to new
applications. The rapidly changing laboratory research markets require novel technologies to meet the needs of
high throughput sample analysis. This has led to our development of products utilizing both membrane and
chromatographic separation techniques, including a product platform based on chromatographic media embedded
in membrane structures which we introduced for the protein research market. Additionally, through the
acquisition of Serologicals, we have greatly expanded our product development capabilities to include
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antibodies, enzymes, labeling and detection reagents, molecular biology kits, multiplexed immunoassays, cell
based assays and drug screening services.

As part of our strategic effort to accelerate innovation and to centralize our development efforts, we
completed an approximate $50 million state-of-the-art research and development facility at the site of our former
headquarters in Bedford, Massachusetts in October 2006. We are also enhancing our product development
process to optimize our development choices and allocation of resources. We perform most of our own research
and development and do not provide material amounts of research and development services for others.

We have followed a practice of supplementing our internal research and development efforts by acquiring or
licensing new technologies from unaffiliated third parties, acquiring distribution rights for new technologies, and
undertaking collaborative or sponsored research and development activities with unaffiliated companies and
academic or research institutions, when we believe it is in our interests to do so.

Our research and development activity is aimed at maintaining a leadership position in providing research
tools to the life sciences research market and enhancing our market position as a supplier of products used to
manufacture genetically engineered pharmaceuticals and other materials.

Quality Assurance

To compete effectively in our markets, we believe a world class, enterprise wide quality control program is
required. Accordingly, we maintain a global quality assurance system and program designed to assure the
efficacy and safety of our products and compliance with the requirements of regulatory authorities, voluntary
quality standards, industry trade associations and our customers. Using our quality assurance program and an
internally maintained regulatory compliance program, we conduct periodic audits of each of our facilities to
ascertain the status and compliance of the quality system as implemented. The audits, in combination with
performance metrics, are designed to ensure adherence to applicable regulations and our procedures and to assess
the effectiveness of our quality system as a whole. The audits are one component of the key performance
indicators that we collect, review and monitor in order to maintain our program of continuous improvement and
compliance with our established systems and programs.

Most of our operating facilities are registered to ISO 9001:2000 quality standards. The ISO 9001:2000
series of standards is a voluntary quality standard recognized throughout the world.

Global Supply Chain—Manufacturing and Sourcing

We manufacture the majority of our products in our own manufacturing facilities, primarily at those
properties described and listed under Item 2 of this Form 10-K. Our global supply chain initiative, which began
in 2004, is expected to result, over five years, in a new manufacturing landscape through the consolidation of
current sites, the implementation of new raw material procurement practices by consolidating our current
supplier base, and streamlined manufacturing processes through improvements using lean manufacturing and Six
Sigma methodologies.

Competition

The markets for our products and services are intensely competitive. Given the breadth of our product and
service offerings, our competition comes from a wide array of competitors, ranging from specialized companies
that have strengths in niche segments of the life science markets to large manufacturers offering a broad portfolio
of biotechnology products, tools and services. Many of these competitors have significant financial, operational,
sales and marketing resources, and experience in research and development, although certain competitors only
compete with us in a limited portion of our product line. We compete with a variety of public and private
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companies. Some of the major competitors of our Bioprocess Division include GE Healthcare, Pall Corporation
and Sartorius. Some of the major competitors of our Bioscience Division include Invitrogen Corporation,
QIAGEN, Thermo Fisher, Sigma-Aldrich, TECHNE Corporation, Bio-Rad Laboratories, BD Biosciences (a
segment of Becton, Dickinson and Company), Whatman, Pall Corporation, and Sartorius. In some cases, these
and other competitors are also our customers, distributors and suppliers, and in some circumstances we serve
these roles for such competitors as well.

We believe that a company’s competitive position in any of our markets is determined by a varying mix of
product availability and performance, quality, responsiveness, technical support, price and breadth of product
line. Our customers are diverse and we believe they place varying degrees of importance on the competitive
attributes listed above. In our judgment we are well positioned to compete in each these categories.

Our Employees

As of December 31, 2006, Millipore employed approximately 6,100 persons worldwide, of whom
approximately 2,500 were employed in the United States and the balance was employed outside of the United
States.

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

We have been granted and have licensed rights under a number of patents and have other patent applications
pending both in the United States and abroad. While these patents and licenses in the aggregate are viewed as
valuable assets, we believe that no individual patent is material to our ongoing operations. We also own a number
of trademarks, the most significant being “Millipore”.

Many of our research reagent products are sold pursuant to licenses that have varying terms and conditions.
We expect to continue to in-license new technologies from academic and government institutions, as well as
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies. We use licensed technologies to create new products, including
high value kits and services, many of which address bottlenecks in the research or drug discovery laboratories.

Our ability to obtain licenses to allow the introduction of new products is very important to allow us to offer
new, innovative and technologically superior research products. The licenses from others typically cover patents
or biological materials, such as cell lines, that we use to develop new products. Most of them are for fixed terms
with options for renewal, and typically impose obligations on us to market the licensed technology. No single
license is material to our business.

Government and Industry Regulation

Many of our activities are subject to regulation by governmental authorities within the United States and
similar bodies outside of the United States. The regulatory authorities govern the collection, testing,
manufacturing, safety, efficacy, labeling, storage, record keeping, transportation, approval, advertising and
promotion of our products, as well as the training of our employees. We manufacture and distribute a significant
number of products that are not subject to governmental regulation. However, some of these products are subject
to import and export regulations specific to the country of import. Certain of our products are considered
“medical devices” and “in vitro diagnostics” under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. Accordingly, these
products are subject to the law’s general control provisions that include requirements for registration, listing of
devices, quality regulations, labeling and prohibitions against misbranding and adulteration. These products
subject us to regulatory inspection and scrutiny. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations.
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Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous federal, state and foreign laws and regulations that impose strict requirements
for the control and abatement of air, water and soil pollutants and the manufacturing, storage, handling and
disposal of hazardous substances and waste. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all applicable
environmental requirements. We continue to invest in maintaining facilities that enable our compliance with
these environmental laws. These environmental related expenditures have not had a material effect on our capital
expenditures, earnings or competitive position. Because regulatory standards under environmental laws and
regulations have become increasingly stringent, however, there can be no assurance that future developments will
not cause us to incur material environmental liabilities or costs. See the applicable risk factor under Item 1A of
this Form 10-K.

Raw Materials

Our products are made from a wide variety of raw materials that are generally available from alternate
sources of supply. For certain critical raw materials, we have qualified only a single source. We periodically
purchase quantities of some of these critical raw materials in excess of current requirements, in anticipation of
future manufacturing needs. With sufficient lead times, we believe we would be able to validate alternate
suppliers for each of these raw materials. As described in the applicable risk factor under Item 1A of this Form
10-K, several of these critical raw materials are used in a significant portion of our products and if we were
unable to obtain supply of any one of them, our loss of revenues would be material.

Seasonality

In general we do not believe our business is inherently seasonal.

Backlog

We do not have a material amount of firm commitments that serve as backlog orders.

Geographic and Segment Information

We are a multinational company with approximately 61 percent of our 2006 sales outside the United States
and approximately 47 percent of our long-lived assets outside the United States at December 31, 2006.
Geographic and segment information, including the identification of operating segments and their aggregation, is
discussed in Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Information

Millipore’s corporate headquarters are at 290 Concord Road, Billerica, Massachusetts, and our telephone
number at that location is 1-978-715-4321.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) maintains an internet website at http://
www.sec.gov that contains our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K and proxy statements, and all amendments thereto. All reports that we file with the SEC may be read
and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Information
about the operation of the Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Millipore’s internet website address is www.millipore.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and proxy statements, and all amendments thereto, are
available free of charge on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically
filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. In addition, our corporate governance guidelines, the charters of each of the
committees of our Board of Directors, our code of ethics (consisting of our Corporate Compliance Policy, our
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Employee Code of Conduct and our Rules of Conduct) and our Director Code of Conduct are available on our
website and are available in print to any Millipore shareholder upon request in writing to “General Counsel,
Millipore Corporation, 290 Concord Road, Billerica, MA 01821".

The certifications of Millipore’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as required by the
rules adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, are filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K
and were also filed as exhibits to our Form 10-K for 2005, as filed with the SEC in March 2006. Millipore’s
Chief Executive Officer, Martin D. Madaus, provided an annual certification to the New York Stock Exchange
dated May 17, 2006, that he was not aware of any violations by the Company of the New York Stock Exchange
corporate governance listing standards.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following is a list, as of February 16, 2007, of the executive officers of Millipore Corporation. Except
as noted, all of such executive officers were elected to serve until the first Directors Meeting following our 2007
Annual Shareholders Meeting.

First Elected or
Appointed
An To
Executive Present
Name E Office Officer Office
Martin D. Madaus . ....... 47  Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer 2005 2005
Kathleen B. Allen ........ 51 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 2000 2000
Dominique F. Baly ....... 58 Vice President, President of Bioscience Division 2000 2005
Bruce J. Bonnevier ....... 48  Vice President, Global Human Resources 2006 2006
Dennis W. Harris * .. ..... 50 Chief Scientific Officer 2006 2006
Geoffrey F.Ide * . ... ..... 53  Vice President, Millipore International 2006 2006
Peter C. Kershaw ........ 53  Vice President, Global Supply Chain 2004 2005
Jean-Paul Mangeolle . . .. .. 45  Vice President, President of Bioprocess Division 2005 2005
JeffreyRudin............ 55 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 1996 1996
Gregory J. Sam .......... 48  Vice President, Quality 2003 2003
Charles F. Wagner, Jr. .... 38 Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development 2003 2003

* Messrs. Harris and Ide were not elected by the Board of Directors, but we have determined that they are
each an executive officer as such term is defined in Rule 3b-7 under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Dr. Madaus joined Millipore Corporation as our President and Chief Executive Officer, and as a Director,
on January 1, 2005, and was appointed Chairman of the Board effective March 1, 2005. From 2000 until
December 2004, Dr. Madaus served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Roche Diagnostics Corporation,
heading the North American diagnostics business of Hoffmann-La Roche, a leading pharmaceutical and
diagnostics company. Prior to that, Dr. Madaus held various management positions from 1989 to 1999 with
Hoffmann-La Roche and with Boehringer Mannheim (prior to its 1998 acquisition by Hoffmann-La Roche).

Dr. Madaus also serves as a board member of each of the New England Healthcare Initiative, the Analytical &
Life Science Systems Association, and the Massachusetts High Technology Council.

Ms. Allen was elected Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Millipore Corporation in 2000. Prior to
that, Ms. Allen held a wide variety of positions in Millipore’s financial organization since joining us in 1983,
most recently as Millipore Corporation’s Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer (1998-2000). Prior
to joining Millipore, Ms. Allen practiced public accounting for six years with Arthur Young and Company.

Myr. Baly was elected Vice President of Millipore Corporation in December 2000 and serves as President of
our Bioscience Division, which was formed in February 2005 as a combination of our Laboratory Water and Life
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Science Divisions. Mr. Baly also served as President of Millipore International to which he was appointed in
February 2001. From February 2001 through February 2005, Mr. Baly was President of the Laboratory Water
Division. Prior to that, Mr. Baly held a wide variety of positions since joining us in 1972, most recently as Vice
President of the Analytical Divisions of Millipore from 1994 until 2001.

Myr. Bonnevier joined Millipore Corporation as Vice President of Global Human Resources in January 2006.
From 2004 to 2005, Mr. Bonnevier served as Vice President of Human Resources for Hillenbrand Industries,
Inc., a company that owns and operates businesses that provide products and services for the health care and
funeral services industries. From 2000 to 2004, he was Vice President of Human Resources for Shipley
Company, now the Electronic Materials Division of the Rohm and Haas Company, a leading producer of
specialty materials used in a wide variety of applications, including electronic materials, paints and personal care
products. From 1989 through 2000, Mr. Bonnevier held various senior management roles at Rohm and Haas,
including Director of International Human Resources and Business Human Resources Manager.

Dr. Harris joined Millipore Corporation as our Chief Scientific Officer following our acquisition of
Serologicals in July 2006. From 2004 to 2006, Dr. Harris served as Vice President, Global Research &
Development and business development and Chief Scientific Officer at Serologicals. From 2002 to 2003,

Dr. Harris served as Executive Vice President, Research & Development for Vitra Biosciences, Inc., a developer
of a cell-based drug screening array systems for drug discovery. From 2001 to 2003, Dr. Harris held senior
Research & Development and business positions at ACLARA Biosciences, Inc., a developer of novel
technologies in the areas of microfluidics and gene and protein analysis. For approximately ten years prior to
joining ACLARA, Dr. Harris held positions of increasing responsibility at Amersham Pharmacia Biotech, Inc.
and its affiliates, most recently as Vice President of Research and Development for North America and global
genomics Research and Development from 1997 to 2001. Amersham (acquired by General Electric Corporation
in 2004) is a manufacturer of pharmaceutical products for the diagnosis and treatment of disease and of
technologies for biotechnology research and drug discovery.

Mr. Ide joined Millipore Corporation in 2005 as Vice President, Millipore International, with responsibility
for market development opportunities in Japan, Asia, India, South America, Eastern Europe, the Middle East and
Africa. In August 2006 Mr. Ide became a member of the Corporate Executive Committee. Prior to joining
Millipore, Mr. Ide was employed by Bausch & Lomb Incorporated, a world leader in the development,
manufacture and marketing of eye health products, from 1988 to 2005. He served Bausch & Lomb in positions of
increasing responsibility, most recently as corporate Vice President and President of Japan Operations from 1999
to 2005.

Mr. Kershaw was elected Vice President, Worldwide Manufacturing Operations, of Millipore Corporation
effective February 2004 and, in August 2005, was appointed head of our newly created Global Supply Chain
organization, a combination of the Company’s worldwide manufacturing and customer service functions. Prior to
joining Millipore, Mr. Kershaw served Hologic, Inc., a manufacturer of medical imaging systems, as Corporate
Vice President, Manufacturing Operations (2003-2004) and Vice President and General Manager, LORAD
Division (2001-2003). Prior to that, Mr. Kershaw served as President (1998-2001) and Vice President and
General Manager (1996-1998) of the Medical Device Division of Bespak plc, a manufacturer of plastic injection
molded components and finished medical devices.

Mr. Mangeolle was elected Vice President of Millipore Corporation in October 2005 and is President of the
Bioprocess Division. From 2002 to 2005, he served as Vice President of the Division’s Worldwide Field
Operations. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Mangeolle was Vice President of Operations of Mykrolis Corporation, a
spin-off of Millipore’s former Microelectronics Division. Prior to 2001, Mr. Mangeolle held a number of senior
management positions in Millipore’s Microelectronics and Laboratory Water Divisions, as well as Millipore’s
Asian Operations. Mr. Mangeolle joined Millipore SA, our wholly-owned subsidiary in France, as a sales
applications specialist in 1984.
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Mr. Rudin was elected Vice President and General Counsel of Millipore Corporation in December 1996 and
as Clerk (that office is now known as Secretary) of Millipore in 1999. Prior to joining Millipore, Mr. Rudin
served Ciba Corning Diagnostics Corp. as Senior Vice President and General Counsel (1993-1996) and as Vice
President and General Counsel (1988-1993).

Myr. Sam was elected Vice President, Quality, of Millipore Corporation in March 2003. Prior to joining
Millipore, Mr. Sam served from 2001-2002 as Vice President, Quality, for the Drug Delivery Business Unit of
Elan Corporation, a pharmaceutical company focused on the development, manufacturing and marketing of novel
therapeutic products, and from 2000-2001 as Vice President, Quality, of Dura Pharmaceuticals (acquired by Elan
Corporation in 2000), a manufacturer of prescription pharmaceutical products. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Sam was
Senior Director, Corporate QA—Quality Management, at Watson Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a specialty
pharmaceutical company.

Mr. Wagner joined Millipore Corporation in December 2002 as Director of Strategic Planning and Business
Development and was elected Vice President, Strategic Planning and Business Development (now Strategy and
Corporate Development), in March 2003. Prior to joining Millipore, Mr. Wagner served as a Manager (2001-
2002) and Consultant (1998-2001) at Bain & Company.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Lack of early success with our pharmaceutical and biotechnology customers can shut us out of future
business with those customers.

Many of the products we sell to the pharmaceutical and biotechnology customers are incorporated into the
customers’ drug manufacturing processes. In some cases, once a customer chooses a particular product for use in
a drug manufacturing process, it is unlikely that the customer will later switch to a competing alternative. In
many cases the regulatory license for the product will specify the separation and cell culture supplement products
qualified for use in the process. Obtaining the regulatory approvals needed for a change in the manufacturing
process is time consuming, expensive and uncertain. Accordingly, if we fail to convince a pharmaceutical or
biotechnology customer to choose our products early in its manufacturing design phase, we may lose
permanently the opportunity to participate in the customer’s production of such product. Because we face
vigorous competition in this market from companies with substantial financial and technical resources, we run
the risk that our competitors will win significant early business with a customer making it difficult for us to
recover that opportunity.

The suspension or termination of production of a customer’s therapeutic product may result in the abrupt
suspension or termination of their purchases of our products, resulting in an unexpected reduction in our
revenue.

Success in our Bioprocess division substantially depends on the incorporation of our products into a
customer’s manufacturing process. If this “design in” is achieved, we will likely have the opportunity to sell
consumable products to the customer during the life cycle of the customer’s product, which could continue for
many years. Our planning and growth projections are built in part on the volume assumptions deriving from these
customer successes. If a customer stops production of its product, either temporarily or permanently, our sales to
the customer for the applicable product will drop or stop. A customer may suspend or terminate production of a
product, either voluntarily or involuntarily, and related sales and distribution for many reasons. These may
include adverse regulatory, competitive, legal or economic circumstances. We have had in the past, and expect to
have in the future, situations in which a customer suspends its purchases of our products. A suspension or
permanent cessation of a process in which we would otherwise anticipate selling a significant volume of
consumables will reduce our revenues and negatively impact our earnings.
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Disruptions in the supply of raw materials and distributed products from our single source suppliers could
result in a significant disruption in sales and profitability.

Our products are made from a wide variety of raw materials that are generally available from alternate
sources of supply. However, certain critical raw materials and supplies required for the production of some of our
principal products are available only from a single supplier, as are some products that we distribute. Such raw
materials and distributed products cannot be obtained from other sources without significant delay or at all. If
such suppliers were to limit or terminate production or otherwise fail to supply these materials for any reason,
such failures could have a material adverse impact on our product sales and our business.

If our efforts to integrate acquired or licensed businesses or technologies into our business are not
successful, our business could be harmed.

As part of our business strategy, we have grown our business through acquisitions of technologies or of
companies that offer products, services and technologies that we believe complement our products, technologies
and services. In 2005, we acquired NovAseptic and MicroSafe B.V. In April 2006, we acquired Newport and in
July 2006, we acquired Serologicals. We expect to continue to grow our business through additional acquisitions
if appropriate opportunities arise.

Managing these recent acquisitions and any future acquisitions will entail numerous operational, legal and
financial risks, including:

e difficulties in assimilating new technologies, operations, sites and personnel;

e diversion of resources and management attention from our existing businesses and technologies;

e inability to maintain uniform quality standards, controls, and procedures;

e inability to retain key employees of any acquired businesses or hire enough qualified personnel to staff
any new or expanded operations;

e impairment or loss of relationships with key customers and suppliers of acquired businesses;
e issuance of dilutive equity securities;

e incurrence or assumption of debt;

e exposure to unknown or unanticipated liabilities;

» additional expenses associated with future amortization or impairment of acquired intangible assets or
potential businesses; and

e exposure to federal, state, local and foreign tax liabilities in connection with any acquisition or the
integration of any acquired businesses.

Our failure to address these risks successfully in the future could harm our business and prevent our
achievement of anticipated growth.

Increased leverage as a result of our recent debt offerings and other debt we have incurred to finance our
acquisition of Serologicals may harm our financial condition and results of operations.

As of December 31, 2006, our total debt was $1,416.3 million. Of this amount, $100.0 million is due under
our 7.5 percent senior unsecured notes in April 2007 and approximately $422.4 million (€320 million) represents
indebtedness of our subsidiaries under our revolving credit facilities that is guaranteed by us. Our revolving
credit facilities permit us to borrow in either the United States or Europe, with a combined maximum borrowing
not to exceed €465.0 million.
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Our level of indebtedness could have important consequences because:

* asubstantial portion of our cash flows from operations will be dedicated to interest and principal
payments and may not be available for operations, working capital, capital expenditures, expansion,
acquisitions or general corporate or other purposes;

* it may impair our ability to obtain additional or replacement financing in the future;
e it may limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry; and

e it may make us more vulnerable to downturns in our business, our industry or the economy in general.

Our operations may not generate sufficient cash to enable us to service our debt. If we fail to make a
payment on any of our debt obligations or comply with financial covenants in our debt agreements, we could be
in default on such debts, and this default could cause us to be in default on our other outstanding indebtedness. In
each case of default, we may be required to repay all of our outstanding indebtedness or renegotiate the terms of
our indebtedness on unfavorable terms.

If we fail to maintain adequate quality standards for our products and services, our business may be
adversely affected and our reputation harmed.

Our customers are subject to rigorous quality standards in order to maintain their products and the
manufacturing processes and testing methods that generate them. A failure to sustain the specified quality
requirements, including the processing and testing functions performed by our products, could result in the loss
of the applicable regulatory license. Delays or quality lapses in our customer’s production line could result in
substantial economic losses to them and to us. For example, large production lots of biotherapeutics are very
delicate and expensive and a failure of a separation membrane could result in the contamination of the entire lot,
requiring its destruction. We also perform services that may be considered an extension of our customers’
manufacturing and quality assurance processes, which also require the maintenance of prescribed levels of
quality. Although we believe that our continued focus on quality throughout the company adequately addresses
these risks, there can be no assurance that we will not experience occasional or systemic quality lapses in our
manufacturing and service operations. If we experience significant or prolonged quality problems, our business
and reputation may be harmed, which may result in the loss of customers, our inability to participate in future
customer product opportunities, and reduced revenues and earnings.

We may be unable to establish and to maintain collaborative development and marketing relationships
with business partners, which could result in a decline in revenues or slower than anticipated growth rates.

As a part of our business strategy, we have formed, and intend to continue to form, strategic alliances,
license agreements and marketing and distribution arrangements with corporate partners relating to the
development, commercialization, marketing and distribution of certain of our existing and potential products to
increase our revenues and to leverage our product and service offerings. Our success will depend, in part, on our
ability to maintain these relationships and to cultivate additional corporate alliances with such companies. In
2005, we entered into a joint development agreement with Gen-Probe. We did not enter into any significant
alliances in 2006.

We cannot ensure that our historical collaborative relationships will be commercially successful or yield the
desired results, that we will be able to negotiate additional collaborative relationships, that such additional
collaborative relationships will be available to us on acceptable terms, or that any such relationships, if
established, will be commercially successful. In addition, we cannot ensure that parties with which we have
established, or will establish, collaborative relationships will not, either directly or in collaboration with others,
pursue alternative technologies or develop alternative products in addition to, or instead of, our products. Such
parties may also be acquired by our competitors to terminate our relationship. They may also experience
financial or other difficulties that lessen their value to us and to our customers. Our results of operations and
opportunities for growth may be adversely affected by our failure to establish and maintain successful
collaborative relationships.
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Demand for our bioprocess products and services are subject to the commercial success of our customers’
products which may vary for reasons outside our control.

Even if we are successful in securing participation for our products in a customer’s manufacturing process,
sales of many of our bioprocess products and services remain dependent on the timing and volume of the
customer’s production, over which we have no control. The customer’s demand for our products will depend on
the regulatory approval and commercial success of the supported product. The regulatory process is complex,
lengthy and expensive and can often take years to complete, if at all. Commercial success of a customer’s
product, which would drive demand in production and commensurate demand for our products and services, is
dependent on many factors, some of which can change rapidly, despite early positive indications. Any delay or
cancellation by a customer of volume manufacturing may harm our revenues and earnings.

Technology innovations in the markets that we serve may create alternatives to our products and result in
reduced sales.

Our customers constantly attempt to reduce their manufacturing costs and to improve product quality.
Technology innovations to which our current and potential customers would have access could reduce or
eliminate their need for our membrane or chromatography products. For example, if a new membrane or
chromatography technology of one of our competitors is accepted by the pharmaceutical or biotechnology
industry as a market standard, sales of our membrane or chromatography products would be negatively impacted.
In addition, a disruptive technology that reduces or eliminates the use of our core technologies would negatively
impact the sale of our products. As an example, animal—free serum products are generally favored over bovine
serum. We may be unable to respond on a timely basis to the changing needs of our customer base and the new
technologies we design for our customers may prove to be ineffective. Our failure to develop and to introduce or
to enhance products able to compete with such new technologies in a timely manner could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition. We may be unable to respond on a
timely basis to the changing needs of our customer base and the new technologies we design for our customers
may prove to be ineffective.

We may be unable to realize our growth strategy if we cannot identify suitable acquisition opportunities in
the future.

As part of our business strategy, we expect to continue to grow our business through acquisitions of
technologies or companies. We may not identify or complete complementary acquisitions in a timely manner, on
a cost-effective basis, or at all. In addition, we compete with other companies, including large, well funded
competitors, to acquire suitable targets, and may not be able to acquire certain targets that we seek. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to execute this component of our growth strategy which may harm our business
and hinder our future growth.

To achieve desired growth rates as we become larger, we may seek larger or public companies as potential
acquisition candidates. The acquisition of a public company may involve additional risks, including the potential
for lack of recourse against public shareholders for undisclosed material liabilities of the acquired business. In
addition, if we were to proceed with one or more significant future acquisitions in which the consideration
consisted of cash, a substantial portion of our available cash resources could be used.

Our continued growth is dependent on our development and successful commercialization of new
products.

Our future success will depend in part on timely development and introduction of new products that address
changing market requirements. We believe that successful new product introductions provide a significant
competitive advantage because customers make an investment of time in selecting and learning to use a new
product. Customers are reluctant to switch to a competing product after making their initial selection. To the
extent that we fail to introduce new and innovative products, we may lose market share to our competitors, which
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will be difficult or impossible to regain. An inability, for technological or other reasons, to successfully develop
and introduce new products could reduce our growth rate or otherwise damage our business. In the past, we have
experienced, and are likely to experience in the future, delays in the development and introduction of products.
We cannot assure that we will keep pace with the rapid rate of change in life sciences research, or that our new
products will adequately meet the requirements of the marketplace or achieve market acceptance.

If we fail to attract, hire, develop and retain qualified personnel, we may not be able to design,
manufacture, market or sell our products or successfully grow our business.

Competition for individuals with skills including sales, marketing, research, product development,
engineering and others is strong and we may not be able to secure the personnel we need. The loss of the services
of any key personnel, or our inability to hire new personnel with the requisite skills, could restrict our ability to
develop new products and services or enhance existing products and services in a timely manner, sell products to
our customers or manage our business effectively. As part of our global supply chain initiative to improve
customer service and to amplify our product expertise, we have begun to concentrate our facilities in fewer
geographical areas in which there is high demand for qualified staff.

If we do not achieve or maintain the anticipated cost benefits of our global supply chain initiatives, our
future profitability may be adversely impacted.

In 2004, we began a coordinated multi-year program to reorganize and to consolidate our worldwide supply
chain function, including our manufacturing facilities. One of the purposes of this initiative was to reduce our
overall manufacturing costs and improve our gross margin performance over time. A reorganization with this
level of complexity and worldwide scope is subject to various execution risks. If we encounter unexpected delays
or costs, our gross margin may not improve as we had anticipated. For example, delays in the required
preparation and improvements of one of our primary facilities may defer the transfer of production from our
facilities targeted for closing, resulting in continued carrying costs for such facilities. These preparations are
subject to many factors, including the availability of construction materials and sophisticated production
equipment, qualified construction labor and qualified additional production personnel. Even after completion of
the program, we may not be able to obtain and maintain the anticipated efficiencies in our manufacturing and
supply chain, which would limit our ability to improve or maintain our gross margins.

If our consolidated manufacturing operations were disrupted, we may be unable to supply products to our
customers and achieve expected revenues.

We are in the process of executing a coordinated reorganization of our supply chain and manufacturing
operations. In an effort to better serve our customers and to attain efficiencies of scale and expertise, we are
consolidating the majority of our production facilities into fewer sites. Each of these remaining facilities serves
as our primary production facility for specific product lines. This concentration of production, however, exposes
us to a greater risk of disruption to our ability to manufacture and supply our products. If operation at any of
these facilities were disrupted, we may not be able to deliver products to our customers and achieve expected
revenues or earnings. If we were unable to reestablish production in a timely manner, we may lose customers and
have difficulty regaining them. It is uncertain whether the safety measures and contingency plans that we have
implemented or may implement will successfully address the risks that may arise if production is disrupted. Also,
there can be no assurance that the insurance that we maintain to protect against business interruption loss will be
adequate or that such insurance will continue to remain available on acceptable terms, if at all. The extent of the
coverage of our insurance could limit our ability to mitigate for lost sales and could result in such losses
materially and adversely affecting our operating results.

Sales of several of our products are dependent on a small number of customers, the loss of which may
harm our business and result in a reduction in revenues and earnings.

No single customer represents more than 10 percent of our annual sales. However, sales of some of our
products are dependent on a limited number of customers, who account for a significant portion of such sales.
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Some of these products are in areas in which we plan to grow substantially. The loss of such key customers for
such products, or a significant reduction in sales to those customers, could significantly reduce our revenues in
these products and adversely affect our future growth in such markets.

We may become involved in disputes regarding our patents and other intellectual property rights, which
could result in prohibition on the use of certain technology in current or planned products, exposure of the
business to significant liability and diversion of management’s focus.

We and our major competitors spend substantial time and resources developing and patenting new and
improved products and technologies. Many of our products are based on complex, rapidly developing
technologies. Although we try to identify all relevant third party patents and intellectual property rights, these
products could be developed by the business without knowledge of published or unpublished patent applications
that cover or use some aspect of these technologies. We also license products and technologies developed by
other biotechnology companies or academic research laboratories for further resale. We have been and may in
the future be sued by third parties alleging that we are infringing their intellectual property rights. These lawsuits
are expensive, take significant time and divert management’s focus from other business concerns. If we are found
to be infringing the intellectual property of others, we could be required to stop the infringing activity, or we may
be required to design around or license the intellectual property in question. If we are unable to obtain a required
license on acceptable terms, or are unable to design around any third party patent, we may be unable to sell some
of our products and services, which could result in reduced revenue. In addition, if we do not prevail, a court may
find damages or award other remedies in favor of the opposing party in any of these suits, which may adversely
affect our earnings.

Concern about the transmission of ‘“mad-cow disease” could reduce the demand for our cell culture
products that are derived from bovine serum.

The demand for several of our cell culture products could be adversely affected by concerns about the use of
bovine material in the process by which they are manufactured. The concern arises from the risk that the agent
causing bovine spongiform encephalopathy, or “mad-cow disease,” might be present in the raw materials used in
the production process and that the agent might be introduced into a therapeutic substance manufactured by one
of our customers. The regulatory authorities of certain countries, including Japan, have refused to approve
pharmaceuticals that are manufactured using a product that was derived from bovine serum or that was
manufactured by a process that uses bovine material. The regulatory authorities of other countries could adopt
similar restrictions.

Our operations must comply with environmental statutes and regulations, and any failure to comply could
result in extensive costs which would harm our business.

The manufacture of some of our products involves the use, transportation, storage and disposal of
hazardous, radioactive or toxic materials and is subject to various environmental protection and occupational
health and safety laws and regulations in the countries in which we operate. This has exposed us in the past, and
could expose us in the future, to risks of accidental contamination and events of non-compliance with
environmental laws. Any such occurrences could result in regulatory enforcement or personal injury and property
damage claims or could lead to a shutdown of some of our operations, which could have an adverse effect on our
business and results of operations. We currently incur costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations
and these costs may become more significant.

The environmental laws of many jurisdictions impose actual and potential obligations on us to remediate
contaminated sites. These obligations may relate to sites:

e that we currently own or operate;

e that we formerly owned or operated; or

e where waste from our operations was disposed.
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These environmental remediation obligations could reduce our operating results. In particular, our accruals
for these obligations may be insufficient if the assumptions underlying the accruals prove incorrect or if we are
held responsible for additional, currently undiscovered contamination.

A substantial fine or penalty, the payment of significant environmental remediation costs or the loss of a
permit or other authorization to operate or engage in our ordinary course of business could result in material,
unanticipated expenses and the possible inability to satisfy customer demand.

Our sales may be negatively affected by the implementation of second source programs by our customers.

For many customers, we are the single source supplier for one or more critical components used in their
production lines. We are aware of customers that have begun to implement second sourcing programs to reduce
the potential risk of disruptions to their production due to a supply bottleneck. These can include diversifying
purchases of one component among vendors or spreading the sources of components of a process, such as
purification, among different suppliers. If, as a result of these second sourcing programs, existing customers were
to choose another company to supply components that we currently supply, or if we lose future business
opportunities for which we would otherwise be qualified, our future revenues may be harmed.

QOur use of third party manufacturers exposes us to increased risks that may affect our ability to supply
our customers.

As part of our efforts to consolidate our manufacturing operations, we have increased the outsourcing of
certain manufacturing operations. For example, in 2006 we migrated most of our standard bioprocess systems
production to a company in India in which we have a minority equity interest. In addition, we often source
products resulting from collaborative development relationships from such development partners. Our increased
dependence on third party contract manufacturers exposes us to increased risks associated with delivery
schedules, manufacturing capability, quality control, quality assurance and costs. If any of our third party
manufacturers experiences delays, disruptions, capacity constraints or quality control problems in its
manufacturing operations or becomes insolvent, then product shipments to our customers could be delayed,
which would decrease our revenues and harm our competitive position and reputation.

Because we compete directly with one of our key suppliers and one of our significant distributors, our
results of operations could be adversely affected if either of these parties discontinues or materially
changes the terms of the agreement.

We currently source a key raw material from a significant competitor in the market into which we sell the
resulting products. Although we purchase these materials under a supply agreement which provides for some
supply protections, our business could be adversely affected if this supplier discontinues selling the raw materials
to us and if we have not established an alternate source of supply. In addition, one of our competitors also serves
as a significant distributor. If this distributor discontinued selling our products or materially changed the terms,
our sales and earnings could be adversely affected in the short term.

Violation of government regulations or voluntary quality programs could result in loss of sales and
customers and additional expense to attain compliance.

Several of our facilities are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and similar governmental bodies in
other countries. These facilities are subject to periodic inspection by the FDA and other similar governmental
bodies to ensure their compliance with applicable laws and regulations. New facilities, products and operating
procedures also may require approval by the FDA and/or similar governmental bodies in other countries. Failure
to comply with these laws and regulations could lead to sanctions by the governmental bodies, such as written
observations of deficiencies made following inspections, warning letters, product recalls, fines, product seizures
and consent decrees, which would be made available to the public. Such actions and publicity could affect our
ability to sell products and to provide our services.
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Several of our operations are also subject to U.S. Department of Agriculture regulations and various foreign
regulations for the sourcing, manufacturing and distribution of animal based proteins, all of which now apply to
us as a result of the acquisition. Our failure to comply with these requirements could negatively impact our
business and potentially cause the loss of customers and sales. ISO 9001:2000 quality standards are an
internationally recognized set of voluntary quality standards that require compliance with a variety of quality
requirements somewhat similar to the requirements of the FDA’s Quality System Regulations, which were
formerly known as Good Manufacturing Practices or GMP. Some of our facilities are registered under the ISO
standards. Failure to comply with this voluntary standard can lead to observations of non-compliance or even
suspension of ISO certification by the certifying unit. Loss of ISO certification could cause some customers to
purchase products from other suppliers.

If we experience a significant disruption in our information technology systems or if we fail to implement
new systems and software successfully, our business could be adversely affected.

We rely on one centralized information system throughout our company to keep financial records, process
orders, manage inventory, process shipments to customers and operate other critical functions. If we were to
experience a prolonged system disruption in the information technology systems that involve our interactions
with customers and suppliers, it could result in the loss of sales and customers, which could adversely affect our
business.

We are subject to economic, governmental, political, legal and other risks associated with our significant
international sales and operations, which could adversely affect our business.

We conduct operations throughout the world through a variety of subsidiaries and distributors. Sales outside
the United States were approximately 61 percent and 64 percent of total sales in 2006 and 2005, respectively. A
significant portion of our revenues, approximately 39 percent and 16 percent in 2006, is generated in Europe and
Asia, respectively. We anticipate that revenue from international operations will continue to represent a
significant portion of our revenues. In addition, two of our primary manufacturing facilities, Molsheim, France
and Cork, Ireland, and many of our employees and suppliers, are located outside the United States. Our sales and
earnings could be adversely affected by a variety of factors resulting from our international operations, including:

e changes in the political or economic conditions in a country or region, particularly in developing or
emerging markets;

e trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;

e our failure or the failure of our commercial partners to comply with U.S. laws applicable to foreign
operations or with applicable local laws;

e differing tax laws and changes in those laws;
e difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations; and

e differing regulatory requirements and changes in those requirements.

Foreign exchange fluctuations may adversely affect our reported earnings, the value of our assets and the
cash outflow for our debt repayment.

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in U.S. dollars, but a significant portion of our earnings
and expenditures are in other currencies. In 2006, we derived about 61 percent of our revenues from customers
outside the United States. Our sales made in countries other than the United States are typically made in the local
currencies of those countries. As a result, fluctuations in exchange rates have caused and will continue to cause
foreign currency transaction gains and losses. Fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and other
currencies may also affect the book value of our assets outside the United States. In addition, as of December 31,
2006, several of our European subsidiaries had €320 million of indebtedness outstanding under our revolving
credit facility denominated in Euros. We intend to repay in Euros from our European profits denominated in
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Euros. There can be no assurance that such cash flow from our European operations will be sufficient to repay
such debt, in which case we may need to repay from profits denominated in U.S. dollars. In such an event, a
significant appreciation of the Euro with respect to the U.S. dollar could expose us to additional foreign currency
risk. Due to the number of currencies involved, the variability of currency exposures and the potential volatility
of currency exchange rates, we cannot predict the effects of exchange rate fluctuations on future operating
results. We seek to minimize our currency exposure by coordinating our worldwide supply sourcing, actively
managing cross-border currency flows, and engaging in foreign exchange hedging transactions. Despite these
steps, there can be no assurance that our foreign currency management strategy will adequately protect our
operating results from the effects of future exchange rate fluctuations.

Reduction in our customers’ research and development budgets and government funding may result in
reduced sales.

Our customers include researchers at pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic institutions
and government and private laboratories throughout the world. Their research and development budgets and
activities have a large effect on the demand for our products and services. Fluctuations in our customers’ research
and development budgets occur due to changes in available resources, mergers of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, spending priorities and institutional budgetary policies. Our bioscience business could
be adversely impacted by any significant decrease in life sciences research and development expenditures by
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic institutions or government and private laboratories. In
addition, short term changes in administrative, regulatory or purchasing-related procedures can create
uncertainties or other impediments which can contribute to lower sales.

A portion of our bioscience sales have been to researchers, universities, government laboratories and private
foundations whose funding may be dependent in part upon grants from government agencies such as the U.S.
National Institutes of Health (“NIH”) and similar domestic and international agencies. NIH funds are subject to
reallocation, reduction or discontinuation, which could impact research projects using our products. Government
funding of research and development is subject to the political process, which is inherently fluid and
unpredictable. Our revenues may be adversely affected if our customers delay purchases as a result of
uncertainties surrounding the approval of government or industrial budget proposals. If researchers were not able
to obtain, for any extended period, government funding necessary to purchase our products or if there is a
decrease in overall research funding, it could reduce our bioscience sales and damage our business.

Our revenues may fluctuate, and this fluctuation could cause financial results to be below expectations.

Fluctuations in our operating results from period to period may occur for a number of reasons. In planning
our operating expenses for the foreseeable future, we assume that revenues will continue to grow. Generally
operating expenses cannot be adjusted quickly in the short term because we have significant fixed costs. If our
revenues decline or do not grow as anticipated, we may not be able to reduce our operating expenses accordingly.
Failure to achieve anticipated levels of revenue could therefore significantly harm our operating results for a
particular period.

A revenue shortfall could arise from any number of factors, some of which we cannot control. For example,
factors that may cause our results to vary by period include:

e the volume and timing of orders from customers for our products and services;

e the level and timing of our customers’ research and commercialization efforts;

* changes in the mix of our products and services;

e the number, timing and significance of new products and services introduced by our customers;

e our ability to develop, market and introduce new and enhanced products and services on a timely basis;

* changes in the cost, quality and availability of materials and components required to manufacture or use
our products;
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e the timing and costs of any acquisitions of businesses or technologies;
e the introduction of new products by us or our competitors;
e exchange rate fluctuations; and

e general economic conditions.

Increased exposure to product liability claims could adversely affect our earnings.

Product liability is a major risk in testing and marketing biotechnology and pharmaceutical products offered
by our customers. Currently these risks are primarily borne by our customers. As our products and services are
further integrated into our customers’ production processes, we may become increasingly exposed to product
liability and other claims in the event that the use of our products or services is alleged to have resulted in
adverse effects. There can be no assurance that a future product liability claim or series of claims brought against
us would not have an adverse effect on our business or the results of operations. Our business may be materially
and adversely affected by a successful product liability claim or claims in excess of any insurance coverage that
we may have. In addition, product liability claims, regardless of their merits, could be costly and divert
management’s attention, and adversely affect our reputation and the demand for our products.

We heavily rely on air cargo carriers and other third party package delivery services, and a significant
disruption in these services or significant increases in prices may disrupt our ability to ship products or
import materials, increase our costs and lower our profitability.

We ship a significant portion of our products to our customers through independent package delivery
companies. In addition, we transport materials among our company facilities, including our facilities in France
and Ireland, and import raw materials from worldwide sources. Consequently, we heavily rely on air cargo
carriers and third party package delivery providers. If any of our key third party package delivery providers
experiences a significant disruption such that any of our products, components or raw materials would not be
delivered in a timely fashion or we would incur additional shipping costs that we could not pass on to our
customers, our costs may increase and our relationships with certain of our customers may be adversely affected.
In addition, if our third party package delivery providers increase prices, and we are not able to find comparable
alternatives or make adjustments to our delivery network, our profitability could be adversely affected.

The stated value of long-lived and intangible assets may become impaired and result in an impairment
charge.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $2,028.4 million of long-lived and intangible assets. We
continue to invest in the construction and upgrading of our manufacturing and research facilities which may have
the effect of increasing the recorded value of our long-lived assets. If we are successful in acquiring additional
complementary businesses and technologies, a substantial portion of the value of these may be recorded as
goodwill, an intangible asset. The carrying amounts of long-lived and intangible assets are affected whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any asset may not be recoverable. Such
events or changes might include a significant decline in market share, a significant decline in profits, rapid
changes in technology, failure to achieve the benefits of capacity increases and utilization, significant litigation
arising out of an acquisition or other matters. Adverse events or changes in circumstances may affect the
estimated undiscounted future operating cash flows expected to be derived from long-lived and intangible assets.
If at any time we determine that an impairment has occurred, we will be required to reflect the impaired value as
a charge, resulting in a reduction in earnings in the quarter such impairment is identified and a corresponding
reduction in our net asset value. The potential recognition of impairment in the carrying value, if any, could have
a material and adverse affect on our results of operations.

We may require substantial additional capital to pursue strategic acquisitions or alliances, which capital
we may not be able to obtain on commercially reasonable terms, if at all.

We anticipate that our currently planned capital requirements will be satisfied by the future operating cash
flow, current cash balances, borrowings under our revolver, or other existing financing sources. To the extent that
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we desire to pursue a strategic acquisition or alliance requiring substantial cash expenditures for which our
existing resources and credit facilities are insufficient, we may need to raise funds through public or private debt
or equity financings. There is no assurance that such additional funds will be available or, if available, that we

can obtain such funds on terms acceptable to us.

If adequate funds are not available, we may have to forgo desired acquisitions or alliances, or reduce
expenditures for research and development, production or marketing, which could have an adverse effect on our
business. To the extent that additional capital is raised through the sale of equity or convertible securities, the

issuance of such securities could result in dilution to our shareholders.

Future issuances of common stock may depress the trading price of our common stock and our convertible

notes.

Any issuance of equity securities, including the issuance of shares upon conversion of our convertible notes,
could dilute the interests of our existing stockholders, including holders who have received shares upon
conversion of their notes, and could substantially decrease the trading price of our common stock and our
convertible notes. We may issue equity securities in the future for a number of reasons, including to finance our
operations and business strategy (including in connection with acquisitions, strategic collaborations or other
transactions), to adjust our ratio of debt to equity, to satisfy our obligations upon the exercise of outstanding

warrants or options or for other reasons.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable

Item 2.  Properties.

Our headquarters are located in leased facilities in Billerica, Massachusetts. We own or lease various other
facilities worldwide for manufacturing, distribution, warehousing, research and development, sales and
demonstration, service, and administration. The following is a list of our principal and other materially important
facilities. We use substantially all of the space in these facilities and we believe these facilities are maintained in

good working order and suitable for their present uses.

Bedford, MA ............ Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office
Molsheim, France ........ Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office
Jaffrey, NH ............. Manufacturing, warehouse and office

Cork, Ireland ............ Manufacturing, warehouse and office
Burlington, MA . ......... Warehouse and distribution

Billerica, MA ........... Research and office

Temecula, CA ........... Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office
Danvers, MA ............ Manufacturing, research and office

Billerica, MA ........... Office (headquarters)

Kankakee, IL ............ Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office
St. Charles, MO ......... Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office
Livingston, Scotland . . .. .. Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office
Consett, England ......... Manufacturing, research, warehouse and office

Approximate
Owned Floor Space
or Sq. Ft.
Leased (000s)
Owned 341
Owned 321
Owned 255
Owned 178
Leased 130
Both 127
Owned 111
Owned 108
Leased 104
Both 83
Owned 81
Both 60
Leased 36

None of our owned facilities are subject to any material encumbrances, except for a finance lease on a

portion of the Molsheim, France property.
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As part of a coordinated program to optimize our global manufacturing operations, in 2006 we sold our
Cidra, Puerto Rico facility. We are currently leasing from the new owner the capacity we believe we need to
maintain our operations at this facility until early in 2008, when we intend to cease operations at this facility.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are not currently a party to any material legal proceeding.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

This item is not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Millipore’s Common Stock, $1.00 par value, is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under
the symbol “MIL”. The following table sets forth, for the indicated fiscal periods, (i) the high and low sales
prices of Millipore’s Common Stock (as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape). On
February 21, 2007, there were approximately 29,661 registered and beneficial shareholders of record.

Range of Stock Prices
2006 2005
High Low High Low
First QUArter ... ..ottt e $74.52  $63.84 $49.12 $42.84
Second QUArter . ...............ii $76.95  $60.53  $56.84  $42.60
Third Quarter . . ...........o ... $67.36  $59.58  $65.05  $57.65
Fourth Quarter . .......... ... ..o, $70.16  $60.51 $67.40  $59.90

We did not declare any cash dividends during 2006 or 2005. We do not currently have plans to make future
cash dividend declarations or payments.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected consolidated financial data are derived from our Consolidated Financial Statements
and notes thereto and should be read in connection with and are qualified in their entirety by our Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto and other financial information included elsewhere in this Form 10-K
report. Our results from discontinued operations reflect the financial results of Mykrolis Corporation
(“Mykrolis”) through February 27, 2002, the date on which we distributed our ownership of Mykrolis common
stock to our shareholders.
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION
FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

2006M 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

NetsaleS ... $1,255,371 $ 991,031 $ 883,263 $799,622 $704,251
Costofsales ............. ... 625,608 472,023 412,129 369,174 308,146

Gross profit .......... ... ... .. ... 629,763 519,008 471,134 430,448 396,105
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . . 398,842 309,029 270,796 246,819 219,058
Research and development expenses ......... 86,617 66,052 62,485 58,385 52,353
Restructuring andother .................... — 3,149 — (1,400)®  1,124©

Operating profit . ..................... 144,304 140,778 137,853 126,644 123,570
Lossoninvestments ...................... — — — — (2,344)D
Interestincome ............. .. ... .. .. ... 21,415 3,466 2,073 2,035 1,347
Interest eXpense . ...........ouvininenn... (45,336) 6,711) (9,447) (16,505)  (18,981)
Income before income taxes and minority

INEETESE .« oottt et e e 120,383 137,533 130,479 112,174 103,592
Provision for income taxes ................. 21,462 57,3650 24,923 11,378 22,791
Minority interest . ..............c.. oo 1,937 — — — —
Income from continuing operations .......... 96,984 80,168 105,556 100,796 80,801
Income on disposal of discontinued operations,
netoftaxes ............ .. ... ... .. ... — — — — 2,900

Netincome . ..........ooiuiiniinnennnnn.. $ 96,984 $ 80,168 $ 105,556 $100,796 $ 83,701
Basic earnings per share:

Continuing operations ................. $ 1.82 § 1.57 $ 213 $ 208 $ 1.68

Discontinued operations ............... — — — — 0.06

Basic earnings per share ............... $ 1.82 % 1.57 $ 213 $ 208 $ 1.74
Diluted earnings per share:

Continuing operations ................. $ 1.79 % 1.55 $ 210 $ 206 $ 1.67

Discontinued operations ............... — — — — 0.06

Diluted earnings per share . ............. $ 1.79 § 1.55 $ 210 $ 206 $ 1.73
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ......... . 53,160 50,953 49,469 48,574 48,170

Diluted ........... ... ... ... ....... 54,245 51,659 50,201 49,046 48,448
Balance Sheet Data (at end of year):

Working capital ...................... $ 307,525 $ 824,502 $ 377,846 $316,070 $255,282

Total assets ..............c.ccouuun... 2,771,491 1,646,665 1,013,819 960,298 810,151

Long-termdebt ...................... 1,316,256® 552,285 147,000 216,000 334,000

Total shareholders’ equity .............. 948,411 791,563 638,850 464,681 299,707

(1) Our 2006 statement of operations and balance sheet data includes the effect of our acquisition of
Serologicals. The results of Serologicals’ operations have been included in our consolidated statement of
operations since the date of the acquisition.

(2) In the third quarter of 2005, we expensed purchased in-process research and development related to the
acquisition of NovAseptic because these costs had no alternative future uses and had not reached
technological feasibility.
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3)
“4)

®)

(6)
)

®)

Provision for income taxes for 2005 included $30,634 of tax obligations related to the repatriation of foreign
earnings and $3,177 related to the release of tax valuation allowance.

Amount represents the reversal of accruals initially related to restructuring charges taken in connection with
our 2001 restructuring program which included reducing, consolidating and outsourcing certain
manufacturing operations, centralizing European shared services (including order processing, cash
collections and cash application processes) and streamlining certain corporate shared services and divisional
overhead functions.

Provision for income taxes for 2003 included a tax valuation allowance release of $21,971 related to certain
foreign tax credits and a $10,000 additional tax provision related to exposures previously mitigated by the
reserved foreign tax credits.

In 2002, we settled a lawsuit that resulted in a payment of $1,124 in damages and license fees.

In 2002, we recognized $2,344 of losses attributable to investments, of which $2,200 was associated with
PurePulse Technologies, Inc. (“PurePulse”), from which we had acquired rights to sell virus inactivation
products. PurePulse suspended operations in 2002 and we recorded an impairment charge for the full
amount of the investment.

In 2006, we issued $565,000 of 3.75 percent convertible notes and €250,000, or $330,033, of 5.875 percent
senior notes to fund the acquisition of Serologicals.

Note: Certain reclassifications have been made to previously reported financial data to conform to the 2006
presentation.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is intended to help the reader understand
the results of operations and financial condition of Millipore Corporation. MD&A is provided as a supplement to,
and should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial
statements.

Business Overview

Millipore is a global life science company that provides technologies, tools and services facilitating the
discovery, development and production of new therapeutic drugs, vaccines and detection tools, together with
other applications. We serve the worldwide biotechnology, pharmaceutical and life science research industries by
improving productivity and efficiency. We primarily sell consumable products. Our products and services are
based on a variety of enabling technologies, including filtration, chromatography, cell culture supplements,
antibodies and cell lines. In life science research, our Bioscience division offers products and services for drug
discovery, gene and protein research, research in the fields of molecular biology, cell biology and
immunodetection, and general laboratory applications. For the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries, our
Bioprocess division offers products and services for process development, scale-up, production and quality
assurance of therapeutics. Our intimate knowledge of our customers’ research and manufacturing process needs
ensures that our products and services are designed, recommended, used and supported to maximize the benefit
to our customers.

On July 14, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Serologicals Corporation (“‘Serologicals™) for
approximately $1.5 billion including the assumption of debt. We expect the acquisition of Serologicals to
significantly strengthen the market position of our Bioscience division by increasing its product portfolio into
fast growing markets such as drug discovery products and services, nuclear function and stem cell research
products. The acquisition is also expected to facilitate our entrance into the upstream bioprocessing market by
gaining a cell culture supplements offering for our Bioprocess division. We expect to increase sales of
Serologicals’ products in international markets such as Europe, Asia and Japan, where we have a significant sales
and marketing presence. In connection with this acquisition, we issued 3.75 percent convertible senior notes
amounting to $565.0 million, 5.875 percent senior notes amounting to €250.0 million (approximately $330.0
million), and amended our existing revolving credit facility.

On April 27, 2006, we acquired Newport Bio Systems, Inc. (“Newport™) for $8.6 million including the
assumption of debt. Newport was a provider of process containers, tubing manifolds, and assembly systems for
collecting, storing, and transferring process fluids used in biopharmaceutical production. The addition of
Newport’s single-use process containers, which include bags and liners, to our Mobius™ disposable solutions
provides us with the industry’s broadest range of disposable products. By manufacturing all of the components of
an integrated disposable solution, we will eliminate the need for our customers to validate multiple products from
multiple suppliers. This acquisition reflects our strategic focus on increasing our presence in the disposable
manufacturing market and builds on our 2005 acquisition of NovAseptic A.B. (“NovAseptic”).

We compete in two related markets, life sciences research and biopharmaceutical manufacturing. Our
Bioscience division serves the life sciences research market, principally composed of companies and institutions
conducting basic research, drug discovery and other analytical laboratory work. Our Bioprocess division serves
the biopharmaceutical manufacturing market, principally composed of biotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies that develop, manufacture and sell products for the diagnosis, prevention and treatment of diseases.

In response to accelerating demand for healthcare improvement and disease prevention, new therapeutic
products, vaccines, diagnostics and related products continues to grow. New therapeutic products and vaccines,
particularly biologics based on recombinant proteins, are being developed, approved and produced in growing
numbers.
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We leverage our brand, global infrastructure, proprietary technologies, highly qualified sales force,
manufacturing operations and shared service centers to support our worldwide operations. We sell thousands of
products and we are continually developing and acquiring new proprietary products and technologies to advance
our business. With the addition of the Serologicals product portfolio, we believe we now offer a more balanced
product mix with strong growth and profitability characteristics.

Because of the differing applications required by each of our target markets, we believe our approach to
these markets benefits from more specialized and focused attention. Accordingly, we have aligned our business
to better address each of these markets.

Business Drivers

The market drivers of our Bioscience division include global expansion of laboratories and the
corresponding products used by scientists in these laboratories to conduct drug development and protein
research. We expect strong international growth in research markets to continue, particularly in Asia.

Continued pressures on global pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies to improve research and
development productivity and to identify new drug candidates has led to increasing demand for our products that
increase laboratory productivity. Products that are already developed, validated and optimized with each other
save time and increase efficiency for the researcher, particularly when combined in kits. Our acquisition of
Serologicals added many new products, greatly extending the reach of our consumables, reagents and other
products into the most popular laboratory protocols. We believe customers are willing to pay a premium for
innovation, expertise and streamlined purchase and service benefits.

The life science research market is also being driven by an increasing focus on virus research due to public
health concerns and research precipitated by bioterrorism defense efforts. The growth in clinical tests worldwide
due to an aging population and improvements in clinical diagnostics technology is increasing the demand for
consumable products used in these tests.

The market drivers of our Bioprocess division include increasing demand and production volumes of
marketed therapeutics and an accelerating number of approvals for new biologics. In particular, a higher number
of approvals for monoclonal antibodies, recombinant vaccines and other recombinant protein-based therapeutics
are driving the market. Monoclonal antibodies, which are separation-intensive, complex to produce, and require
significant use of our Bioprocess solutions, are being approved at faster rates and are being produced in larger
volumes due to increasing demand and their ability to treat intractable diseases. The growth in biologics is
creating an increase in demand for our consumable products that enable the production of therapeutic drugs. We
provide a number of technologies that can be used in small-scale production of a drug and reliably scale up to
commercial size manufacturing volumes. Our recent acquisition of the cell culture business of Serologicals
established our presence in our customers’ upstream process. We are now strategically positioned to gain greater
customer access, to increase our applications knowledge, and to identify new technologies and customer needs
for downstream operations earlier, enabling us to optimize our customers’ productivity. As a result, we expect
our revenues related to a specific drug will increase over the various stages of the drug approval process; in
particular, as the drug moves into later stage clinical trials and ultimately into commercial production.

The quarterly revenues in our Bioprocess division can vary significantly, particularly due to fluctuations
associated with our business related to biologics. Additionally, new initiatives by biotechnology and
pharmaceutical companies to improve their manufacturing productivity have also increased the demand for our
products and services. In the United States, the Food and Drug Administration’s Process Analytical Technologies
Initiative is affecting how our customers measure and characterize their production processes, which is creating
demand for faster and more frequent testing utilizing our products.
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Strategy

In June 2005, we announced a new strategy designed to capitalize on our strong brand and market position
and to support our plans for growth over the next five years. As part of this new strategy, we are seeking to
expand our products and services, build new technological capabilities and leverage acquisitions and
collaborations. In order to meet these objectives, we established the following strategic priorities: continue to
strengthen our leadership position with our biopharmaceutical manufacturing customers; become a strategic
supplier to bioscience research markets; lead our industry in product quality and manufacturing effectiveness;
and bring new talent into the organization. During 2005, we began to execute against this strategy, acquiring two
companies, NovAseptic and MicroSafe B.V. (“MicroSafe”), and forming a collaboration with Gen-Probe
Incorporated for next generation process monitoring tools. During 2006 we acquired Newport and Serologicals.
We continue to execute a number of initiatives to improve further our profitability including significant
reductions in the number of our worldwide manufacturing facilities, aggressive improvements to our
procurement and manufacturing processes, market and customer segmentation, and enhancements of sales
productivity.

2006 Highlights
Our consolidated revenues were derived from the Bioprocess and Bioscience divisions as follows:
Year ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004
BiOProCeSS .« oo vt 60% 61% 59%
BioSCIENCE . ... ﬂ% 2% ﬂ %
Total . ... @% @% @%

Our strategy includes maintaining balance across our divisions in order to eliminate the negative impact of
any one division or economy. This balance is achieved through the revenue split above and the geographic
dispersion of revenue from our divisions. The composition of our geographic revenues is as follows:

Year ended

December 31,
2006 2005 " 2004
AMETICAS . ..ottt 45% 43% 42%
Burope .. ... .. 39% 40% 40%
ASI/PACITIC ..ot 16% 17% 18%
TOAl .. ettt 100% 100% 100%

As part of our growth strategy, we invest in businesses in certain countries such as Brazil, China, India, and
in Eastern Europe that carry high levels of currency, political, and/or economic risk. At December 31, 2006, our
investment in none of these countries exceeded 1.0 percent of shareholders’ equity.

The strength of our divisions, value of our divisional and geographic balance, and execution of our strategy
manifested itself in the 2006 operating results. Both of our divisions experienced solid organic growth in 2006.

Bioprocess Bioscience Consolidated
2006 2005 2004 2006 % 2004 2006 2005 2004
Reported growth ....... 25% 16% 10% 30% 7% 11% 27% 12% 10%
Less: Foreign currency
translation .......... 0% 0% 5% 0% 0% 5% 0% 0% 5%
Acquisitions ...... 17% 4% 0% 20% _O% 0% 18% 2% 0%
Organic growth ........ 8% 12% 5% 10% 7% 6% 9% 10% 5%
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The strong life sciences research market generated better than expected business volume in our Bioscience
division. This was primarily attributable to the strength of the laboratory water business, new products, expansion
in international growth markets, and tactical marketing and sales enhancements in accordance with our strategy.
The Bioprocess division also generated solid sales growth as a result of higher volume as compared to an
exceptionally strong year in 2005. The primary driver of the 2006 sales growth was demand from our
biopharmaceutical customers for our core filtration and chromatography products.

In addition to revenue growth, an improvement in consolidated operating profit also contributed to the
strong growth in earnings per share. Operating profit increased as a result of lower costs realized in connection
with our ongoing focus factory initiative, a business mix favoring the Bioscience division’s higher margin
laboratory water products, selling, general and administrative expense control, and accretive business
acquisitions. These operating profit improvements were significantly offset by costs and expenses associated
with the focus factory initiative, business acquisitions and integration, stock compensation associated with a new
accounting standard, and the curtailment of our U.S. pension plan.

In addition to organic revenue growth, our strategy also contemplates business acquisitions. We invested
$1.5 billion and $0.1 billion, including debt assumed, in the acquisition of businesses in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Acquisitions in 2006 included Serologicals, which amounted to $1,475 million, and Newport, which
amounted to $8.6 million. The 2005 acquisitions included NovAseptic and MicroSafe, which amounted to
$105 million.

Results of Operations

Revenues

Net sales and percent sales growth by division, as compared with the prior years, is summarized in the table
below:

Percent sales

Year ended December 31, growth
Net sales by division ($ in millions): 2006 2005 2004 w %
BiOPIOCESS .« v v v v et e e e $ 749.8 $601.4 $519.9 25% 16%
Bioscience . .......... .. 505.6 389.6 363.4 30% 7%
Total ...... ... ... .. $1,255.4  $991.0 $883.3 27% 12%

Net sales and percent sales growth by geography, as compared with the prior years, is summarized in the
table below:

Percent sales

Year ended December 31, growth
Net sales by geography ($ in millions): 2006 2005 2004 w %
AMETICAS . . ..ot $ 5648 $419.6 $367.3 35% 14%
Burope ... ..o 491.0 399.6 353.6  23% 13%
Asia/Pacific . ......... ... . . . 199.6 171.8 162.4 16% 6%
Total ... $1,2554  $991.0 $883.3 27%  12%

The consolidated revenue increase of 27 percent in 2006 to $1,255.4 million reflects organic growth of 9
percent and revenues from acquisitions of 18 percent. The Bioprocess division experienced 8 percent organic
growth and the Bioscience divsion experienced 10 percent organic growth.
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Bioprocess Division

Bioprocess revenue of $749.8 million for 2006 increased $148.4 million, or 24.7 percent, as compared to
2005. Revenue growth was primarily attributable to business acquisitions and higher sales volume as a result of
the strong demand for our differentiated products. Changes in foreign currency rates and product pricing had
insignificant effects on the year- over-year comparisons. Revenue contributed by acquired businesses in 2006
represented approximately $100.1 million, or 67.5 percent, of the year-over-year revenue increase. Excluding
business acquisitions, Bioprocess division revenue increased $48.2 million, or 8.0 percent. Organic revenue
growth was primarily attributable to strong demand for our core filtration and chromatography media products in
the biotechnology market as a result of continued increase in biopharmaceutical production, particularly for
monoclonal antibodies. Our customers are making investments to increase manufacturing capacity for
biopharmaceutical drugs and expanding biotechnology product offerings through acquisitions and internal
development. We believe this is a positive long-term trend for us and we expect to sustain revenue growth for our
core products. Organic revenue growth was also positively affected by increased sales of our NovaSeptum
products, which are used by biotechnology customers for disposable sampling. We acquired this product line
early in the third quarter of 2005. This increased revenue level is an example of the effectiveness of our sales
force at integrating acquired products into our existing distribution network.

From a geographic perspective and excluding the effects of acquired businesses, revenues in the Americas,
Europe and Asia/Pacific increased $22.1 million, $19.2 million, and $7.0 million, respectively. The Americas and
European increases were primarily driven by sales of our core process filtration and chromatography media
products. The majority of the remaining sales increase occurred in international growth markets, particularly in
China and India. These increases were the result of our direct investment in sales and marketing and
infrastructure for these markets. Weaker market conditions for our products in Japan somewhat offset the Asia/
Pacific market revenue growth.

During 2005, Bioprocess sales increased 15.7 percent as compared with 2004. Excluding the effects of
business acquisitions, the division’s revenue growth rate was 12.5 percent. The division experienced strong
demand for chromatography media and other consumable filtration devices by customers for use in the
production of monoclonal antibody and recombinant protein therapeutics as well as for vaccines.

Bioscience Division

Bioscience revenue of $505.6 million for 2006 increased $116.0 million, or 29.8 percent, as compared to
2005. Changes in foreign currency rates and product pricing had insignificant effects on the year-over-year
comparisons. The Serologicals acquisition in 2006 represented approximately $78.1 million, or 67.4 percent, of
the year-over-year revenue increase. Excluding the Serologicals acquisition, Bioscience division revenue
increased $37.9 million, or 9.7 percent. Organic revenue growth was primarily attributable to higher demand for
our laboratory water and life science filtration products, higher sales in growing international markets, and the
impact of new products launched late in 2005. This growth was driven by increased levels of life science research
and development now occurring in both universities and pharmaceutical companies, particularly in North
America. The international market growth was also the result of higher sales of laboratory water products. Our
customers are building and expanding their research laboratories in these markets and one of the first investments
they make are in systems to produce purified water. Our successful implementation of initiatives designed to
align sales and product management goals, to prioritize key customer relationships, and to launch targeted sales
and marketing campaigns has positioned us well with these research customers, allowing us to serve them early
in the drug development process.

From a geographic perspective and excluding the effects of Serologicals, revenues in the Americas, Europe
and Asia/Pacific increased $13.3 million, $14.0 million, and $10.6 million, respectively. These increases were
primarily driven by sales of our laboratory water and life science products, and in the case of China and India,
our sales and marketing and infrastructure investments in these growth markets.
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During 2005, Bioscience sales grew 7.2 percent as compared with 2004. Excluding the effects of changes in
foreign currency translation rates, Bioscience revenue increased $44.9 million or 6.9 percent. Strong demand for
consumable products used in laboratory water purification, drug discovery and other general filtration
applications was partially offset by declining sales of products used in OEM devices and genomics applications
by life science laboratories. In addition, services provided to customers for water purification equipment grew as
the installed base of equipment continued to grow.

Gross Profit Margin

Year ended December 31,

($ in millions): 2006 2005 2004
GroSS PIOfIt . . oo oot e e et e et et $629.8  $519.0 $471.1
Percentage of sales . ...... ... .. ... 502%  52.4%  53.3%

Gross profit increases in 2006 resulted from lower costs realized in connection with our ongoing focused
factory initiative and a business mix favoring our high margin Bioscience division laboratory water products.
However, the gross profit margin declined 220 basis points as these increases were more than offset primarily by
the amortization of the purchase accounting adjustments to record inventories acquired from Serologicals at fair
market value of $24.9 million, or 200 basis points; amortization of intangible assets acquired of $4.6 million, or
40 basis points; and acquisition integration costs of $4.5 million, or 40 basis points. We expect to incur the
remainder of the inventory amortization adjustment amount of approximately $11.1 million in the first half of
2007 as we sell the acquired Serologicals inventory. Costs associated with our focus factory initiative (primarily
employee separation costs, facility closure costs and accelerated depreciation) also lowered our gross margins
both this year and last year. These costs amounted to $23.2 million in 2006 compared with $12.5 million in 2005.
We will continue with our focus factory initiative in 2007 and plan to move manufacturing operations of two
additional locations. We expect the costs of this activity to be less than costs incurred in 2006. Stock-based
compensation charges associated with the implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”) also had an unfavorable effect
on the year-over-year comparisons. SFAS No. 123(R) costs lowered gross profits by $1.8 million in 2006.

Gross profit as a percentage of sales was 52.4 percent in 2005 and 53.3 percent in 2004. The decrease in our
gross margin in 2005 as compared to 2004 was primarily attributable to $12.5 million costs recorded in
connection with our focus factory initiatives, which included $6.8 million for severance, $2.4 million for
accelerated depreciation and $3.3 million for inventory write-downs. In addition, our 2005 gross profit margin
was negatively impacted by the sale of products acquired in connection with the NovAseptic acquisition as the
value of the acquired inventories were written up to fair value under the purchase accounting rules. These were
offset by improvements in production costs as a result of improved execution in our global supply chain as well
as higher overall production volume in 2005. Movements in currency exchange rates did not have a significant
impact on our gross margin in 2005.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year ended December 31,

($ in millions): 2006 2005 2004
Selling, general and administrative €Xpenses . ..................... $398.8  $309.0 $270.8
Percentage of sales . .......... .o 31.8%  31.2%  30.7%

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses increased $89.8 million, or 29.1 percent, in 2006 as
compared to 2005. The primary drivers of the higher SG&A expenses were the inclusion of Serologicals’
expenses amounting to $30.3 million, Serologicals integration costs, significantly higher amortization of
intangible assets, and SFAS No. 123(R) costs. Serologicals integration costs were $9.7 million in 2006 and were
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primarily attributable to professional advisor fees, employee separations, and incremental travel. Amortization
expense related to acquisitions increased $7.0 million in 2006 as compared to 2005. We anticipate amortization
of intangible assets to be approximately $48.8 million in 2007. SG&A also increased $2.1 million in 2006 for
estimated costs related to an existing environmental liability and $8.7 million attributable to the curtailment of
our retirement plan, neither of which we expect to recur. Employee stock-based compensation expenses
contributed $8.8 million to the year over year increase, as a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R). Additional
drivers for higher SG&A expenses were increased investments in international growth markets and increased
headcount in both Bioprocess and Bioscience divisions to support our sales and marketing initiatives in 2006.

SG&A expenses increased $38.2 million or 14.1 percent in 2005 as compared to 2004. Included in our 2005
SG&A expenses were $11.6 million executive transition costs and $3.2 million severance related to our
divisional consolidation as compared to $4.4 million in CEO transition costs recorded in 2004. The executive
transition costs included costs associated with the CEO transition and other executive termination agreements.
Higher SG&A expenses in 2005 also included $11.3 million higher incentive compensation and salaries as a
result of improved operating results and increases in our overall employee headcount. In addition, we incurred
higher professional fees in 2005 as a result of various corporate initiatives, including repatriation of foreign
earnings, development of corporate strategy, recruiting costs, sales training, and demolition costs for our Bedford
campus. Operating expenses from our NovAseptic and MicroSafe acquisitions also accounted for $7.5 million of
the increase in our SG&A expenses. The demolition costs for our Bedford campus were for site preparation for
our new research and development facility which was completed in 2006.

Research and Development Expenses

Year ended December 31,

($ in millions): 2006 2005 2004
Research and development .. ........ ... .. .. i $86.6  $66.0  $62.5
Percentage of sales ....... ... .. .. .. 69% 6.7% T.1%

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses increased $20.6 million, or 31.1 percent, in 2006 as
compared to 2005. Higher R&D expenses in 2006 were primarily attributable to the inclusion of Serologicals
expenses amounting to $9.8 million and related integration costs of $1.8 million. Employee stock-based
compensation expense accounted for $1.6 million of the year-over-year increase, which was the result of
adopting SFAS No. 123(R) as of January 1, 2006.

R&D expenses increased $3.6 million, or 5.7 percent, in 2005 compared to 2004. Included in 2005 R&D
expenses were a $0.4 million increase in incentive compensation and salaries, $0.8 million expenses from our
new acquisitions, and $0.5 million severance related to the consolidation of our Laboratory Water and Life
Science operating segments.

Purchased In-process Research and Development

In 2005, we wrote off $3.1 million of purchased in-process R&D costs in connection with our NovAseptic
acquisition. This represented the fair value of two R&D projects that were still in development stage prior to
reaching technological feasibility and were deemed to have no alternative future use. These projects, which were
approximately 50 percent complete at the date of acquisition, were expected to be completed in 2006 with an
estimated additional spending of approximately $0.7 million, primarily related to labor costs. The estimated fair
value of these projects was determined based on the use of a discounted cash flow model. For each project, the
estimated after-tax cash flows were discounted to the present value using a discount rate of 18.0 percent.
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Interest Income/Expense

Interest income increased $17.9 million in 2006 as compared to 2005. We earned interest income this year
as a result of investing the proceeds of borrowings under our revolver in December 2005 and under our 3.75
percent convertible senior notes and the 5.875 percent senior notes issued in June 2006 in connection with the
acquisition of Serologicals.

Year ended December 31,

($ in millions): 2006 2005 2004
INtErest EXPENSE . . .« vttt et e $45.3 $6.7 $9.4
Average interest rate during theyear ............... .. .. .. ... ..... 43%  5.8% 4.8%

Interest expense increased $38.6 million in 2006 as compared 2005. The increases were primarily
attributable to a full year of borrowings under our revolving credit facility as well as borrowings under the 3.75
percent convertible senior notes and the 5.875 percent senior notes issued in June 2006 in connection with the
Serologicals acquisition. The Serologicals acquisition in July 2006 was financed with the borrowings under these
debt instruments. Initial revolver borrowings occurred in December 2005 in connection with the repatriation of
earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act. Commitment fees of $1.3 million associated with a bridge loan
commitment we secured in connection with the Serologicals acquisition also contributed to the interest expense
increase in 2006 versus the prior year.

Interest expense decreased $2.7 million in 2005 as compared with 2004 which was the result of a decreased
amount of average debt outstanding as well as increased cash balances due to strong operating cash flows.
During the first half of 2005, we repaid $47.0 million of borrowings under our prior revolving credit facility. In
December 2005, we borrowed $452.3 million under a new revolving credit facility in connection with the
repatriation of foreign earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act. The incremental interest expense from
this borrowing was negligible because we borrowed the funds at the end of 2005 and invested the cash received
in various short-term commercial paper and other marketable securities.

Provision for Income Taxes

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Effective income taxrate ................iintinirinniananean.. 17.8% 41.7% 19.1%

The effective income tax rates for 2006, 2005 and 2004 reflected the tax benefit associated with lower tax
rates on international earnings, which we intend to indefinitely reinvest outside of the United States.

The significant decrease in the 2006 effective tax rate as compared to 2005 was attributable to our 2005
repatriation of foreign earnings in accordance with the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. The 2006 income
tax provision was $30.6 lower, and the effective increase tax rate was 22.2 percentage points lower, than 2005 as
a result of the repatriation. The 2006 effective tax rate was also lowered by significant Serologicals integration
costs incurred in the United States in the second half of the year and costs surrounding the transfer of production
activities from Puerto Rico, both of which caused a shift of pre-tax income to lower tax rate jurisdictions as
compared to 2005. In 2007, we are projecting a higher tax rate due to forecasted levels of taxable income in
higher tax rate jurisdictions as compared to our 2006 profit mix.

In the normal course of business, we are examined by various tax authorities, including the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”). In 2006, the IRS completed the examination phase of 2002 and 2003 and commenced
examination of 2004 and 2005. Although the outcome of these examinations cannot be determined, we believe
adequate reserve has been provided for any potential unfavorable financial statement impact. Any reduction of
these contingent liabilities or additional assessment would increase or decrease net income, respectively, in the
period such determination is made.
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The higher tax rate in 2005 as compared to 2004 was primarily a result of of the tax obligations related to
the repatriation of foreign earnings noted above, partially offset by the release of $3.2 million of tax valuation
allowance. The remainder of the increase in our effective tax rate was the result of geographic distribution of our
profits.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

The following table shows information about our capitalization as of the dates indicated:

Total capitalization ($ in millions, except ratio amounts) December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Cash and cashequivalents .................c.ovviinnno... $ 77 $ 537
Totaldebt ....... ... .. .. . 1,416 552
Net debt (total debt less cash and cash equivalents) .......... 1,339 15
Total capitalization (debt plus equity) .. ................... 2,365 1,344
Net capitalization (debt plus equity less cash and cash

equivalents) .. ....... . 2,288 807
Debt to total capitalization . . ........... ... .. .. . .. ... 59.9% 41.1%
Net debt to total capitalization . .......................... 56.6% 1.1%

We assess our liquidity in terms of our ability to generate cash to fund our operating, investing, and
financing activities. Our primary ongoing cash requirements will be to fund operating activities, capital
expenditures, investments in businesses, product development, employee benefit plans, and debt service. Our
primary sources of liquidity are internally generated cash flows and borrowings under our revolving credit
facility. Significant factors affecting the management of our ongoing cash requirements are the adequacy of
available bank lines of credit and our ability to attract long term capital with satisfactory terms. The sources of
our liquidity are subject to all of the risks of our business and could be adversely affected by, among other
factors, a decrease in demand for our products, our ability to integrate acquisitions, deterioration in certain
financial ratios, and market changes in general.

In June 2006, we issued $0.9 billion of long-term debt, the proceeds of which, together with borrowings
under our revolver, were used to support the funding of the Serologicals acquisition.

Our ability to obtain debt financing at comparable risk-based interest rates is partly a function of our
existing debt to capitalization levels as well as our current credit standing. The issuance of $0.9 billion in long-
term debt in 2006 increased our level of debt to total capitalization to 59.9 percent from 41.1 percent. Our credit
ratings are reviewed regularly by major debt rating agencies such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors
Service. Our senior unsecured notes are rated BBB- by Standard & Poor’s and Ba2 by Moody’s Investors Service
and our revolving credit facility is rated BBB- and Baa2 by Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service,
respectively. Our senior convertible notes are rated BB- by Standard & Poor’s and have not been rated by
Moody’s Investors Service.

We believe our future operating cash flows will be sufficient to meet our future operating cash needs.

Furthermore, our ability to obtain equity financing as well as availability under our revolver, provides additional
potential sources of liquidity should they be required.
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Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our sources and uses of cash over the periods indicated:

($ in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ................... $ 1473 $1851 $1674
Net cash used for investing activities ........................ (1,168.8) (301.6) (63.7)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities ............ 557.1 515.5 (113.7)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . .............. (459.6) 384.9 5.1

Cash and cash equivalents were $77.5 million at December 31, 2006 compared to $537.1 million at
December 31, 2005. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $459.6 million was primarily driven by cash
used in acquisitions of $1,176.4 million partially offset by the net proceeds of debt borrowings of $504.3 million
and cash provided by operating activities of $147.3 million.

Operating Cash Flows

Cash provided by operating activities was $147.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 and was
primarily attributable to our net income of $97.0 million and non-cash adjustments for depreciation and
amortization of $99.2 million, stock-based compensation expense of $12.3 million, and curtailment loss on our
pension plan of $8.7 million. These factors were partially offset by changes in our deferred income tax positions
of $14.2 million and changes in our net working capital of $60.0 million. The $60.0 million cash flow decrease
caused by changes in our working capital was primarily attributable to increases in accounts receivable of $31.7
million driven by the higher sales volume, increases in inventories of $5.0 million driven by our factory
consolidation initiatives, decreases in accrued expenses of $9.1 million caused by lower accrued variable
compensation and accrued severance expenses as a result of payments under restructuring initiatives, and
decreases in income taxes payable of $26.4 million driven by higher United States tax payments this year related
to the repatriation of foreign earnings in accordance with the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, higher taxes
paid in foreign jurisdictions as a result of higher 2005 taxable profits, and the prior year utilization of net
operating loss carryforwards that did not recur during 2006. The higher working capital levels were partially
offset by higher increased accounts payable balances of $6.5 million driven principally by the increased spending
on inventories discussed above.

The incremental inventory discussed above and the inclusion of the inventory included in our purchase of
Serologicals caused days supply in inventory to increase 7 days to 118 days at December 31, 2006 compared
with 111 days at December 31, 2005. We anticipate that we will generate cash inflows in 2007 as we sell this
inventory. Days sales outstanding in ending accounts receivable remained the same at 67 days at December 31,
2006 as compared with December 31, 2005, showing our continued focus on cash collections.

Investing Cash Flows

Cash used in investing activities was $1.2 billion during 2006 compared with $301.6 million during 2005.
The increase was primarily attributable to our acquisition of Serologicals. The total purchase price for
Serologicals, net of cash acquired, was $1.5 billion, including the assumption of debt. We paid Serologicals’
convertible debt amounting to $277.3 million in August 2006 upon conversion by the debt holders, which was
recorded as cash used in financing activities. As of December 31, 2006, we no longer held marketable securities,
which resulted in a net cash inflow of $113.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2006. We also
invested $110.3 million in capital projects and fixed assets, of which $24.6 million was attributable to the
construction of our new research and development center in Bedford, Massachusetts that was completed in
October 2006. We expect 2007 capital expenditures to be approximately $115.0 million. In addition, we invested
$8.6 million for the acquisition of Newport in April 2006.

45



Financing Cash Flows

Cash provided by financing activities was $557.1 million during 2006 compared with $515.5 million during
2005. The increase was primarily attributable to the debt raised for our July 14, 2006 acquisition of Serologicals.
Cash proceeds amounted to $565.0 million for the 3.75 percent convertible senior notes and €250.0 million
(approximately $330.0 million) for the 5.875 percent senior notes. These proceeds were partially offset by debt
discount of $1.2 million and payments of debt issuance and amendment costs associated with the debt offerings
amounting to $19.5 million. Repayments of debt in 2006 included revolver borrowings of $79.3 million and
acquired Serologicals convertible debentures of $277.3 million. Cash provided by financing activities was also
higher as a result of cash receipts amounting to $56.2 million from employees upon the exercise of stock options.

Financing Commitments
Short-term debt

Short-term debt consisted of our 7.5 percent ten-year unsecured notes in the aggregate amount of $100.0
million, which are due in April 2007. As of December 31, 2006, the notes had a fair market value of $100.3
million. We intend to repay these notes upon maturity with cash flows from operations and borrowings under our
revolving credit facility.

Revolving credit facility

We entered into an agreement for a five-year unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) in
December 2005. The acquisition of Serologicals on July 14, 2006 and the related financing required us to change
certain terms of the Revolver agreement. Accordingly, we amended the agreement in June 2006 (some of which
became effective on July 14, 2006) to:

e permit the consummation of the Serologicals acquisition and issuance and incurrence of certain
additional indebtedness in connection with the acquisition;

. extend the maturity date to June 6, 2011;
*  require interest rate and commitment fee adjustments based on specified credit ratings;

e require the pledge of substantially all our assets to secure our obligations under the Revolver if
specified credit rating levels are reached; and

e adjust certain restrictions and financial covenants.

We further amended the Revolver agreement in July 2006 to increase the borrowing availability under the
domestic facility from €430.0 million, or $567.7 million, to €465.0 million, or $613.9 million. In the second
quarter of 2006, we recorded $2.8 million of deferred financing costs associated with amending the Revolver
agreement.

We are required to pay a commitment fee ranging between 0.0675 percent and 0.60 percent annually, based
on the debt rating, on unused commitments.

We are required to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios as set forth in the Revolver
agreement. The agreement also includes limitations on our ability to incur additional indebtedness, to merge,
consolidate, or sell assets, to create liens, to make payments in respect of capital stock or subordinated debt, as
well as other customary covenants and representations. In general, the leverage ratio is calculated by dividing our
total outstanding indebtedness at December 31, 2006 by our cumulative adjusted cash earnings for the twelve
months ended at December 31, 2006. The interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing our cumulative
adjusted cash earnings for the twelve months ended at December 31, 2006 by our cumulative gross interest
expense for the twelve months ended at December 31, 2006.
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The following table summarizes the financial covenant requirements and our compliance with these
covenants as of December 31, 2006:

Actual at
Covenant Requirement December 31, 2006
Maximum leverage ratio .. ............ i 4.75:1.0 4.16:1.0
Minimum interest coverage ratio ................ ..., 3.50:1.0 6.33:1.0

The following table summarizes our future financial covenant requirements:

Maximum Leverage Minimum Interest

Fiscal Quarter Ending Ratio Coverage Ratio
March 31,2007 . ... 4.50:1.0 3.50:1.0
June 30, 2007 ... 4.25:1.0 3.50:1.0
September 30, 2007 .. ... 3.75:1.0 3.50:1.0
December 31, 2007 and thereafter ....................... 3.50:1.0 3.50:1.0

Our ability to continue to comply with these covenants will depend primarily on the success in growing our
business and generating substantial operating cash flow. Future compliance with the covenants may be adversely
affected by various economic, financial, and industry factors. Noncompliance with the covenants would
constitute an event of default under the Revolver, allowing the lenders to accelerate repayment of any
outstanding borrowings. In the event of any potential failure by us to continue to be in compliance with any
covenants, we would seek to negotiate amendments to the applicable covenants or to obtain compliance waivers
from our lenders.

As of December 31, 2006, we had borrowings of €320.0 million, or $422.4 million outstanding under the
Revolver, which were classified as long-term debt because of our intent and ability to continuously refinance
them. As of December 31, 2006, we had €145.0 million, or $191.4 million, available for borrowing on the
Revolver.

3.75% convertible senior notes due 2026

In June 2006, we issued $565.0 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible senior notes (the
“Convertible Notes”) in a private placement offering. The Convertible Notes bear interest at 3.75 percent per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year, beginning on December 1,
2006. Commencing with the six-month period beginning on December 1, 2011, if the average trading price of the
Convertible Notes for the five consecutive trading days preceding such six-month periods equals 120 percent or
more of the principal amount, contingent interest will accrue at the rate of 0.175 percent of the average trading
price of the Convertible Notes. The Convertible Notes are our senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with
all of our existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness. The Convertible Notes are effectively subordinated
to all of our existing and future secured indebtedness and all existing and future liabilities of our subsidiaries,
including trade payables. The Convertible Notes will mature on June 1, 2026. We used the net proceeds from this
offering to complete the acquisition of Serologicals on July 14, 2006. We recorded $13.4 million of deferred
financing costs associated with this offering.

Holders of the Convertible Notes may convert their notes into cash and, if applicable, shares of our common
stock prior to June 1, 2026 under certain conditions. The Convertible Notes may be converted if the closing sale
price of our common stock for each of the 20 or more trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days
ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter exceeds 120 percent of the
conversion price in effect on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter. The Convertible
Notes may also be converted during the five consecutive business days immediately after any five consecutive
trading day period in which the average trading price per $1,000 principal amount of the Convertible Notes was
equal to or less than 97 percent of the average conversion value of the notes during this period. The Convertible
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Notes will also be convertible if we make certain distributions on our common stock or engage in certain
transactions, if we call the Convertible Notes for redemption, and at any time from November 1, 2011 through
December 1, 2011 and any time on or after June 1, 2024. Upon conversion, the Convertible Notes will be
converted into cash for the principal amount and shares of our common stock for the conversion premium, if any,
based on an initial conversion rate of 11.0485 shares per $1,000 principal amount (which represents an initial
conversion price of approximately $90.51 per share), subject to adjustments.

On or after December 1, 2011, we have the option to redeem the Convertible Notes at a redemption price
equal to 100 percent of the principal amount of the notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest. On each of
December 1, 2011, June 1, 2016 and June 1, 2021, holders of the Convertible Notes have the option to require us
to purchase all or a portion of their notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 100 percent of the principal amount
of the notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest. Holders may also require us to repurchase all or a portion of their
notes upon a fundamental change at a repurchase price in cash equal to 100 percent of the principal amount of the
notes to be repurchased, plus accrued but unpaid interest.

A holder that surrenders the Convertible Notes for conversion in connection with a “make-whole
fundamental change” that occurs before December 1, 2011 may in certain circumstances be entitled to an
increased conversion rate. However, in lieu of increasing the conversion rate applicable to those Convertible
Notes, we may in certain circumstances elect to adjust the conversion rate and our related conversion obligation
so that the Convertible Notes will be convertible into shares of the acquiring company’s common stock, except
that the principal return due upon conversion will continue to be payable in cash.

The Convertible Notes were issued to “qualified institutional buyers” (as defined in Rule 144 A under the
Securities Act) in a private placement transaction. We were required to file and maintain an effective shelf
registration statement under the Securities Act within 180 days after issuance of the Convertible Notes for the
resale of the Convertible Notes and the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Convertible
Notes. In the event that we failed to file and maintain an effective registration statement, we would have been
required to pay additional interest equal to 0.25 percent per annum of the aggregate principal amount of the
Convertible Notes for the 90-day period beginning on the date of the registration default and thereafter at a rate
per year equal to 0.50 percent. We fulfilled our initial obligation by filing the required registration statement on
Form S-3 on August 9, 2006.

Although we are not required to maintain any specified financial ratios under the Convertible Notes
agreement, we will be considered in default if we fail to fulfill our conversion or redemption obligations, make
required interest payments, provide notice to holders of the Convertible Notes in certain specified circumstances,
or cure our default on any indebtedness of ours or our subsidiaries in the aggregate principal amount of $50
million or more. If an event of default has occurred and is continuing, the principal amount of the Convertible
Notes plus interest thereon may become immediately due and payable. We are currently in compliance with the
covenant restrictions.

5.875% senior notes due 2016

In June 2006, we issued €250.0 million, or $330.0 million, in aggregate principal amount of 5.875 percent
senior notes (the “Euro Notes™) due 2016. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on June 30 and
December 30 of each year, which began on December 30, 2006. The Euro Notes were issued at 99.611 percent of
the principal amount, which resulted in an original issue discount of €1.0 million, or $1.2 million. We recorded
$3.3 million of deferred financing costs associated with the issuance of the Euro Notes. The Euro Notes will be
our senior unsecured obligations and will rank equally with all of our existing and future senior unsecured
indebtedness.

Upon the occurrence of any change in control, holders of the Euro Notes may require us to repurchase all of
their Euro Notes for a cash price equal to 101 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest
thereon. Before June 30, 2016, we may, at our option, redeem the Euro Notes, in whole or in part, for cash, at a
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redemption price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount of the Euro Notes we redeem, plus applicable

“make-whole” premium. In addition, we may redeem, at our option, in whole but not in part, at a redemption
price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, upon the occurrence of

certain tax events in the United States.

The indenture for the Euro Notes places certain restrictions on our ability to create, incur, assume or suffer
liens on our manufacturing plants and other principal facilities in the United States and ability to enter into
certain sale lease-back transactions. We would also be considered in default if we fail to fulfill our redemption
obligations, make required interest payments, provide notice to holders of the Euro Notes in certain specified
circumstances, or cure our default on any indebtedness of ours or our subsidiaries in the aggregate principal
amount of $50 million or more. If an event of default has occurred and is continuing, the principal amounts of the
Euro Notes plus any accrued interest thereon may become immediately due and payable. We are currently in
compliance with the covenant restrictions.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

While our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments did not change materially between
December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006, our minimum future payments on our long-term debt obligations
increased from $629.5 million at December 31, 2005 to $2,020.3 million at December 31, 2006.

The following table summarizes our minimum future payments under our contractual obligations at
December 31, 2006:

Payment due

Less than More than

Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years

(in millions)

Long-term debt obligations .......................... $2,020.3 $144.3  $121.7 $5459 $1,208.4
Non-cancellable operating leases ..................... 83.1 19.0 28.7 18.0 17.4
Employee pension and postretirement medical plans . .. ... 34.6 2.7 6.0 6.1 19.8

Non-cancellable purchase obligations ................. 191.2 92.6 98.6 — —
Total . ... $2,329.2  $258.6  $255.0 $570.0 $1,245.6

We maintain various defined benefit pension and postretirement plans for the benefit of our employees. At
December 31, 2006, our U.S. pension plan and postretirement benefit plans were under-funded by $18.0 million
and $10.3 million, respectively. We anticipate funding for these plans will be approximately $3.3 million in
2007. At December 31, 2006, our foreign retirement plans were under-funded by $18.3 million. Our future
pension expense and pension liabilities will be affected by fluctuations in future discount rates as well as the fair
market value of assets used to fund these plans.

Our purchase obligations include obligations related to the future purchase of goods and services, capital
lease obligations, and other long term liabilities reflected on our balance sheet. Amounts included in the table
above for employee pension and postretirement medical plans reflect projected benefit payments as determined
by our actuarial service provider. Outstanding borrowings of $422.4 million under our Revolver are included in
the table above as payments due in 3-5 years because we intend to refinance the Revolver on a long-term basis.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

Preparation of our financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements describes the significant accounting policies used in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Management believes the most complex and sensitive judgments, because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements, result primarily from the need to make estimates about the effects of matters
that are inherently uncertain. The most significant areas involving management judgments and estimates are
described below. Actual results in these areas could differ from management’s estimates.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when we meet all of the criteria
specified in Securities Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (“SAB 104”), “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.” These criteria include:

e evidence of an arrangement is in place;
e related prices are fixed or determinable;
e delivery or performance has occurred; and

e collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

Signed customer purchase orders or sales agreements evidence our sales arrangements. These purchase
orders and sales agreements specify both selling prices and quantities, which are the basis for recording sales
revenue. Trade terms for the majority of our sales contracts indicate that title and risk of loss pass from us to our
customer when we ship products from our facilities, which is when revenue is recognized. Revenue is deferred
until our products arrive at customers’ facilities in situations where trade terms indicate that title and risk of loss
pass from us to the customers upon their receipt of our products. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our
customers and ship products only to customers that satisfy our credit evaluation. We also maintain allowances for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from our customers’ inability to make required payments.

Standard consumable and hardware products account for over 90 percent of our total consolidated revenues
and are typically sold with standard terms and conditions. Revenues for these products are recognized when the
criteria of SAB 104 have been satisfied. These occur either upon shipment or delivery to the customers. In
instances where we sell filtration systems products with a related installation obligation, we generally recognize
revenue related to the filtration systems when title passes and recognize revenue related to the installation when
installation is complete. The allocation of revenue between the filtration system and the installation is based on
relative fair value at the time of sale.

In limited cases, our customers may require site acceptance testing for certain customized products built to
customers’ specifications. Revenues on these products are deferred upon shipment and are recognized when site
acceptance testing are completed.

Revenue from service arrangements is recognized when the services are provided. For laboratory water
systems, installation and maintenance service revenues are recognized when the site service visit is completed.
For validation and sample testing services provided to customers, revenue is recognized when the contracted
study is completed and accepted by the customer.

Revenue for fixed price contracts associated with our large, custom process equipment business is
recognized under the percentage of completion method (“POC”). Over the past three years, approximately 3
percent of our revenues have been derived from POC sales and in 2006 approximately 1 percent. Revenue is
recognized based on the ratio of hours expended compared with the total estimated hours to complete the
construction of the process equipment. The cumulative impact of any revisions in estimates of the percent
completed is reflected in the period in which the changes become known. In the event that assumptions used in
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calculating POC during the construction of the process equipment are later revised, total revenue and expenses
estimated for contracts upon completion could differ from the latter estimate. If it is estimated that the project
will result in a loss when completed, the entire loss is recognized at that point. Actual results related to POC
estimates have been materially the same as the assumptions used at the beginning of each contract. In addition,
should a POC contract be cancelled while in progress, we would generally be able to recover expenses incurred
with progress payments previously received during the design and construction period. Typically, such progress
payments can range between 20 percent and 60 percent of the total contract sales value. Historically, we have
experienced few cancellations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We regularly evaluate our ability to collect outstanding accounts
receivable. Allowances for doubtful accounts are provided when collection becomes unlikely. In performing this
evaluation, significant estimates are involved, including an analysis of risks on a customer-by-customer basis.
Based upon this information, we record an allowance for the outstanding receivable amount believed to be
uncollectible. At December 31, 2006, the allowance for doubtful accounts represented approximately 1.3 percent
of gross receivables. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Inventory Valuation. Our product life cycle is generally a minimum of 5 years and may be in excess of 20
years. Therefore, given the stable demand for our products, we generally rely upon recent historic usage,
expiration dates, and estimated future demand in estimating the realizable value of our inventory. Finished goods
and components that are determined to be obsolete are written-off when such determination is made. In certain
cases, such as for newly introduced products and overstocked products, estimated future demand is considered in
establishing inventory write-downs. Raw material and work-in-process inventories are also reviewed for
obsolescence and alternative or future use based on reviewing manufacturing plans, estimated future demand and
market conditions. In situations where it is determined that work-in-process inventories cannot be converted into
finished goods, the inventories are written down to net realizable value. Inventory at December 31, 2006 and
2005 reflects cumulative net realizable value write-downs of $33.8 million and $16.2 million, respectively. The
2006 increase is primarily the result of including Serologicals inventories in the valuation. Should it be
determined that write-downs are insufficient, we would be required to record additional inventory write-downs,
which would have a negative impact on gross margin. Once recorded, inventory valuation provisions are not
subsequently reversed unless the related inventory items are subsequently sold.

Valuation of Long-lived Assets. Valuation of certain long-lived assets, including property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill, requires significant judgment. Assumptions and estimates are used in
determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. A significant
portion of the purchase price in our acquisitions is assigned to intangible assets and goodwill. Assigning value to
intangible assets requires that we use significant judgment in determining (i) the fair value; and (ii) whether such
intangibles are amortizable or non-amortizable and, if the former, the period and the method by which the
intangible assets will be amortized. We utilize third-party valuation experts to assist us in this process. Changes
in the initial assumptions could lead to changes in amortization expense recorded in our future financial
statements.

For intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, we assess the carrying value of these assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors we
consider important which could trigger an impairment review include but are not limited to the following:

e significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
e significant negative industry or economic trends; or
e significant changes or developments in strategy or operations which affect our intellectual or tangible

properties.

Should we determine that the carrying value of long-lived assets and intangible assets may not be
recoverable, we will measure any impairment based on a projected discounted cash flow method using a discount
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rate determined by management to be commensurate with the risk inherent in our current business model.
Significant judgments are required to estimate future cash flows, including the selection of appropriate discount
rates and other assumptions. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the
determination of fair value for these assets.

We perform annual reviews in our second quarter for impairment of goodwill or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwill may be considered to
be impaired if we determine that the carrying value of the reporting unit, including goodwill, exceeds the
reporting unit’s fair value. Assessing the impairment of goodwill requires us to make assumptions and judgments
regarding the fair value of the net assets of our reporting units.

Stock-based Compensation. On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), which required us to
recognize share-based payments to employees and directors as compensation expense using a fair value-based
method in the results of operations. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and as permitted by SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” we accounted for share-based payments to employees
using the intrinsic value method pursuant to Accounting Principles Board (“APB”’) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Therefore, no stock-based employee compensation
expense had been recorded in connection with the issuance of employee and director stock options as all options
granted under these plans were fixed awards and had an exercise price equal to the market value of our common
stock at the time of the grant. Stock-based employee compensation expense relating to separation agreements for
certain executive officers and the vesting of restricted stock awards and restricted stock units granted at no cost to
the employees was reflected in net income. We used the modified prospective method when we adopted SFAS
No.123(R) and, accordingly, did not restate the results of operations for the prior periods. In the year ended
December 31, 2006, compensation expense of $12.3 million was recognized for all awards granted on or after
January 1, 2006 as well as for the unvested portion of awards granted before January 1, 2006.

Stock-based compensation expense is estimated as of the grant date based on the fair value of the award and
is recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which generally represents the vesting period. We
estimate the fair value of our stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the fair value of
our restricted stock awards and restricted stock units based on the quoted market price of our common stock. We
recognize the associated compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting periods of the awards, net
of estimated forfeitures. Forfeiture rates are estimated based on historical pre-vesting forfeiture history and are
updated on a quarterly basis to reflect actual forfeitures of unvested awards and other known events.

Estimating the fair value for stock options requires judgment, including estimating stock-price volatility,
expected term, expected dividends and risk-free interest rates. The expected volatility rates are estimated based
on historical volatilities of our common stock over a period of time that approximates the expected term of the
options. The expected term represents the average time that options are expected to be outstanding and is
estimated based on the historical exercise, post-vesting cancellation and expiration patterns of our stock options.
Expected dividends are estimated based on our dividend history as well as our current projections. The risk-free
interest rate for periods approximating the expected terms of the options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant. These assumptions will be updated at least on an annual basis or when there is
a significant change in circumstances that could affect these assumptions.

Income Taxes. We recognize income taxes when transactions are recorded in our consolidated statement of
operations, with deferred taxes provided for items that are recognized in different periods for financial statement
and tax reporting purposes. We record a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that
is more likely than not to be realized. In addition, we estimate our exposures relating to uncertain tax positions
and establish reserves for such exposures when they become probable and reasonably estimable.

The valuation allowance is provided to reserve against the expiration of Federal and state research credits,
state investment credit carryforwards, some foreign and state net operating loss carryforwards, and capital loss
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carryforwards. At December 31, 2006, we had $1.1 million of federal research credit carryforwards reserved with
a valuation allowance. In addition, $21 million of state research credit and net operating loss carryforwards are
reserved with a valuation allowance. At December 31, 2006, projections of future taxable income show that all
remaining federal general business credits (“GBC”) will be utilized. At December 31, 2006, we had GBC
carryforwards of approximately $10.9 million that expire in the years 2007 through 2026.

We are a worldwide business. We are subject to tax audits on a regular basis. Because significant judgment
is required in determining our worldwide provision for income taxes, we periodically assess our exposures
related to our provision for income taxes and appropriately accrue taxes for contingencies that may result in
potential tax obligations. We believe our tax reserves are necessary to adequately reflect tax obligations which
may arise out of current and future audits. Any reduction of these contingent liabilities or additional assessment
would increase or decrease income, respectively, in the period such determination is made.

In the normal course of business, we are examined by various tax authorities, including the IRS. In 2006, the
IRS completed the examination phase of 2002 and 2003 and commenced examination of 2004 and 2005.
Although the outcome of these examinations cannot currently be determined, we believe adequate provision has
been made for any potential unfavorable financial statement impact.

We provide for U.S. income taxes on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries unless they are considered
indefinitely invested outside the U.S. As we repatriated approximately $500 million of foreign earnings under the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 in December 2005, there were no cumulative earnings outside the U.S. upon
which U.S. income taxes had not been provided as of December 31, 2005. Under APB 23, during 2006, the
earnings of our Ireland subsidiaries were considered indefinitely invested outside the U.S. Also, beginning in the
third quarter, in addition to the earnings of our Ireland subsidiaries, we elected to treat the earnings of our United
Kingdom and Sweden subsidiaries as indefinitely invested outside the U.S. These elections were made based on
our operating plans and foreign debt service requirements.

Employee Retirement Plans. In the U.S., we sponsor a pension plan and a postretirement medical plan
covering substantially all employees who meet certain eligibility requirements. For both plans, we determine
several assumptions that are used in calculating the expense and liability of the plans.

For the pension plan, these key assumptions include the discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and
rate of future compensation increases. In selecting the expected long-term rate of return on assets, we considered
the average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits under the
pension plan. This included considering the trusts’ asset allocations and the expected returns likely to be earned
over the life of this plan. The assumed discount rate is intended to approximate the actual rate at which benefits
could effectively be settled. We used the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve as the benchmark rate for estimating
our discount rate for 2006 pension expense. In addition, our actuarial advisors determine the expense and
liabilities of the plan using additional assumptions for future experience, such as withdrawal and mortality
assumptions. The actuarial assumptions used by us may differ materially from actual results due to changing
market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of the
participants. These differences may have a significant effect on the amount of pension expense recorded by us in
future years. During 2006, we recognized our pension expense using a discount rate of 5.50 percent for 10
months and 5.75 percent for two months, an expected return on plan assets of 8.0 percent and a rate of future
compensation increases of 4.0 percent related to our U.S. pension plan. The most sensitive assumptions used in
calculating the expense and liability of our U.S. pension plan were the discount rates and the expected rate of
return on plan assets. Although they were the most sensitive assumptions, a 50 basis point change in either
assumption would be immaterial to our results of operations and financial condition.

For the postretirement medical plan, significant assumptions included the discount rate and the future
medical cost escalation rate. Our actuarial consultants also employ additional assumptions for future experience,

such as withdrawal and mortality. The actuarial assumptions used by us may differ materially from future actual
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results due to changing conditions in the growth of medical expenses or longer or shorter life spans of the
participants. These differences may have a significant effect on the amount of postretirement medical expense
recorded by us. During 2006, we recognized our expense using a discount rate of 5.50 percent and an expected
medical cost escalation rate that declines gradually from 9.00 percent in 2005 to 5.0 percent in 2012. Although
they are the most sensitive assumptions, a 50 basis point change in either assumption would be immaterial to our
results of operations and financial condition.

In certain foreign subsidiaries, we also sponsor pension plans for our employees. Accounting and reporting
for these plans requires the use of country specific assumptions for discount rates, expected returns on assets, and
rates of compensation increases. We apply a consistent methodology, year over year, in determining the key
assumptions which, in addition to future experience assumptions such as withdrawal rates and mortality rates, are
used by our actuaries to determine our liabilities and expenses for each of these plans. The most sensitive
assumptions used in calculating the expense and liability of our foreign pension plans are the discount rate and
the expected rate of return on plan assets. Although they are the most sensitive assumptions, a 50 basis point
change in either assumption would be immaterial to our results of operations and financial condition.

In the 2006 fourth quarter, our Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Retirement Plan for
Employees of Millipore Corporation (the “Retirement Plan”) and the Employees’ Participation and Savings Plan
(the “Participation Plan”). The effect of the amendment was to freeze the Retirement Plan effective
December 31, 2006, after which no benefits will accrue. We will provide eligible participants a one-time final
opportunity in early 2007 to transfer balances in their Participation Plan accounts to the Retirement Plan for the
purpose of purchasing an annuity under the existing terms of the Retirement Plan. We recognized a curtailment
loss of $8.7 million in the 2006 fourth quarter as a result of this amendment.

We used an assumption that 17.1 percent of available balances in the Participation Plan will be transferred
into the Retirement Plan for purposes of determining the curtailment loss associated with the amendment. The
17.1 percent assumption was selected based on a review of our actual transfer experience for the 2003-2005
period as well as the 2002 transfer experience related to the spin-off of our microelectronics business. Actual
transfer experience was analyzed to determine the percentage by age grouping of available participation plan
balances that were transferred to the Retirement plan. These percentages were then applied to projected balances
by age grouping as of December 31, 2006 to determine the estimated balances that will be transferred by age
grouping. The total of the balances that were estimated to be transferred by age grouping represented 17.1
percent of total projected plan balances as of December 31, 2006. We believe that this methodology for selecting
the transfer assumption for purposes of determining the curtailment loss was reasonable and appropriate. If the
actual rate of transfer upon participants’ election in early 2007 differs from the assumed 17.1 percent, the
actuarial gain or loss will be amortized over the average service period of the plan participants.

The following table is for illustrative purposes only and shows the impact of the Retirement Plan
curtailment on our operating results of a 1.0 percentage point change in the assumed rate of transfer and 0.5
percentage point change in the assumed discount rate used, respectively. Positive dollar amounts would have
improved operating income, while a negative dollar amount would have reduced operating income.

($ in thousands) Assumed Rate of Transfer
-1.0% 17.1% +1.0%
DiscountRate . ........................ +0.5% $1,663.5 $ 893.0 ($ 122.5)

575% $ 8494 % 00 $ 8494
-0.5% ($ 233.8) ($1,172.2) ($2,110.6)
Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks, which include changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rate risk,
and credit risk. We manage these market risks through our normal financing and operating activities and, when
appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent in sales, net income, and assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The potential change in foreign currency
exchange rates represents a substantial risk to us because approximately 61 percent of our business is conducted
outside of the United States, generally in foreign currencies.

Our primary risk management strategy is to use forward contracts to hedge certain foreign currency
transaction exposures. The intent of this strategy is to offset gains and losses that occur on the underlying booked
exposures with gains and losses resulting from the forward contracts that hedge these exposures. Principal
hedged currencies include the Euro, Japanese Yen and British Pound. The periods of these forward contracts
typically span less than three months. We held forward foreign exchange contracts with U.S. dollar equivalent
notional amounts totaling $286.6 million at December 31, 2006. The fair value of these contracts was an
unrealized net gain of $1.1 million at December 31, 2006.

Our risk management policy allows for hedging our net investments in foreign subsidiaries, using both
derivative and non-derivative instruments. On June 30, 2006, we issued €250.0 million Euro-denominated senior
notes which gives rise to foreign exchange risk when the debt is remeasured into U.S. dollars at the end of each
period. As we designated this debt as an economic hedge of our net investments in European subsidiaries, the
remeasurement gains and losses are recorded in other comprehensive income. Upon maturity, however, we could
be exposed to significant exchange rate risk as we will be required to repay the debt at the then current market
exchange rates, which could be higher or lower than the rates at which we borrowed the debt on June 30, 2006. A
future 10 percent strengthening or weakening of the Euro against the U.S. dollar will cause us to pay
approximately $33.3 million more or less than our U.S. dollar obligation that was expected when we issued the
notes on June 30, 2006.

We do not enter into derivatives for trading or other speculative purposes, nor do we use leveraged financial
instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates in the normal course of our business operations as a result of our
ongoing investing and financing activities, which include debt as well as cash and cash equivalents and other
highly liquid marketable securities. As of December 31, 2006, our debt portfolio was comprised of a combination
of fixed and floating rate borrowings. Our exposure to interest rate risk primarily relates to our Revolver, under
which the interest rates on our current borrowings float with Euro Libor rates. The fair market value of long-term
fixed interest rate debt is subject to interest rate risk. Generally, the fair market value of fixed interest rate debt
will increase as interest rates fall and decrease as interest rates rise. In addition, the fair value of our convertible
notes is affected by our stock price. The total estimated fair value of our fixed rate debt at December 31, 2006
was $1,031.9 million. Fair values were determined from available market prices, using current interest rates and
terms to maturity. If interest rates were to increase or decrease by 1 percent, the fair value of our long-term debt
would decrease or increase by approximately $41.0 million.

We assess our interest rate risks on a regular basis and do not currently use financial instruments to mitigate
these risks.

Credit Risk

We are exposed to concentrations of credit risk in cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. Cash and
cash equivalents are placed with major financial institutions with high quality credit ratings. The amount placed
with any one institution is limited by policy. Trade receivables credit risk exposure is limited due to the large
number of established customers and their dispersion across different geographies. We are exposed to
concentrations of credit risk in cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade receivables. No single
customer accounted for 10 percent or more of our consolidated trade receivables as of December 31, 2006.
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Related Party Agreements

Rolf A. Classon, a Director of Millipore since December 2005, retired as Chairman and President of Bayer
Healthcare LLC in July 2004. He is currently a member of the Supervisory Board of Bayer Healthcare AG.
During 2006, Bayer AG (including Bayer Healthcare LLC), purchased a total of $10.8 million of products from
Millipore. The relationship between Millipore and Bayer predates Mr. Classon’s election as a Director.

Dividends

We did not declare any cash dividends in 2006 or 2005. We do not currently have plans to make future cash
dividend declarations or payments.

Legal Proceedings
We currently are not a party to any material legal proceeding.

Following our decision to consolidate the results of our 40 percent owned Indian Joint-Venture (the “India
JV”) in January 2006, we learned as a result of our internal controls procedures that certain payment and
commission practices at the India JV raise issues of compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.
Promptly upon learning of this, our Audit and Finance Committee engaged outside counsel and commenced an
investigation. We are currently implementing certain corrective actions. We have notified the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Department of Justice of this matter. The operations and financial results of the
India JV are not currently, and have not to date been, material to us.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN No. 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not
threshold for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax
positions, accounting for income taxes in interim periods, and income tax disclosures. FIN No. 48 is effective for
us beginning in the first quarter of 2007. We are still evaluating the effect of adopting FIN No. 48 but do not
expect it to have a material impact on our financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurement” (“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS
No. 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use
when pricing an asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to
develop those assumptions. Under the standard, fair value measurements would be separately disclosed by level
within the fair value hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted.
We are currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157 on our financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Retirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)” (“SFAS No.
158”). Under this standard, an employer is required to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of
financial position and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through
comprehensive income. An employer with publicly traded equity securities is required to initially recognize the
funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as of the end of the
fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of
the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end in the statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2008. We adopted the funded status provisions of SFAS No. 158 effective December 31,
2006 but have not adopted the measurement date provision. We do not expect the measurement date provisions
of SFAS No. 158 to have a material impact on our financial condition or our results of operations.
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In September 2006, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108 (“SAB 108”), “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB 108 eliminates the diversity of practice surrounding how public
companies quantify financial statement misstatements. It establishes an approach that requires quantification of
financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on each of the company’s financial
statements and the related financial statement disclosures. SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial
statements for their first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a
material impact on our financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

The matters discussed in this Form 10-K Annual Report, as well as in future oral and written statements by
our management, that are forward-looking statements are based on our current management expectations. These
expectations involve substantial risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from
the results expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements. Potential risks and uncertainties that
could affect our future operating results include, without limitation, the risk factors and uncertainties set forth in
Item 1A and elsewhere in this Form 10-K Annual Report.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The information called for by this item is set forth under the heading “Market Risk” in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in Item 7 above which
information is hereby incorporated by reference.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting . ................. ... .. .. 57
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ... ....... ... ... . . . . i 58
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 ......... 60
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 . ........ . . . . i, 61
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004 e 62
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 . ........ 63
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . .. ...... ...t e 64
Quarterly Results (Unaudited) . .. ... ... ... e e e e 101

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Our internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may
not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our CEO and CFO, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
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the Treadway Commission. Our assessment did not include evaluating the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting at our recently acquired Serologicals Corporation or any of its subsidiaries, the consolidated
results of which are included in our 2006 consolidated financial statements and constituted 9 percent of total
assets as of December 31, 2006 and 12 percent of revenues for the year then ended. Based on this assessment and
subject to the foregoing exclusions, our management concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our internal
control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Directors of Millipore Corporation:

We have completed integrated audits of Millipore Corporation’s consolidated financial statements and of its
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index, present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Millipore Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and
2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 2, 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the
manner in which it accounts for share-based compensation in 2006 and the manner in which it accounts for
defined benefit pension and other post retirement plans effective December 31, 2006.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in “Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting” appearing under Item 8, that the Company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over
financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
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States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal
control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in “Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”, management
has excluded Serologicals Corporation (“Serologicals”) from its assessment of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination
during 2006. We have also excluded Serologicals from our audit of internal control over financial reporting.
Total assets and total revenues of Serologicals businesses represented 9 percent and 12 percent, respectively, of
the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
February 28, 2007
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Net sales ... e $1,255,371 $991,031 $883,263
Costof sales . ... 625,608 472,023 412,129

Gross profit . ...t 629,763 519,008 471,134
Selling, general and administrative €Xpenses . ........................ 398,842 309,029 270,796
Research and development eXpenses . ..............ouiieneenenenan. 86,617 66,052 62,485
Purchased in-process research and development . ..................... — 3,149 —

Operating profit . . ........ ittt 144,304 140,778 137,853
INterest INCOME . . . oo e e e e e e e e e, 21,415 3,466 2,073
Interest EXPense . . . ..o vttt e (45,336) (6,711) (9,447)

Income before income taxes and minority interest . ................ 120,383 137,533 130,479
Provision for inCoOmMe taxes . . ........ i 21,462 57,365 24,923
MINOTItY INEIEST . . o\ vttt e ettt e et e e 1,937 — —
NEtINCOME . .. oottt e e e e $ 96,984 $ 80,168 $105,556
Earnings per share:

BasiC ... $ 182 $ 157 $ 213

Diluted . ... $ 179 $ 155 $ 210
Weighted average shares outstanding:

BasiC ... 53,160 50,953 49,469

Diluted . ... 54,245 51,659 50,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

2006 2005
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ............ . it $ 77481 $ 537,052
Marketable SECUTItIES . . ... — 113,839
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,700 and $2,851
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively) .......... .. ..., 277,410 188,130
INVENTOTIES . . . oottt 256,666 153,030
Deferred INCOME taXeS . . . .o e 62,978 60,750
Assets held forsale . ........... . 17,150 —
Other CUITENT ASSES . . . v v v vttt ettt e e e e e e e e s 17,670 14,300
Total current assets . . ... 709,355 1,067,101
Property, plant and equipment, Net ... ..... ... ...t 525,903 371,249
Deferred INCOME tAXES . . . . vttt et e e e 8,366 73,190
Intangible assets, Net . .. ... ...ttt 488,303 43,421
GoodWill . ... 1,014,194 82,718
Other @SSELS . . v vttt e e e e e 25,370 8,986
TOtAl ASSEES .+« v v v e e e e e e e e e $2,771,491 $1,646,665
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Notes payable ... ...t $ 100,000 $ —
Accounts payable .. ... 110,017 79,587
Income taxes payable .. ........ ... 15,539 37,544
ACCTUEA EXPENSES . o v v vttt e ettt e e e e e 172,091 115,655
Deferred INCOME taXES . . . .o e e e 4,183 9,813
Total current liabilities . ... ... ... i 401,830 242,599
Deferred iNCOME tAXES . . . . . vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e 16,121 5,713
Long-term debt . ... ... .. . . 1,316,256 552,285
Other Habilities . . ... .ottt e e e 83,793 54,505
Total liabilities . ... ... ... . 1,818,000 855,102
MINOTILY INEETESE . . o v ottt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e 5,080 —
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share, 120,000 shares authorized; 53,524
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2006; 52,227 shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31,2005 ......... .. ... .. .. ... .. .. 53,524 52,227
Additional paid-in capital ........ .. ... 196,774 129,848
Retained earnings ... ...... ...ttt 706,686 609,702
Unearned COMPENSALION . .. v\ttt et ettt e e e e e eae — (290)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income . ........................ (8,573) 76
Total shareholders’ equity . ... ......ouutiit i 948,411 791,563
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ............ ... ... ... ...... $2,771,491 $1,646,665

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
NELINCOME . o vttt et et et ettt e e e et et $ 96984 $ 80,168 $ 105,556
MINOTILY INEETESE . . o v vt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e 1,937 — —
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ...............oiuiitii ... 72,277 50,657 44,478
Amortization of business acquisition inventory fair value adjustments .. .. 24,871 2,172 —
Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs ............. ... .. ..... 2,097 699 466
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision .................. ... ..., (14,238) 11,231 1,197
Excess tax benefit from stock plan activities ......................... — 9,197 6,491
Stock-based cOmMPeNnSation . .. .........c.uuniinirnennin . 12,295 5,605 2,404
Curtailment 10SS ON PENSION . . ... vtt ittt 8,664 — —
Other . ..o 2,025 3,149 2,815
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of business
acquisitions:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable . .. .................... (31,653) (18,534) 1,623
(Increase) decrease in INVENLOTIES .. .....ovvvrintennenennenn.n. (4,984) (17,933) 1,502
Decrease (increase) in other current assets . ..................... 1,633 (5,964) (2,905)
Increase in other assets . ... (309) (2,167) (2,125)
Increase in accounts payable ........... ... .. .. .. . 6,485 16,431 2,768
(Decrease) increase in accrued €Xpenses ... ............oueunon.n (9,069) 25,616 8,781
(Decrease) increase in income taxes payable ..................... (26,431) 30,320 (9,247)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities .......................... 4,752 (5,574) 3,620
Net cash provided by operating activities ..................... 147,336 185,073 167,424
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment . ............ . ... ... ... (110,346) (86,429) (63,744)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . ..................... 3,939 — —
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired . ............ ... ... ... ... .. (1,176,368)  (101,298) —
Purchases of marketable securities . . ............... i (1,481,205) (130,703) —
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities ............................. 1,595,152 16,864 —
Net cash used in investing activities ......................... (1,168,828) (301,566) (63,744)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under stock plans . ............... 56,218 106,517 30,281
Issuance of 3.75% convertible senior notes due 2026, net of debt issuance
0SS o e et et 551,639 — —
Issuance of 5.875% senior notes due 2016, net of debt issuance costs ......... 309,238 — —
Repayment of Serologicals 4.75% convertible debentures . ................. (277,313)
Repaymentsof debt ........ ... . . — — (75,000)
(Repayments of) net proceeds from revolver borrowings ................... (79,285) 405,976 (69,000)
Other . o (3,394) 2,973 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .............. 557,103 515,466  (113,719)
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ................... 4,818 (14,065) 15,156
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents .......................... (459,571) 384,908 5,117
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . ......... ... .. ... .. .. ... ... 537,052 152,144 147,027
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . .......... ... . ... ... ... ........ $ 77,481 $537,052 $ 152,144
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized ................ ... ... ......... $ 30412 $ 6,600 $ 8,949
Income taxes paid, netof refunds . .. ........ ... . .. $ 58397 $ 12,759 $ 21,766

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

1. Description of Operations

Millipore is a global life science company that provides technologies, tools and services facilitating the
discovery, development and production of new therapeutic drugs, vaccines and detection tools, together with
other applications. The Company serves the worldwide biotechnology, pharmaceutical and life science research
industries by improving productivity and efficiency. The Company primarily sells consumable products. The
Company’s products and services are based on a variety of enabling technologies, including filtration,
chromatography, cell culture supplements, antibodies and cell lines. In life science research, the Company’s
Bioscience division offers products and services for drug discovery, gene and protein research, research in the
fields of molecular biology, cell biology and immunodetection, and general laboratory applications. For the
biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries, the Company’s Bioprocess division offers products and services
for process development, scale-up, production, validation and quality assurance of therapeutics. The Company’s
intimate knowledge of its customers’ research and manufacturing process needs ensures that its products and
services are designed, recommended, used and supported to maximize the benefit to its customers.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
Company consolidates entities that it controls or owns more than fifty percent of the voting shares and variable
interest entities that the Company is considered the primary beneficiary. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Local currencies are the functional currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries outside of the United States.
The financial statements of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.” Assets and liabilities are
translated at prevailing exchange rates on the balance sheet date, revenues and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates during the period, and elements of shareholders’ equity are translated at historical rates. The
resulting translation adjustments are reported as a separate component of other comprehensive income in
shareholders’ equity. Exchange gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included in selling, general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience,
current conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis and the effects of revisions are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are determined to be necessary. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years’ financial statements to conform to the 2006
presentation. These reclassifications have no impact on previously reported net income or cash flows.
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents, consisting primarily of investments in money market mutual funds and commercial paper,
are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair market value. All cash equivalents are highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consisted of auction rate securities which are highly liquid, variable-rate debt
securities. While the underlying securities have long-term nominal maturities, the interest rates are reset
periodically through Dutch auctions that are typically held every 7, 28 or 35 days. The auction rate securities
trade at par and are callable at par on any interest payment date at the option of the issuer. Interest is paid at the
end of each auction period. Auction rate securities held by the Company were accounted for as available-for-sale
securities and are classified as marketable securities in current assets. The carrying value of these securities
approximated their fair value at December 31, 2005. The Company sold all of its investments in marketable
securities during 2006.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and accounts receivable. The Company places its
cash and cash equivalents in various financial institutions with high credit ratings and, by policy, limits the
amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited because of the large number of
customers comprising the Company’s customer base and the dispersion of those customers across different
geographies. No single customer accounted for 10 percent or more of the consolidated accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and generally does not require collateral. The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for
specifically identified estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. If
the financial condition of its customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

The following table presents changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts ($ in millions):

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Balance, beginning of the period . ..................... $2,851 $4500 $3,437
Provisions . ......... ... 820 (98) 1,568
Write-offs . . ... (1,761) (1,120) (721)
Recoveries . ....... .. 77) (67) (38)
ACQUISTHONS . o vttt e e e 1,648 — —
Foreignexchange .. .......... ... .. ... . .. 219 (364) 254
Balance, end of period . ............ ... ... .. .. ... ... $3,700 $2,851 $4,500

Inventories

The Company values its inventories at the lower of market value or actual cost, determined on a first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”) basis. The Company generally relies upon recent usage history, expected future demand, and
product expiration dates in estimating the realizable value of its inventories. Finished goods and components that
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MILLIPORE CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

are determined to be obsolete are written off when such determination is made. In certain cases, such as newly
introduced products and overstocked products, expected future demand is considered in establishing inventory
write-downs. Raw material and work-in-process inventories are also reviewed for obsolescence based on
evaluating manufacturing plans, expected future demand, alternative use, and market conditions. In situations
where it is determined that work-in-process inventories cannot be converted into finished goods, the inventories
are written down to net realizable value. Should it be determined that current levels of write-downs are
insufficient, the Company may record additional inventory write-downs, which would have a negative impact on
gross profit. Inventory valuation provisions are not subsequently reversed after they are recorded unless the
inventory items are sold.

The Company’s products are made from a wide variety of raw materials that are generally available from
alternate sources of supply. However, certain critical raw materials and supplies required for the production of
certain principal products are available only from a single supplier as are some products that the Company
distributes. Such raw materials and distributed products cannot be obtained from other sources without
significant delay or at all. If such suppliers were to limit or terminate production or otherwise fail to supply these
materials for any reason, such failure could have a significant adverse impact on the Company’s results of
operations. To mitigate such risks, the Company periodically purchases quantities of some of these critical raw
materials in excess of current requirements in anticipation of future manufacturing needs. With sufficient lead
time, the Company will also be able validate alternate suppliers for each of these critical raw materials.

Assets Held for Sale

In connection with the acquisition of Serologicals Corporation (“Serologicals”) on July 14, 2006, the
Company acquired certain idle facilities located in Lawrence, Kansas and Lake Placid, New York. The estimated
net realizable value of these assets was $17,150, which has been reported as assets held for sale in the current
assets section of the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” These assets are not used in the Company’s
operations and are not being depreciated.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense whereas the costs of significant improvements which extend the life of the underlying asset are
capitalized. Assets are generally depreciated using the straight-line method. Upon retirement or sale, the cost of
assets disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated and the related gains or losses are
reflected in net income.

The Company capitalizes internal use software development costs. These costs are included in Production
and other equipment and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related
software, generally three years. The Company also capitalizes interest costs associated with the construction of
certain capital assets. Amounts capitalized in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $3,686, $3,861, and $2,782,
respectively.

The estimated useful lives of our depreciable assets are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the life of the improvement or the initial
term of the lease

Buildings and improvements 4 to 40 years

Production and other equipment 2 to 15 years
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price paid for business acquisitions over the fair value of net assets
acquired. Intangible assets were primarily acquired through business acquisitions and consist almost entirely of
patented and unpatented technology, trade names and trademarks, customer related intangibles, and licenses.
Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized. All other intangible assets are
amortized over periods ranging from 1.5 to 20 years either on a straight-line basis or in proportion to the
projected economic consumption of the intangible assets. Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are
subject to annual impairment testing using the guidance and criteria described in SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” This testing compares carrying values to fair values and, when appropriate, the
carrying value of these assets is reduced to fair value. The Company completed the annual impairment tests in
2006, 2005 and 2004 and concluded that there were no goodwill or indefinite life intangible assets impairments.

Other Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the potential impairment of other long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. If the carrying value exceeds the sum of
undiscounted expected future cash flows, the carrying value of the asset is written down to fair value.

Foreign Exchange and Hedging Activities

The Company attempts to mitigate the impact of foreign currency risk related to intercompany transactions
by hedging forecasted balances using forward contracts that normally mature within 30 to 90 days. The intent is
to offset gains and losses that occur on the underlying exposures with gains and losses on the forward contracts
hedging these exposures. The Company held forward foreign exchange contracts with U.S. dollar equivalent
notional amounts totaling $286,626 and $139,917 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The fair values
of these contracts were gains of $1,125 and $361 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Both realized and
unrealized gains (losses) are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In December 2005, the
Company entered into certain foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its net investment in a European
subsidiary before the Company repatriated the accumulated foreign earnings under the American Jobs Creation
Act of 2004. Upon maturity of these forward contracts, the Company recorded a gain of $2,973 in other
comprehensive income in December 2005 as a result of this net investment hedge. The Company does not enter
into foreign exchange contracts for trading or speculative purposes, nor does it use leveraged financial
instruments. Management designated the Company’s 5.875 percent senior notes due 2016 (“Euro Notes™) as an
economic hedge of its net investments in European subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Company recorded an
unrealized loss of $16,253 in other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2006 from remeasuring the Euro
Notes into the functional currency in U.S. dollars. The Company evaluated the Euro Notes agreement for
potential embedded derivatives under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”) and determined that the Company’s call options, the holder’s Put Option, and the
Company’s Repurchase Obligation do not meet the embedded derivative criteria as set forth by SFAS No. 133.

Stock-based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
No. 123(R)”), which required us to recognize share-based payments to employees and directors as compensation
expense using a fair value-based method in the statement of operations. Prior to the adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R) and as permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”),
the Company accounted for share-based payments to employees using the intrinsic value method pursuant to
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”’) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
interpretations. Therefore, no stock-based employee compensation expense had been recorded in connection with
the issuance of employee and director stock options as all options granted under these plans were fixed awards
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and had an exercise price equal to the market value of its common stock at the time of the grant. Stock-based
employee compensation expense relating to separation agreements for certain executive officers and the vesting
of restricted stock awards and restricted stock units granted at no cost to the employees was recorded in net
income.

The Company elected to use the modified prospective method upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and,
accordingly, did not restate the results of operations for the prior periods. Under the modified prospective
method, compensation expense is recognized for all awards granted on or after January 1, 2006 as well as for the
unvested portion of awards granted before January 1, 2006.

Stock-based compensation expense is estimated as of the grant date based on the fair value of the award and
is recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which generally represents the vesting period. The
Company estimates the fair value of its stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the fair
value of the Company’s restricted stock awards and restricted stock units based on the quoted market price of the
Company’s common stock. The Company recognizes the associated compensation expense on a straight-line
basis over the vesting periods of the awards, net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeiture rates are estimated based on
historical pre-vesting forfeiture history and are updated on a quarterly basis to reflect actual forfeitures of
unvested awards and other known events.

Estimating the fair value for stock options requires judgment, including estimating stock-price volatility,
expected term, expected dividends and risk-free interest rates. The expected volatility rates are estimated based
on historical volatilities of the Company’s common stock over a period of time that approximates the expected
term of the options. The expected term represents the average time that options are expected to be outstanding
and is estimated based on the historical exercise, post-vesting cancellation and expiration patterns of the
Company’s stock options. Expected dividends are estimated based on the Company’s dividend history as well as
the Company’s current projections. The risk-free interest rate for periods approximating the expected terms of the
options is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. These assumptions are updated at
least on an annual basis or when there is a significant change in circumstances that could affect these
assumptions.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(“SFAS No. 109”). The asset and liability approach under SFAS No. 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax bases of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates for the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
With respect to the unremitted earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, deferred taxes are provided on
amounts expected to be repatriated. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets
to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The Company periodically assesses its exposures related
to its provisions for income taxes and accrues for contingencies that may result in potential tax obligations when
they become probable and reasonably estimable.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock was recorded at its cost on the date acquired and was reissued at its weighted average cost.
The excess of cost over the proceeds of reissued treasury stock was charged to retained earnings.

In 2004, the Massachusetts Business Corporation Act (“MBCA”) became effective. Under the MBCA,
shares repurchased by Massachusetts corporations constitute authorized but unissued shares. As a result, all of
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the Company’s former treasury shares were automatically converted to unissued shares and were accounted for
as a reduction of common stock (at par value), additional paid-in capital and retained earnings. Par value,
additional paid-in capital and retained earnings were reduced by $7,421, $98,513 and $111,099 respectively in
2004.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by considering the dilutive
impact of common stock equivalents (e.g., outstanding stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and
convertible debt) under the treasury stock method as if they were converted into common stock as of the
beginning of the period or as of the date of grant, if later.

Contingently issuable shares under convertible debt agreements will be included in the diluted earnings per
share calculation when the Company’s stock price exceeds the conversion price.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when the Company meets all of the criteria specified in
U.S. Securities Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (“SAB 104”), “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements.” These criteria include:

e evidence of an arrangement is in place;
e related prices are fixed or determinable;
e delivery or performance has occurred; and

e collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

Signed customer purchase orders or sales agreements evidence the Company’s sales arrangements. These
purchase orders and sales agreements specify both selling prices and quantities, which are the basis for recording
sales revenue. Any deviation from this policy requires management review and approval. Trade terms for the
majority of the Company’s sales contracts indicate that title and risk of loss pass from the Company to the
customer when the Company ships products from its facilities, which is when revenue is recognized. Revenue is
deferred until the Company’s products arrive at customers’ facilities in situations where trade terms indicate that
title and risk of loss pass from the Company to the customers upon their receipt of the products. The Company
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and ship products only to customers that satisfy its credit
evaluation. The Company also maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from its
customers’ inability to make required payments.

Standard consumable and hardware products account for over 90 percent of the Company’s total
consolidated revenues and are typically sold with standard terms and conditions. Revenues for these products are
recognized when the criteria of SAB 104 have been satisfied. These generally occur either upon shipment or
delivery to the customers. In instances where installation is required for the sale of filtration systems products,
the Company generally recognizes revenue related to the filtration systems when title passes and recognizes
revenue related to the installation when installation is complete. The allocation of revenue between the filtration
system and the installation is based on relative fair value at the time of sale. In limited cases, the Company’s
customers may require site acceptance testing for certain customized products built to the customers’
specifications. Revenues on these products are deferred upon shipment and are recognized when site acceptance
testing is completed.

Revenue for certain fixed price contracts associated with the Company’s Bioprocess division equipment
business is recognized under the percentage of completion method. Revenue is recognized based on the ratio of
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hours expended to the total estimated hours to complete the construction of the equipment. The cumulative
impact of any revisions in estimates of the percentage of completion is reflected in the period in which the
changes become known. Losses are accrued when known.

Revenue from service arrangements is recognized when the services are provided.

Warranty Costs

The Company provides for estimated warranty costs for products at the time of their sale. Warranty
liabilities were based on estimated future repair costs using historical statistical models and were not material as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The fair value of acquired in-process research
and development costs is expensed as of the acquisition date if the related projects have not reached
technological feasibility and were determined to have no alternative future use.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not threshold for
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions,
accounting for income taxes in interim periods, and income tax disclosures. FIN 48 is effective for the Company
beginning in the first quarter of 2007. The Company is still evaluating the effect of adopting FIN 48 but does not
expect it to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157). SFAS
No. 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the assumptions market participants would use
when pricing an asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to
develop those assumptions. Under the standard, fair value measurements would be separately disclosed by level
within the fair value hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements Nos. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” Under this
standard, an employer is required to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit
postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position
and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive
income. An employer with publicly traded equity securities is required to initially recognize the funded status of
a defined benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as of the end of the fiscal year
ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of
the employer’s fiscal year-end in the statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2008. The Company adopted the funded status provisions of SFAS No. 158 effective
December 31, 2006 but has not adopted the measurement date provision. The Company does not expect the
measurement date provisions of SFAS No. 158 to have a material impact on its financial condition or results of
operations.
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In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (“SAB 108”), “Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.”
SAB 108 eliminates the diversity of practice surrounding how public companies quantify financial statement
misstatements. It establishes an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based
on the effects of the misstatements on each of the company’s financial statements and the related financial
statement disclosures. SAB 108 must be applied to annual financial statements for the first fiscal year ending
after November 15, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not affect the Company’s financial statements and
disclosures.

3. Business Acquisitions

The Company’s investments in business acquisitions in 2006 and 2005 totaled $1,483,430 and $105,384,
respectively, including debt assumed. The Company did not have any business acquisitions in 2004.

2006 Acquisitions
Serologicals Corporation

On July 14, 2006, the Company acquired Serologicals. This acquisition strengthened the market position of
the Company’s Bioscience division by increasing its product portfolio into markets such as drug discovery
products and services, nuclear function and stem cell research products. The acquisition also facilitated the
Company’s entrance into the upstream bioprocessing market by gaining a cell culture supplements offering for
its Bioprocess division. The total purchase price was $1,474,928 including debt assumed. The acquisition was
financed with cash on hand and net proceeds from the issuance of the 3.75 percent senior convertible notes and
the 5.875 percent senior notes.

The acquisition purchase price was allocated to net assets acquired, identifiable intangible assets, and
goodwill based on their estimated fair values. These fair values were based on management’s estimates and
assumptions and other information compiled by management, including independent valuations that utilized
established valuation techniques. The excess purchase price over those assigned values was recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill and intangible assets recorded as a result of this acquisition are not deductible for tax purposes.

The total Serologicals purchase price is shown below:

Cash paid for common stock .. ... ... $1,079,280
Cash paid for stock options, restricted stock, and performance shares .. .............. 32,191
Cash paid for Serologicals debt at closing ........... ... ... 75,954
Direct acqUiSition COSES . . ..t v vttt et e e 10,190

Total cash conSideration . ... ............ i 1,197,615
Conversion value of 4.75% Serologicals convertible debentures assumed ............ 277,313

Total purchase price, including debt assumed ........... ... ... ... .. ... ... $1,474,928
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The Serologicals purchase price was allocated as follows:

__Amount

Cash .« oo $ 29,713
Accounts receivable . ... ... 37,599
INVENLOTIES . . o o ottt 107,613
Assets held for sale . ... ... 17,150
Property, plant and equipment . ........... . ... 73,683
Other ASSELS & o oot e 22,886

Identifiable intangible assets:
Customer related intangibles (weighted average useful life of 18 years) .......... 385,100
Patented and unpatented technology (weighted average useful life of 12 years) . . .. 49,680
Trademarks and trade names (weighted average useful life of 15 years) .......... 18,600
Total identifiable intangible assets (weighted average useful life of 17

VEATS) v vt e e et et e e e e e e e e e e 453,380

GoodWill . . 915,503
4.75% convertible debentures assumed . ....... .. ... (277,313)
Deferred tax liabilities . . ... ... . i e (114,180)
Other lHabilities . ... ... . (68,419)
Total cash consideration . ............. ... ... .t $1,197,615

The purchase price allocation may be revised as a result of additional information regarding assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, including contingent liabilities, employee severance and facility closure costs. The
Company paid $277,313 to the holders of the 4.75 percent Serologicals convertible debentures when these
holders converted their notes in August 2006.

At the time of acquisition, the Company committed to a preliminary plan of integration of certain
Serologicals activities, which included closure of facilities, the abandonment or redeployment of equipment, and
employee terminations. As of July 14, 2006, the Company recorded severance and relocation cost liabilities
amounting to $6,675 and facility closure cost liabilities amounting to $5,877 with corresponding adjustments to
goodwill in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilities in
Connection with a Purchase Business Combination” (“EITF 95-3”). The following table is a summary of these
liabilities:

Severance Other

and Facility
Relocation Exit
Costs Costs Total
Balance at July 14,2006 ... ... ...t $6,675 $5,877  $12,552
Payments . . ... .. (238) — (238)
Revision of previously recorded costs ........................ (250) (651) (901)
Balance at December 31,2006 .. ... $6,187 $5,226  $11,413

The results of Serologicals’ operations have been included in the consolidated statement of operations since
the acquisition date. The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of
operations of Millipore and Serologicals as if the acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of the periods
presented below. The combined results of operations have been adjusted to reflect the amortization of purchased
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intangible assets and inventory fair value adjustments, additional financing expenses, and other direct costs
incurred by Serologicals in connection with the acquisition. The unaudited pro forma financial information is not
intended to represent, or be indicative of, the Company’s consolidated results of operations that would have been
reported had the acquisition been completed as of the dates presented and should not be taken as representative of
the Company’s future consolidated results of operations.

December 31,
2006 2005
Net Sales . ..ottt $1,385,735  $1,264,888
NELINCOME . ..ottt e e e e e $ 56,199 $ 11,867
Basic earnings pershare .............. .. it $ 1.06 $ 0.23

Diluted earnings pershare . . ............ it $ 1.04 § 0.23

Newport Bio Systems, Inc.

On April 27, 2006, the Company acquired Newport Bio Systems, Inc. (“Newport™), a provider of disposable
process containers used in biopharmaceutical production. The acquisition broadens the scope of the process
equipment product offerings of the Company’s Bioprocess division. The total purchase price was $8,602.

The purchase price was allocated to the net assets acquired, identifiable intangible assets, and goodwill
based on their estimated fair values at the time of acquisition, as follows:

Amount

CUITENE ASSELS .« « v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 1,746
Property, plant and equipment . ... .. ... ... .. 218

Identifiable intangible assets:

Customer related intangibles (weighted average useful life of 19 years) ............. 2,500
Patented and unpatented technology (weighted average useful life of 4 years) ........ 300
Trademarks and trade names (weighted average useful life of 6 years) ... ........... 200
Total identifiable intangible assets (weighted average useful life of 13 years) .. .. 3,000
GoOAWIll .« . o 6,212
Current HabilitieS . .. ... ... e (1,431)
Deferred tax liability . .. ... ..o e (1,143)
Total purchase PriCe . . ... ... ...ttt e e e $ 8,602

The results of the acquired operations have been included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
since the acquisition date. The excess purchase price allocated to intangible assets and goodwill is not deductible
for income tax purposes. Pro forma results of operations have not been presented because such information is not
material to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

2005 Acquisitions
NovAseptic A.B. and MicroSafe B.V.

During the third quarter of 2005, the Company acquired NovAseptic A.B. (“NovAseptic”) and MicroSafe
B.V. (“MicroSafe”) for $96,296 and $9,088, respectively. NovAseptic provides innovative solutions for aseptic
processing applications in biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturing operations while MicroSafe
develops assays and provides testing services that help biotechnology and pharmaceutical customers monitor
quality and compliance in the drug manufacturing process. The purchase prices for the NovAseptic and

73



MILLIPORE CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

MicroSafe acquisitions were allocated to the net assets acquired, identifiable intangible assets, and goodwill
based on their estimated fair values at the time of acquisition. In the second quarter of 2006, the Company
finalized the purchase price allocation for these acquisitions and recorded adjustments to reduce goodwill and
deferred tax liabilities by $1,634. The final purchase price allocation follows:

Amount

CUITENE ASSELS « « v o v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 15,773
Property, plant and equipment .. ......... ... e 952
Identifiable intangible assets:

Customer related intangibles (weighted average useful life of 16 years) ........... 14,925
Patented and unpatented technologies (weighted average useful life of 10 years) . ... 10,417
Trademarks and trade names (weighted average useful life of 13 years) ........... 4,072
In-process research and development costs . ........... .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 3,149
Total identifiable intangible assets (weighted average useful life of 13 years) . . . 32,563
GoodWill . . .o 74,819
Current Habilities . . ..o oo (12,514)
Deferred tax liability . ... ... ... . e (6,209)
Total purchase price ... ......... .. i $105,384

The excess purchase price allocated to intangible assets and goodwill is not deductible for income tax
purposes. The amount allocated to the in-process research and development costs was written off at the date of
acquisition because these costs had no alternative future uses and the underlying projects had not reached
technological feasibility. Pro forma results of operations have not been presented because such information is not
material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

4. Goodwill

The following table presents changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill:

2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year .......... ... . ... . $ 82718 $ 9433
ACQUISTLIONS . o .ttt e e e e 921,715 76,453
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes .............. ... ... .. ...... 11,395 (3,168)
Other . .o (1,634) —
Balance atend of year ............ ... ... $1,014,194  $82,718
5. Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets consisted of the following:
Gross Intangible Accumulated Net Intangible Estimated
December 31, 2006 Assets Amortization Assets Useful Life
Patented and unpatented
technologies. ................. $ 80,461 $(20,719) $ 59,742 5 —20 years
Trademarks and trade names ...... 42,292 (11,914) 30,378 5 —20 years
Customer relationships ........... 404,138 (7,798) 396,340 15 — 18 years
Licenses and other .............. 6,363 (4,520) 1,843 5 — 10 years
Total ......................... $533,254 $(44,951) $488,303
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Gross Intangible Accumulated Net Intangible Estimated

w Assets Amortization Assets Useful Life
Patented and unpatented

technologies. .. ............... $29,245 $(14,925) $14,320 5 —20 years
Trademarks and trade names . ..... 23,092 (8,830) 14,262 5 —20 years
Customer relationships . .......... 14,316 (685) 13,631 15 — 16 years
Licenses and other .............. 4,899 (3,691) 1,208 5 - 10 years
Total .......... ... ... ... . ... $71,552 $(28,131) $43,421

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $16,453, $4,333 and
$3,256, respectively.

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for intangible assets owned as of December 31, 2006 for each
of the five succeeding years and thereafter is as follows:

2007 $ 59,012
2008 .. 63,230
2000 .. 56,191
2010 .. 50,115
2000 44,969
Thereafter ........ ... ... . 214,786
Total . oot $488.,303

6. Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Numerator:
NEetincome . .......cuvuiniinin i, $96,984  $80,168  $105,556
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic
EPS 53,160 50,953 49,469
Dilutive effect of stock-based compensation awards .. ... ... 1,085 706 732
Weighted average common shares outstanding for diluted
EPS 54,245 51,659 50,201
Earnings per share:
Basic . ... $ 182 $ 157 $ 213
Diluted ....... ... $ 179 $ 155 §$§ 210

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, outstanding stock options of 290 shares, 41 shares,
and 2,899 shares, respectively, had exercise prices in excess of the average fair market value of the Company’s
common stock for the related years and were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because
of their antidilutive effect. Antidilutive options could become dilutive in the future. In addition, shares issuable
upon conversion of the 3.75 percent convertible senior notes were excluded from the calculation of diluted
earnings per share as of December 31, 2006 because the Company’s stock price had not exceeded the conversion
price.
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7. Inventories

Inventories, stated at the lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market, consisted of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005
Raw materialS . ... ... ... $ 50,085 $ 24,694
WOrk in process . . . ..ottt 79,577 38,850
Finished goods . . .. ... . i 127,004 89,486
Total INVENTOTIES . . o oottt e e $256,666  $153,030

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005

Land ... $ 20,673 $ 10,179
Leasehold improvements .. ..............oouuuiinenenennenenennon. 17,593 12,667
Buildings and improvements . .............. i 310,654 230,869
Production and other equipment . . ........ ... ... .. L il 356,688 290,486
ConStruCtion iN PrOZIESS . .« . v vt v ettt ettt 91,665 85,057

797,273 629,258
Less: accumulated depreciation . ........... .. .. ... (271,370) (258,009)
Property, plant and equipment, net ... ..........o it $ 525,903  $ 371,249

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $55,824, $46,324 and
$41,222, respectively.

The Company has excluded accrued liabilities of $9,139 as non-cash investing activity from the
consolidated statements of cash flows in 2006 related to property, plant and equipment that has not yet been paid
as of December 31, 2006.

9. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

December 31,

2006 2005
Deferred TeVENUE . . . .o v v ot e e e e e e $ 11,586 $ 7,722
Retirement plans .. ....... .. e 9,940 8,724
Accrued COMPENSAtION . . ..o .vut ittt et e 71,634 53,350
Other .. 78,931 45,859
Total ... $172,091  $115,655
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10. Debt
Short-term debt

Short-term debt consisted of the Company’s 7.5 percent ten-year unsecured notes in the aggregate amount
of $100,000, which are due in April 2007. Interest is payable semi-annually in April and October. As of
December 31, 2006, the notes had a fair market value of $100,340.

Long-term debt

The Company’s long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
7.5% senior notes due 2007 . .. ... $ — $100,000
Revolving credit facility . .......... . o 422,442 452,285
3.75% convertible senior notes due 2026 ... ... ... 565,000 —
5.875% senior notes due 2016, net of discount . ...................... 328,814 —
Total long-termdebt .. ...... ... .00 $1,316,256  $552,285

In June 2006, the Company issued $895,033 of long-term debt. These proceeds and borrowings under the
Company’s revolving credit facility were used primarily to fund the Serologicals acquisition.

Rewolving credit facility

The Company entered into an agreement for a five-year unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”)
in December 2005. The Revolver agreement originally provided for a domestic revolving credit facility and a
foreign credit facility each with a maximum borrowing of €430,000. The combined borrowings at any one time
under both revolving credit facilities may not exceed €430,000 in the aggregate. The domestic revolving credit
facility includes a €65,000 letter of credit subfacility and a €17,500 swingline subfacility. The Company may
elect to increase the credit facilities by an amount not in excess of €130,000. The Company may prepay any
outstanding borrowings in whole or in part without premium or penalty. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
outstanding letters of credit were $1,808 and $2,657, respectively.

The acquisition of Serologicals on July 14, 2006 and the related financing required the Company to change
certain terms of the Revolver agreement. Accordingly, the Company amended the agreement in June 2006 (some
of which became effective on July 14, 2006) to:

e permit the consummation of the Serologicals acquisition and issuance and incurrence of certain
additional indebtedness in connection with the acquisition;

J extend the maturity date to June 6, 2011;
¢ modify interest rate and commitment fee adjustments based on specified credit ratings;

e require the pledge of substantially all of the Company’s assets to secure its obligations under the
Revolver if specified credit rating levels are reached; and

e adjust certain restrictions and financial covenants.
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The Company again amended the Revolver agreement in July 2006 to increase the borrowing availability
under the domestic facility from €430,000, or $567,657, to €465,000, or $613,861.

The Company may choose an interest rate equal to either LIBOR plus an applicable margin as provided for
in the new credit agreement or a base rate defined as the higher of the annual rate of the lead bank’s prime rate or
the federal funds rate plus 0.50 percent for borrowings under the new credit agreement. Interest is payable
quarterly or, if earlier, at the end of an interest period. The Company is required to pay a commitment fee ranging
between 0.0675 percent and 0.60 percent annually, based on the debt rating, on unused commitments. As of
December 31, 2006, the Company had €145,000, or $191,419, available for borrowing on the Revolver.

The Company is required to maintain certain leverage and interest coverage ratios set forth in the Revolver
agreement. As of December 31, 2006, the Company was compliant with all financial covenants specified in the
amended Revolver agreement. The agreement also includes limitations on the Company’s ability to incur
additional indebtedness; to merge, consolidate, or sell assets; to create liens; and to make payments in respect of
capital stock or subordinated debt, as well as other customary covenants and representations.

The following table summarizes the financial covenant requirements and the Company’s compliance with
these covenants as of December 31, 2006:

Actual at
Covenant Requirement December 31, 2006
Maximum leverage ratio . ... ..ottt 4.75:1.0 4.16:1.0
Minimum interest COverage ratio . ..............ouuuerenen... 3.50:1.0 6.33:1.0

The following table summarizes the Company’s future financial covenant requirements:

Maximum Leverage Minimum Interest

Fiscal Quarter Ending Ratio Coverage Ratio
March 31,2007 . ... e 4.50:1.0 3.50:1.0
June 30, 2007 ... 4.25:1.0 3.50:1.0
September 30,2007 . ... ... 3.75:1.0 3.50:1.0
December 31, 2007 and thereafter ....................... 3.50:1.0 3.50:1.0

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had borrowed €320,000, or $422,442, under the Revolver. The
borrowings were classified as long-term debt because of the Company’s ability and intent to continuously
refinance such borrowings. The Company recorded $2,806 of deferred financing costs associated with amending
the Revolver agreement and will amortize the costs over the term of the agreement, or five years. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, the weighted average interest rate for the Revolver was 3.3 percent.

3.75% convertible senior notes due 2026

In June 2006, the Company issued $565,000 in aggregate principal amount of convertible senior notes (the
“Convertible Notes”) in a private placement offering. The Convertible Notes bear interest at 3.75 percent per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year, beginning on December 1,
2006. Commencing with the six-month period beginning on December 1, 2011, if the average trading price of the
Convertible Notes for the five consecutive trading days preceding such six-month periods equals 120 percent or
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more of the principal amount, contingent interest (“the Contingent Interest feature”) will accrue on the
Convertible Notes at the rate of 0.175 percent of the average trading price of the Convertible Notes. The
Convertible Notes are senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of the Company’s existing and
future senior unsecured indebtedness. The Convertible Notes are effectively subordinated to all of the Company’s
existing and future secured indebtedness and all existing and future liabilities of the Company’s subsidiaries,
including trade payables. The Convertible Notes will mature on June 1, 2026. The Company recorded $13,361 of
deferred financing costs associated with the issuance of the Convertible Notes and will amortize the amount over
5.5 years starting from the issuance date.

Holders of the Convertible Notes may convert their notes into cash and, if applicable, shares of Millipore’s
common stock prior to June 1, 2026 under certain conditions. The Convertible Notes may be converted if the
closing sale price of Millipore’s common stock for each of the 20 or more trading days in a period of 30
consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter exceeds
120 percent of the conversion price in effect on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar
quarter. The Convertible Notes may also be converted during the five consecutive business days immediately
after any five consecutive trading day period in which the average trading price per $1,000 principal amount of
the Convertible Notes was equal to or less than 97 percent of the average conversion value of the notes during
this period. The Convertible Notes will also be convertible if the Company makes certain distributions on its
common stock or engages in certain transactions; if the Company calls the Convertible Notes for redemption; and
at any time from November 1, 2011 through December 1, 2011; and on or after June 1, 2024. Upon conversion,
the Convertible Notes will be convertible into cash for the principal amount and shares of Millipore’s common
stock for the conversion premium, if any, based on an initial conversion rate of 11.0485 shares per $1,000
principal amount (which represents an initial conversion price of approximately $90.51 per share), subject to
adjustments.

On or after December 1, 2011, the Company has the option to redeem the Convertible Notes at a redemption
price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount of the notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest (the “Call
Option”). On each of December 1, 2011, June 1, 2016 and June 1, 2021, holders of the Convertible Notes have
the option to require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their notes at a purchase price in cash equal to
100 percent of the principal amount of the notes, plus accrued but unpaid interest (the “Put Option”). Holders
may also require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of their notes upon a fundamental change at a
repurchase price in cash equal to 100 percent of the principal amount of the notes to be repurchased, plus accrued
but unpaid interest.

A holder that surrenders the Convertible Notes for conversion in connection with a “make-whole
fundamental change” that occurs before December 1, 2011 may in certain circumstances be entitled to an
increased conversion rate (the “Make-whole Payment”). However, in lieu of increasing the conversion rate
applicable to those Convertible Notes, the Company may in certain circumstances elect to adjust the conversion
rate and the related conversion obligation so that the Convertible Notes will be convertible into shares of the
acquiring company’s common stock, except that the principal return due upon conversion will continue to be
payable in cash.

The Convertible Notes were issued to “qualified institutional buyers” (as defined in Rule 144 A under the
Securities Act) in a private placement transaction. The Company was required to file and maintain an effective
shelf registration statement under the Securities Act within 180 days after issuance of the Convertible Notes for
the resale of the Convertible Notes and the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Convertible
Notes. In the event that the Company failed to file an effective registration statement, the Company would have
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been required to pay additional interest equal to 0.25 percent per annum of the aggregate principal amount of the
Convertible Notes for the 90-day period beginning on the date of the registration default and thereafter at a rate
per year equal to 0.50 percent (“Additional Interest”). The Company fulfilled its initial obligation by filing the
required registration statement on Form S-3 on August 9, 2006.

Although it is not required to maintain any specified financial ratios under the Convertible Notes agreement,
the Company will be considered in default if it fails to fulfill its conversion or redemption obligations, make
required interest payments, provide notice to holders of the Convertible Notes in certain specified circumstances,
or cure its default on any indebtedness of its or its subsidiaries in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000 or
more. If an event of default has occurred and is continuing, the principal amount of the Convertible Notes plus
interest thereon may become immediately due and payable. The Company is currently in compliance with the
covenant restrictions.

As of December 31, 2006, the Convertible Notes had a fair market value of $583,363.

The Company evaluated the Convertible Notes agreement for potential embedded derivatives under SFAS
No. 133 and related applicable accounting literature, including Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No.
00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s
Own Stock”, and EITF Issue No. 05-4, “The Effect of a Liquidated Damages Clause on a Freestanding Financial
Instrument Subject to Issue No. 00-19.” The conversion feature, the Make-whole Payment, the Put Option of the
holder, and the Call Option of the Company were determined to not meet the embedded derivative criteria as set
forth by SFAS No. 133. Therefore, no fair value has been recorded for these items. The Contingent Interest
feature and the conversion feature related to the trading price of the Convertible Notes represent embedded
derivatives that require separate recognition of fair value apart from the Convertible Notes under SFAS No. 133.
As a result, the Company was required to separate the value of these items from the Convertible Notes and record
a liability on the consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2006, both the Contingent Interest feature and
the conversion feature had nominal values and, therefore, were not recorded in the consolidated financial
statements. The Company will continue to evaluate the materiality of the value of these items on a quarterly basis
and record the resulting adjustment, if any, in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations. The
Company evaluated the “Additional Interest” provision of the registration rights clause in accordance with EITF
Issue No. 05-4 and concluded that the item should be evaluated separately as a liability. The Company fulfilled
its initial registration obligation and therefore has no liability in connection with this provision as of
December 31, 2006.

5.875% senior notes due 2016

In June 2006, the Company issued €250,000, or $330,033, in aggregate principal amount of 5.875 percent
senior notes (the “Euro Notes™) due in 2016. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on June 30 and
December 30 of each year, beginning on December 30, 2006. The Euro Notes were issued at 99.611 percent of
the principal amount, which resulted in an original issue discount of €973, or $1,233. The Euro Notes are senior
unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of the Company’s existing and future senior unsecured
indebtedness. The Company recorded $3,321 of deferred financing costs associated with the issuance of the Euro
Notes and will amortize the amount over 10 years starting from the issuance date.
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If the acquisition of Serologicals did not occur, the Company would have been required to repurchase the
Euro Notes on or before October 31, 2006 at a redemption price, payable in cash, equal to 101 percent of the
principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest (the “Repurchase Obligation”). Upon the occurrence of any
change in control, holders of the Euro Notes may require the Company to repurchase all of their Euro Notes for a
cash price equal to 101 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon (the holder’s
“Put Option”). Before June 30, 2016, the Company may, at its option, redeem the Euro Notes, in whole or in part,
for cash, at a redemption price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount of the Euro Notes it redeems, plus
applicable “make-whole” premium (“call options”). In addition, the Company may redeem at its option in whole,
but not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, upon the occurrence of certain tax events in the United States (“call options”). The Company evaluated
the Euro Notes agreement for potential embedded derivatives under SFAS No. 133 and determined that the
Company’s call options, the holder’s Put Option, and the Company’s Repurchase Obligation do not meet the
embedded derivative criteria as set forth by SFAS No. 133.

The indenture for the Euro Notes places certain restrictions on the Company’s ability to create, incur,
assume or suffer liens on its manufacturing plants and other principal facilities in the United States and to enter
into certain sale-leaseback transactions. The Company would also be considered in default if it fails to fulfill its
redemption obligations, make required interest payments, provide notice to holders of the Euro Notes in certain
specified circumstances, or cure its default on any indebtedness of the Company or its subsidiaries in the
aggregate principal amount of $50,000 or more. If an event of default has occurred and is continuing, the
principal amounts of the Euro Notes plus any accrued interest thereon may become immediately due and payable.
The Company is currently in compliance with the covenant restrictions.

As of December 31, 2006, the Euro Notes had a fair market value of €263,775, or $348,218.

11. Income Taxes

The Company’s provisions for income taxes are summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

U.S. and foreign (loss) income before income taxes:

U S, $(12,564) $ 38,650 $ 49,829

Foreign . ... ..o 132,947 98,883 80,650

Income before inCOmMe taxes . ..« oo oo e e $120,383  $137,533  $130,479
Domestic and foreign (benefit from) provision for income taxes:

US.Federal .......... ..., $ (8,405) $ 33591 $ 5,676

Foreign ...... ... 29,796 21,560 16,218

US.State ..ot 71 2,214 3,029

$ 21,462 $ 57,365 $ 24,923

Current and deferred provision for (benefit from) income taxes:
CUITENt . ot e e et et $ 35,700 $ 46,134 $ 23,726
Deferred . ........ i (14,238) 11,231 1,197

$ 21,462 $ 57,365 $ 24,923
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Deferred income taxes represents the tax effects of transactions that are reported in different periods for tax
and financial reporting purposes. These amounts consist of the tax effects of temporary differences between the
tax and financial reporting balances and tax carryforwards. Pursuant to SFAS No.109, current and non-current
deferred income tax assets and liabilities within the same tax jurisdiction are generally offset for presentation in
the consolidated balance sheets.

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory related transactions . ... ..............iiiniiin $ 41,516 $ 47,285
Retirement plans and postretirement benefits . ........... ... ... ... .... 17,359 12,531
Tax Credits . . ..ot 46,927 32,986
Net operating loss carryforwards . ............. .. .. .. .. ... . . ... 32,458 5,857
Capitalized research and development costs .. ........... ... ... ........ 17,708 19,880
Intangible assets and goodwill ........ ... ... .. .. .. . 47,630 4,599
Deferred State tax aSSELS . . ...ttt 26,781 24,224
ACCTUE EXPENSES . o v v e ettt ettt e e 27,585 12,363
O her . oo e 25,719 12,665
Total deferred tax aSSELS . . ...ttt e 283,683 172,390
Valuation allowance . ............... ittt (29,146) (24,224)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance .................... 254,537 148,166
Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchased intangible assets ... .......... ... .. 182,967 9,106
O her . oo e 20,530 20,646
Total deferred tax liabilities ... ........ .. 203,497 29,752
Net deferred tax aSSets . . . oo vt ettt e e e e e $ 51,040 $118.,414

At December 31, 2006, the Company had gross federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$100,391 that will begin to expire in 2025 through 2026. The Company also has foreign net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $22,988 that will begin to expire in 2009 through 2026 or can be carried forward
indefinitely. When net operating losses are realized, approximately $9,546 of tax benefits from the Company’s
stock plan activities will be recorded in additional paid in capital. The Company has general business credit
carryforwards of approximately $10,886 that expire in the years 2007 through 2026. In addition, the Company
has alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately $10,878, which can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Valuation allowances were established for the expiration of federal and state research credits, state
investment credit carryforwards, some foreign and state net operating loss carryforwards, and a capital loss
carryforward. Although realization is not assured, the Company believes it is more likely than not that the
remainder of deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances, will be realized. The amount of deferred tax assets
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income are
reduced.
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There is a valuation allowance related to federal research credits in the amount of $1,121. At December 31,
2006, the Company also had $26,800 of state tax credits and net operating loss carryforwards against which a
valuation allowance of $21,025 is provided. There is a valuation allowance on the capital loss carryforward
amount of approximately $2,587 and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $4,413 at
December 31, 2006.

The Company provides for U.S. income taxes on the earnings of foreign subsidiaries unless they are
considered indefinitely invested outside the U.S. The pre-tax income from Ireland, Sweden and United Kingdom
are considered indefinitely reinvested overseas. This determination was made for the second half of the year for
Sweden and United Kingdom. The Company has not recorded deferred income taxes applicable to undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. These earnings amounted to
$94,482 at December 31, 2006. If earnings of such foreign subsidiaries were not indefinitely reinvested, a
deferred tax liability of $24,427 would have been required at December 31, 2006.

On October 22, 2004, President Bush signed into law the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the
“AJCA”). The AJCA contained a number of provisions which affected the Company. One provision of the AJCA
established a special deduction for “Qualified Domestic Production Activities.” This AJCA provision applies to
Millipore because the Company is a U.S. manufacturer. The special deduction starts at 3 percent of “Qualified
Production Income” (“QPI”) as defined in the AJCA in 2005 and will be 9 percent of QPI when fully phased in
after 2009. The Company received a benefit under the QPI provision amounting to $0 and $349 in 2006 and
2005, respectively.

A second provision of the AJCA provided a temporary incentive for a U.S. company to repatriate funds
deemed to be permanently reinvested outside the U.S. at a reduced effective federal tax rate on qualified
amounts. Under this provision of the AJCA, the Company repatriated approximately $500,000 and provided
taxes of $30,634 in December 2005. As a result of this repatriation transaction, there were no cumulative
earnings outside the United States upon which U.S. income taxes had not been provided at December 31, 2005.

A summary of the differences between the Company’s worldwide effective tax rate and the United States
statutory federal income tax rate is as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

U.S. statutory federal income tax rate .................vuinineenan.n. 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Puerto Rico tax rate benefit ......... ... .. ... . .. ... . . ... .. — (3.2) (3.4)
Ireland, Sweden and UK tax rate benefit .. ........................... (16.1) (10.8) (10.9)
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit ..................... 0.1 0.2 1.5
Exportsalesbenefit ........ ... ... 0.5) 0.7) (1.6)
Change in valuation allowance .............. .. . .. i, — 2.5) —
U.S. tax on repatriation of foreign earnings .. ......................... — 22.2 —
Decrease in taX IESEIVES . . ..o v vttt e e it et e — — (1.6)
Write-off of purchased in-process research and development . ............ — 0.8 —

O her . .o 0.7 0.7 0.1
Effective taxrate .. ... ... ... .. ... 17.8% 41.7% 19.1%

The Company is a worldwide business. The Company is subject to tax audits on a regular basis. Because
significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s worldwide provision for income taxes, the
Company periodically assesses the Company’s exposures related to the Company’s provision for income taxes
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and appropriately accrue taxes for contingencies that may result in potential tax obligations. The Company
believes the reserves are necessary to adequately reflect tax obligations which may arise out of current and future
audits. Any reduction of these contingent liabilities or additional assessment would increase or decrease income,
respectively, in the period such determination is made.

In the normal course of business, various tax authorities examine the Company, including the Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”). In 2006, the IRS completed the examination phase of 2002 and 2003 and commenced
examination of 2004 and 2005. Although the outcome of these examinations cannot currently be determined, the
Company believes adequate provision has been made for any potential unfavorable financial statement impact.

Tax exemptions relating to Ireland operations are effective through 2010. The special U.S. federal tax
regime applicable to the Company’s Puerto Rico operations expired on December 31, 2005.

12. Stock Plans and Stock-based Compensation
Stock Incentive Plan

As of January 1, 2006, the Company had two share-based compensation plans, the “1999 Stock Incentive
Plan” (the “1999 Plan”) and the “1999 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors” (the “Directors’ Plan”).
On April 26, 2006, the Company’s shareholders approved amendments to the 1999 Plan to permit awards of
equity incentive compensation to non-employee directors of the Company under the 1999 Plan and to add to the
1999 Plan the 119 shares of the Company’s common stock then remaining available for grant under the
Directors’ Plan. Also as of April 26, 2006, the Directors’ Plan was terminated, except that any option grant
previously made under the Directors’ Plan remained in effect pursuant to its terms.

The 1999 Plan, as in effect at December 31, 2006, allowed for the issuance of a total of 11,321 shares of
common stock, of which 119 represent new shares from the Directors’ Plan. The types of awards permitted under
the 1999 Plan include stock options, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights and stock units (including
restricted stock units). The Company may condition the grant or vesting of awards on the satisfaction of
performance conditions. The exercise price of the stock options may not be less than the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock at the time of grant. Stock options generally vest over a four-year period and expire
no later than ten years from the date of grant. Restricted stock awards represent shares of common stock issued to
employees subject to forfeiture if the vesting conditions are not satisfied. Restricted stock units represent the
right to receive shares of common stock upon meeting specified vesting requirements. The vesting conditions for
the Company’s restricted stock awards and restricted stock units are determined by the Board of Directors at the
time of grant. Restricted stock and restricted stock units, which are awarded at no cost to employees, cannot be
sold, assigned, transferred or pledged during the restriction period. The restriction or vesting period ranges from
two to four years. In most instances, shares are subject to forfeiture should employment terminate during the
restriction period.
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A summary of stock option activities with respect to the 1999 Plan and the Directors Plan is as follows:

Stock Options
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Shares (in  Weighted Average Life (in
thousands) Exercise Price years)
Outstanding at January 1,2004 ........ . ... ... ... 5,830 $39.86
Granted . ... 2,189 $51.27
EXercised .. ... (852) $51.82
Canceled orexpired .. ..ot _(112) $42.96
Outstanding at December 31,2004 ........ ... ... .. ... ....... 7,055 $44.08
Granted .. ... .. 305 $53.45
EXEICISEd . . v oottt e e (2,397) $44.41
Canceled Or €XPIred . ..o oe oo oo e (303) $43.04
Outstanding at December 31,2005 ............ ... ... .. .. ..... ﬂ $44_6O
Granted . ... 258 $67.20
BXErcised . .. .ottt (1,296) $43.42
Canceled orexpired .. ....... ..ot ﬂ) $45.90
Outstanding at December 31,2006, ........... .. ... ... ... .... 3,499 $46.66 @
Exercisable at December 31,2004 . ........ ... . . . . .. ... 5,044 $46.55
Exercisable at December 31,2005 . ........ .. . . . . ... 3,166 $45.96
Exercisable at December 31,2006 . ......... ... ... ... 2,280 $45.59 E
The following table summarizes information about stock options at December 31, 2006:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Contractual Average Average
Life (in Exercise Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding years) Price Exercisable Price
$24.26-$31.94 848 5.4 $31.43 519 $31.11
$32.65-$48.72 987 6.5 $45.18 577 $43.10
$48.91-$51.99 718 7.3 $51.48 545 $51.78
$52.22-$64.42 704 55 $55.00 633 $54.23
$64.68-$75.25 242 9.1 $67.56 6 $66.07
$24.26-$75.25 3,499 6.3 $46.66 2,280 $45.59
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At December 31, 2006, the total aggregate intrinsic value for options currently exercisable and options
outstanding was $47,914 and $70,005, respectively. These values represent the total pre-tax intrinsic value based
on the Company’s closing common stock price of $66.60 as of December 31, 2006. This intrinsic value
represents the value that would have been received by the option holders had option holders exercised all of their
options as of that date. Intrinsic value for stock options is defined as the difference between the current market
value and the grant price. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004 was $32,118, $32,297, and $16,830, respectively. The total fair value of shares of
restricted stock and restricted stock units vested during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was
$166, $1,450, and $0 respectively.

The following table summarizes the status of unvested restricted stock awards and restricted stock units as
of December 31, 2006 as well as changes during the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted Average
Grant-date Fair
Shares Value
Unvested January 1,2006 ... ...t 15 $55.09
Granted . ... ... 243 $66.74
VEStEA . .ot et 3) $63.79
Forfeited . . ... ...t (10) $66.79
Unvested at December 31,2000 . . .. ..ot ﬁ $66.08

Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s Employees’ Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which was discontinued in February 2005,
allowed for the issuance of up to 1,300 shares of common stock. The ESPP allowed eligible employees to
purchase the stock at 85 percent of the lesser of the fair market value of the common stock on June 1, the
beginning of the ESPP plan year, or the closing price at the end of every three months. Each employee could
purchase up to 10 percent (up to a maximum of $25) of eligible compensation. In 2005 and 2004, shares issued
under the ESPP were 20 and 86, respectively.

Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Agreements

Through 2001, deferred compensation agreements for non-employee directors allowed for these directors to
defer their directors’ fees by converting them to deferred compensation phantom stock units based on 100
percent of the fair market value of Millipore common stock on periodic conversion dates. Upon retirement or
earlier termination of service from the Board of Directors, the cash equivalent of the phantom stock units is
distributed in annual installments over ten years. The Company records a compensation adjustment related to the
change in the fair market value of stock at the grant date as compared to the current fair market value of the
stock. In June 2002, such conversion to phantom stock units was discontinued, and deferred compensation
agreements between the Company and certain non-employee directors thereafter allowed for a cash deferral of
directors’ fees. In connection with these deferred compensation arrangements, the Company recorded
compensation expense of $191, $889 and $470 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Stock-based Compensation

The following table presents stock-based compensation expense included in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Year ended

December 31, 2006
Reduction to:

Cost Of SAlES . . .ot $ 1,803
Selling, general and administrative €Xpenses . . ... ...........c.ooueenen... 8,860
Research and development Xpenses . ... ...........vuuienenennenenan.. 1,632
Income before income taxes and minority interest . . . ........... ... ...... 12,295
Provision for inCOme taxes . . ... ........ouiuui it (3,881)
NELINCOME . ..ottt e e e e 8,414
Earnings per share:

BasiC ..ttt $ 0.16

Diluted . ... $ 0.16

The weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $25.00, $19.90, and $18.37 per option, respectively. The weighted average grant-date fair
value of restricted stock and restricted stock units awarded during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
was $66.75 and $61.56 per unit, respectively. No restricted stock units were granted in 2004. The fair value of
the fixed option grants was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions for option grants:

Year ended
December 31,
w 2005 w
Risk-free interest rate . ... ...ttt 47% 3.8% 3.4%
Volatility factor . ...... .. ... 33.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Weighted average expected life (inyears) .......... .. ... .. ..o vo... 5 5 5
Dividend rate ... .. ... ... 00% 0.0% 0.0%

The Company did not capitalize any stock-based compensation related costs as such costs were not material
for the year ended December 31, 2006. Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense was $22,424 at
December 31, 2006 and is expected to be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization period of
1.8 years. The forfeiture rate used in the share-based compensation expense calculation for the year ended
December 31, 2006 was 4 percent.

Pursuant to requirements in SFAS No. 123(R), the Company reclassified unearned compensation balance of
$290 related to restricted stock awards to additional paid-in capital as of January 1, 2006.
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Prior to its adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company applied the recognition and
measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 in accounting for stock-based compensation plans and complied
with the disclosure requirements under SFAS No. 123. The following table illustrates the effect on net income
and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, as if the Company had

accounted for its stock-based employee compensation under the fair value method:

Netincome, as TePOTted . . . . oot v vttt e e e
Add:

Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net

income, net of related tax effects .......... ... ... ... .. ....
Deduct:

Pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method, net of related tax effects (excluding
acceleration of out-of-the-money options) .......................

Pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for the acceleration of out-of-the-money
options, net of related tax effects ............ ... ... ... .. ... ..

Pro formanet inCOME . . ... it

Earnings per share:
Basic, asreported ... ... ..

Basic, proforma . ........ ...
Diluted, asreported . . ... ...

Diluted, proforma . ....... .. ...
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Year ended
December 31,
2005 2004
$80,168  $105,556
3,634 1,563
(9,937) (27,429)
— (16,671)
$73,865 $ 63,019
$ 157 $ 213
$ 145 % 1.27
$ 155 $ 210
$ 141 $ 125
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13. Employee Benefit Plans
The Company sponsors numerous domestic and employee benefit plans, which are discussed below.

Effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS
No. 158. Prior to the adoption of the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, the Company accounted for its
defined benefit post-retirement plans under SFAS No. 87, “Employers Accounting for Pensions” (“SFAS
No. 87”) and SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” (“SFAS
No. 106”). SFAS No. 87 required that a liability (minimum pension liability) be recorded when the accumulated
benefit obligation (ABO) liability exceeded the fair value of plan assets. Any adjustment was recorded as a
non-cash charge to accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. SFAS No. 106 required
that the liability recorded should represent the actuarial present value of all future benefits attributable to an
employee’s service rendered to date. Under both SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106, changes in the funded status
were not immediately recognized, rather they were deferred and recognized ratably over future periods. Upon
adoption of the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158, the Company recognized the amounts of prior changes
in the funded status of its post-retirement benefit plans through accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
As a result, the Company recognized the following adjustments in individual line items of its consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2006:

Prior to  Effect of  Asreported

adoption  adopting at

of SFAS SFAS December 31,

No. 158 No. 158 2006
U.S. Retirement Plan:
OHhET ASSELS . .+ v v v v et e $ — $ — $§ —
Liability for pension benefits ............ ... ... ... .. i $17953 $§ — $17,953
Accumulated other comprehensive income ............................ $14539 § — $14,539
U.S. Postretirement Plan:
Other @SSELS . o v ottt e et e e e e e $ — $ — $ —
Liability for pension benefits .. ..............uuuuuuuurninnnnnnnnnnn. $13,128 $(2,823) $10,305
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ........... ... ... ... $ —  $(2,823) $(2,823)

Foreign Plans:

OthET @SSELS . . v\ttt et e e et $ 848 $ (145 $ 703
Liability for pension benefits ............. ... ... i $13,613 $ 5,383 $18,996
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ........................... $ 138 $5,528 $ 5,666

The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for all of its retirement and postretirement benefit
plans, except for one foreign plan that uses September 30.

In addition, the Company uses the SFAS No. 87 accounting method to accrue for liabilities under certain
employee benefit programs that are based on the employees’ years of service. Upon adopting SFAS No. 158, the
Company recorded a $639 increase to other liabilities and a $415 reduction to accumulated other comprehensive
income, net of deferred taxes of $224.

United States Plans

Employee Savings Plans. The Millipore Corporation Employees’ Participation and Savings Plan (the
“Participation and Savings Plan”) is maintained for the benefit of all U.S. employees and combines both a defined
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contribution plan (the “Participation Plan”’) and an employee §401(K) savings plan (the “Savings Plan”). The
Company’s contributions to the Participation Plan are allocated among U.S. employees who have completed at
least two years of continuous service on the basis of the compensation they received during the year for which the
contribution is made. The Savings Plan allows employees to make certain tax-deferred voluntary contributions
upon hire date, which the Company makes a 25 percent matching contribution after one year of service or a 50
percent matching contribution after ten years of service for up to 6 percent of the employees’ eligible
compensation. In October 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved amendments to the Participation and
Savings Plan, effective January 1, 2007, that will allow eligible employees to begin to participate immediately in
the 401(k) component of the Participation Plan without any waiting period and increase the Company’s 401(k)
matching contribution rates, dollar for dollar, up to the first 6 percent of compensation deferred by the employee.
Total expense under the Participation and Savings Plan was $8,322, $7,455 and $7,522 in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

The Company offers a Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan for Key Salaried Employees (the
“Supplemental Plan”) to certain senior executives. This unfunded plan allows certain salary deferral benefits that
would otherwise be lost by reason of restrictions imposed by the Internal Revenue Code limiting the amount of
compensation which may be deferred under tax-qualified plans. Amounts deferred are converted into shares of
mutual funds selected by the employees and are valued at the closing market prices of those mutual funds.
During periods when the market values of the investments increase, the Company’s obligations increase and the
Company recognizes additional compensation expense. Total expense recorded under the Supplemental Plan was
$796, $405 and $591 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Millipore Corporation 2000 Deferred Compensation Plan for Senior Management (the “Deferred
Compensation Plan”) provides that certain members of senior management may elect to defer a portion of their
salary and bonus payments until retirement, termination of employment or the passage of a period of time (not
less than three years). The amounts deferred are invested in certain publicly traded mutual funds. Plan
participants are fully vested in their respective account balances at all times. The Company recognizes
compensation expense related to its obligations to pay the employee’s deferred compensation in the year such
compensation is earned. In subsequent periods, the Company recognizes increases or decreases to compensation
expense based on the performance of the underlying investments in the Deferred Compensation Plan. Total
increase in the market value of the underlying investments recognized as expense under the Deferred
Compensation Plan was $44, $42 and $119 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Pension Plans. The Company’s Retirement Plan for Employees of Millipore Corporation (the “Retirement
Plan”) is a defined benefit offset pension plan for all eligible U.S. employees. The Retirement Plan provides
benefits to the extent that assets of the Participation Plan, described above, do not provide guaranteed retirement
income levels set forth under the terms of the Retirement Plan. Guaranteed retirement income levels are
determined based on years of service and salary level as integrated with Social Security benefits. Employees are
eligible under the Retirement Plan after one year of continuous service and are vested after five years of service.
For accounting purposes, the Company uses the projected unit credit cost method of actuarial valuation to
determine the service cost and the projected benefit obligations. The actuarial method for funding purposes is the
entry age normal cost method. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute amounts annually to the
Retirement Plan to satisfy the minimum funding requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) plus additional tax deductible amounts as may be advisable under the
circumstances. Plan assets are invested primarily in mutual funds that maintain a portfolio of U.S. equity and
fixed income securities.
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In October 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved certain amendments to the Retirement Plan.
The effect of the amendment was to freeze the Retirement Plan effective December 31, 2006, after which no
benefits will accrue. The Company will provide eligible participants a one-time final opportunity in early 2007 to
transfer balances in their Participation Plan accounts to the Retirement Plan for the purpose of purchasing an
annuity under the existing terms of the Retirement Plan. The Company recorded a curtailment loss of $8,664 in
the statement of operations in the 2006 fourth quarter as a result of this amendment.

For purposes of determining the curtailment loss associated with the freeze of the Retirement Plan and the
related one-time opportunity to transfer Participation Plan balances that will be offered to employees in 2007, the
Company employed an assumption that 17.1 percent of available balances in the Participation Plan will be
transferred into the Retirement Plan. The 17.1 percent assumption was selected based on a review of the
Company’s actual transfer experience for the 2003-2005 period as well as 2002 transfer experience related to the
spin-off of the Company’s microelectronics business. Actual transfer experience was analyzed to determine the
percentage by age grouping of available Participation Plan balances that were transferred to the Retirement Plan.
These percentages were then applied to projected balances by age grouping as of December 31, 2006 to
determine the estimated balances that will be transferred by age grouping. The total of the balances that are
estimated to be transferred by age grouping represents 17.1 percent of total projected plan balances.

Postretirement Benefit Plans. In addition, the Company sponsors unfunded postretirement benefit plans
covering all U.S. employees. The plans provide medical and life insurance benefits and are, depending on the
plan, either contributory or non-contributory. The accounting for the postretirement benefit plans anticipates
future cost-sharing changes that are at the Company’s discretion. The postretirement benefit plans include a
limitation on the Company’s share of costs for recent and future retirees.

The following tables summarize the funded status of the Retirement Plan and postretirement benefit plans
and amounts reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Obligations and Funded Status

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginningof year ....................... $ 22,676 $20,491 $ 10,432 $ 11,290
Service (benefit) cost . . ... ... (348) (272) 425 410
Interest COSt . . oottt 1,420 1,121 548 541
Actuarial value of transfers from Participation Plan and Plan

participants’ contributions . ... ............ i 6,340 2,380 225 216
Actuarial 10ss /(gain) . ... 378 626 (554) (1,240)
Benefits paid ........ ... (1,804)  (1,670) (771) (785)
Curtailments . ... 8,664 — — —
Benefit obligations atend of year ........... .. ... .. .. ... ..... 37,326 22,676 10,305 10,432
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ................... 15,189 13,459 — —
Actual return on plan assets . ... 1,252 344 — —
Company contributions . .. ... .......ouuuetenennenenenenn... 1,037 1,513 546 569
Plan participant contributions ............... ... ... .. ... 3,699 1,543 225 216
Benefits paid .......... .. (1,804) (1,670) (771) (785)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year ........................ 19,373 15,189 — —
Funded status atend of year ................................ $(17,953) $(7,487) $(10,305) $(10,432)
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Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position
consist of:
Intangible asSet . ... .ot e $ — 8 8 $§ — 5 —
Non-current liability ........... ... ... (17,953)  (6,385) (10,305) (12,792)

$(17,953) $(6,377) $(10,305) $(12,792)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income consist of:
Net 10SS (aIN) . . oottt $ 14,539 $11,313 $ (2,823) $§ —

Information for the Retirement Plan with an accumulated

benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:
December 31,

2006 2005
Projected benefit obligations .. .............. ... .. ... $ 37,326 $22,676
Accumulated benefit obligations .. ........... ... ... .. ... .. ... $ 37,326 $21,574
Fair value of plan assets ................ccoiiiiiniinnnnn.... $ 19,373 $15,189
Components of net periodic benefit cost and other
amounts recognized in other comprehensive income
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service (benefit) /cost .. ....... ... ... ... ... ... $ (348) $ (272) $ (368) $425 $410 $ 470
Interest cost . ... 1,420 1,121 1,037 548 541 629
Expected return on plan assets .................. (1,258) (1,078)  (870) — — —
Amortization of prior service cost . .. ............. 7 8 8 — — —
Amortization of net loss /(gain) ................. 902 677 649 92) (107) 4)
Net periodic benefit cost ....................... $ 723 $ 456 $ 456 $881 $ 844 $1,095
Additional Information:
Increase in additional minimum pension liabilities
included in other comprehensive income . ....... $3,226 $2052 $1,997 N/A N/A N/A

The estimated net loss for the Retirement Plan that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $862. The estimated net gain for
the other defined benefit postretirement plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive
income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $116.

The Company’s net periodic benefit cost for the Retirement Plan is reduced by the service benefit because
the Retirement Plan is a defined benefit offset plan and the assets under the Participation Plan are generally
expected to grow at a faster rate than guaranteed retirement income levels defined under the Retirement Plan.
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Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations are as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

December 31, December 31,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Discountrate . .......vii e 5.75% 5.50%  5.75% 5.50%
Rate of compensationincrease ......................... 4.00% 4.00%  N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Discountrate .................. 550%1575% 5.75%  6.00% 5.50% 5.75%  6.00%
Expected return on plan assets . . . .. 8.00% 8.00%  8.00% N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase . . . . . 4.00% 4.00%  4.00% N/A N/A N/A

Net periodic benefit cost for pension benefits for 2006 was calculated utilizing a discount rate of 5.50
percent for 10 months and 5.75 percent for 2 months because the amendments to the Retirement Plan in October
2006 triggerred a new measurement date under SFAS No. 87.

In selecting the expected return on plan assets, the Company considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits under the Retirement Plan. This
included considering the asset allocations and the expected returns likely to be earned on these assets over the life
of the plan. The Company’s method is consistent with the prior year.

The discount rate reflects the rate at which an amount that is invested in a portfolio of high-quality debt
instruments would provide the future cash flows necessary to pay benefits when they come due.

The rate of compensation increase reflects the expected annual salary increase for the plan participants. The
rate is estimated based on historical experience and the Company’s current employee compensation strategy.

Plan assets

The weighted average asset allocations by asset category of the Company’s Retirement Plan are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
Equity SECUIILIES . . .. ..o e 59%  60%
Dbt SECUIILIES . . . oottt et e et e e 40% 39%
Other . .. _1% _l%
Total .. 1_00% @%

The Company’s investment policy includes a periodic review of the Retirement Plan’s investment in the
various asset classes. The current asset allocation target is 60 percent equities and 40 percent fixed income.
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Assumed healthcare cost trend rates

The following assumptions were used to determine the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations under
the Company’s postretirement benefit plans at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Postretirement
Benefits
2006 2005
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed fornextyear .............. ... .cvuinen.... 9.00% 9.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) . ... .. 5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trendrate .................. ... ... 2012 2011

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates could have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
healthcare plan. A one-percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates would have the following
effects:

1% Point 1% Point

Increase Decrease
Increase/(decrease) to total of service and interest cost components .......... $ 31 $ (25
Increase/(decrease) to postretirement benefit obligations . .. ................ $157 $(123)

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) introduced a
prescription drug benefit under Medicare as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree healthcare benefit
plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. In May 2004, the FASB
issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.” As permitted under FSP No. 106-2,
the Company elected to defer the accounting for the Act until the issuance of authoritative guidance on the
determination of actuarial equivalence for purposes of receiving the federal subsidy. On January 21, 2005, the
Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services released the final regulations implementing the Act. Based on these
final regulations, the Company determined that most benefits provided by the plan are at least actuarially
equivalent to Medicare Part D.

Cash flows

In 2007, the Company expects to contribute $1,442 to its Retirement Plan and $585 to its postretirement
benefit plans.

Estimated future benefit payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
paid:

Postretirement Benefits

Impact

Before of After
Pension Medicare Medicare Medicare

Benefits Part D Part D Part D

2007 .o $1,532 $ 585 $— $ 585
2008 .. $1,537 $ 691 $115 $ 576
2000 ... $1,548 $ 678 $129 $ 549
2010 ..o $1,551 $ 712 $137 $ 575
2011 .o $1,552 $ 726 $149 $ 577
2012—2016 . ... .. $8,259 $4,050 $915 $3,135
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Foreign Plans

The Company sponsors defined benefit retirement plans at various foreign subsidiaries. The Company

recognizes the periodic pension expense in the income statement and the associated liabilities in the balance sheet

at each of these foreign subsidiaries. The following tables summarize the funded status of significant foreign
employee retirement plans and amounts reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Obligations and Funded Status

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005
Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginningof year ............ ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 33,444 $ 31,340
SEIVICE COSE .« o ottt et et 2,480 2,156
Interest COSt . . ..o e 1,361 1,241
Foreign exchange effect ......... .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. . . .. 3,285 (4,222)
Actuarial (gain) 10SS ... ..ot (439) 2,343
Benefits paid .. ... . (629) (785)
Other . .o — 1,371
Benefit obligations atend of year .. ......... .. .. .. ... .. 39,502 33,444
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginningof year .......................... 16,622 15,319
Actual return on plan assets . ... ... 1,531 2,309
Foreign exchange effect ........ ... ... . . . . i i 2,035 (1,923)
Company CONIIDULIONS . .« . oottt ettt e e e e e e s 1,650 1,702
Benefitspaid . ... .. . (629) (785)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year . . . ............. .. .. ... .. .. ... .. 21,209 16,622
Funded status at yearend .............. . i $(18,293) $(16,822)
Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of:
NOD-CUITENE ASSEL . . . o o e e oottt e e e ettt $ 703 $ —
Non-current liability ... ... ... (18,996) (11,647)

$(18,293)  $(11,647)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consist
of:
NELLOSS oo et e e e e e e e $ 5,666 $ 937

The accumulated benefit obligations for these foreign retirement plans were $30,858 and $25,888 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Information for certain foreign retirement plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan
assets is as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
Projected benefit obligations .. ........ ... i $20,339  $26,506
Accumulated benefit obligations . . .............. . .. .. $15,654  $22,221
Fair value of plan assets . .............iiiniin i $ 3,339 $11,732

Components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Components of net periodic benefit cost:

SEIVICE COSE . .o vttt e e e $2,480 $2,156  $1,903

INterest COSt . o v vttt e 1,361 1,241 1,136

Expected return on plan assets ............... ... ..., (1,145) 918) (766)

Amortization of net transition asset . ....................... — 47 72

Settlement 10SS . ... .ot — — 158

Amortization of net 10SS . ... .. ... 169 129 153

Net periodic benefit cost . ..., $2865 $2,655 $2,656
Additional Information:

Increase/(decrease) in additional minimum pension liabilities

included in other comprehensive income .................. $ (798) $ (B3) $ 940

The estimated net loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $128.

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
DISCOUNLTALE . . . ottt e e e e e 4.16% 3.86%
Rate of compensation iNCIease . ... ... .....iirin ittt 3.01% 2.91%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

DiSCoUNt rate ... ...ttt 3.86% 4.15% 4.27%
Expected return on plan assets ... ... ... 6.29% 6.17% 5.92%
Rate of compensation inCrease . .. ..........c.uouuniiniinninninnen. .. 291% 2.92% 2.82%

In selecting the expected return on plan assets, the Company considered the average rate of earnings
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits under the Company’s foreign
retirement plans. This included considering the trusts’ asset allocations and the expected returns likely to be
earned over the life of these plans.

The discount rate reflects the rate at which an amount that is invested in a portfolio of high-quality debt
instruments would provide the future cash flows necessary to pay benefits when they come due.
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The rate of compensation increase reflects the expected annual salary increase for the plan participants. The
rate is estimated based on historical experience and the Company’s current employee compensation strategy.

Plan Assets

The weighted average asset allocations by asset category for the Company’s foreign retirement plans are as
follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
EqUity SECUIILIES . . . .ottt e e e e e 71% 68%
Dbt SECUIILICS . . . ot ottt ettt e e e e e 7% 9%
OtNT .« . oot 22%  23%
Total .o 100% 100%

The Company’s investment policy includes a periodic review of the retirement plans’ investments in the
various asset classes. The current weighted average asset allocation target is 65 percent equities, 15 percent fixed
income securities, and 20 percent other investments. Other investments include investments in money market
mutual funds and general funds at certain insurance companies.

Cash Flows
The Company expects to contribute $1,281 to its foreign retirement plans in 2007.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be
paid under foreign retirement plans:

2007 $ 611
2008 . $ 808
2000 . $ 995
2000 . $ 645
20 L $1,232
20122016 . ... $8.,415

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases. The Company occupies space and uses certain equipment under lease arrangements. At
December 31, 2006, future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms
exceeding one year and the amounts due from tenants on related subleases were as follows:

2007 e $19,265
20008 . 16,314
2000 12,821
2000 . 9,925
20T L 8,120
Thereafter . .. ... 17,336
Total minimum future rental payments ................iuininnenenennnn.. 83,781
Less: amounts due from subleases .. ........... .. ... i (699)
Total minimum future rental payments less sublease income ................. $83,082
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Rental expense under these lease arrangements in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $23,794, $18,356 and $19,611,
respectively.

Environmental. The Company’s operations are subject to environmental regulation by federal, state, and
local authorities in the United States and regulatory authorities with jurisdiction over its foreign operations. The
Company has accrued for the costs of environmental remediation activities and periodically reassesses these
amounts. The Company believes that the likelihood of incurring losses materially in excess of amounts accrued is
remote.

Other. The Company has purchase commitments totaling $191,137 at December 31, 2006.

The Company currently is not a party to any material legal proceeding and has no knowledge of any
material legal proceeding contemplated by any governmental authority or third party. The Company is subject to
a number of claims and legal proceedings which, in the opinion of the Company’s management, are incidental to
the Company’s normal business operations. In the opinion of the Company, although final settlement of these
suits and claims may impact the Company’s financial statements in a particular period, they will not, in the
aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of
operations.

Following the Company’s decision to consolidate the results of its 40 percent owned Indian Joint-Venture
(the “India JV”) in January 2006, the Company learned as a result of our internal controls procedures that certain
payment and commission practices at the India JV raise issues of compliance with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act. Promptly upon learning of this, the Company’s Audit and Finance Committee engaged outside
counsel and commenced an investigation. The Company is currently implementing certain corrective actions.
The Company has notified the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Department of Justice of this matter.
The operations and financial results of the India JV are not currently, and have not to date been, material to the
Company.

As permitted under Massachusetts law and required by the Company’s corporate by-laws, the Company
indemnifies its officers and directors for certain events or occurrences while the director or officer is or was
serving in such capacity. The maximum potential amount of future payments that could be required under these
indemnification obligations is unlimited; however, the Company has a Directors and Officers liability insurance
policy that enables the Company to recover a portion of any future amounts paid. As there were no known or
pending claims, the Company has not accrued a liability for these agreements as of December 31, 2006.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company warrants to customers that its products will conform to
published or agreed specifications. Generally, the applicable product warranty period is one year from the date of
delivery of the product to the customer or of site acceptance, if required. Additionally, the Company typically
provides limited warranties with respect to its services. From time to time, the Company also makes other
warranties to customers, including warranties that its products are manufactured in accordance with applicable
laws and not in violation of third party rights. The Company provides for estimated warranty costs at the time of
the product sale. The Company believes its warranty accrual as of December 31, 2006 appropriately reflects the
estimated cost of such warranty obligations.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company agrees from time to time to indemnify certain customers
against certain third party claims for property damage, bodily injury, personal injury or intellectual property
infringement arising from the operation or use of its products. Also, from time to time in agreements with its
suppliers, licensors and other business partners, the Company agrees to indemnify these partners against certain
liabilities arising out of the sale or use of its products. The maximum potential amount of future payments the
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Company could be required to make under these indemnification obligations is unlimited; however, the Company
has general and umbrella insurance policies that enable the Company to recover a portion of any amounts paid.
Based on its experience with such indemnification claims, the Company believes the estimated fair value of these
obligations is minimal. Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of
December 31, 2006.

As part of its past acquisitions and divestitures of businesses or assets, the Company has provided a variety
of warranties and indemnifications to the sellers and purchasers that are typical for such transactions. Typically
certain of the warranties and the indemnifications expire after a defined period of time following the transaction,
but certain warranties and indemnifications may survive indefinitely. As of December 31, 2006, no material
claims under these warranties or indemnifications are outstanding, and the Company does not know of any such
claims being contemplated.

15. Business Segment and Geographic Information

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes
standards for reporting information about operating segments in annual financial statements and requires selected
information for those segments to be presented in interim financial reports. It also establishes standards for
related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. The Company has
evaluated its business activities that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker for which
separate discrete financial information is available. As a result of this evaluation, the Company has determined
that it has two operating segments as of December 31, 2006: Bioprocess and Bioscience, which are aggregated
into one reporting segment. Prior to February 2005, the Company had three operating segments:
BioPharmaceutical, Laboratory Water and Life Sciences, which were aggregated into one reporting segment. In
February 2005, management combined the Laboratory Water and Life Sciences operating segments into one.

The Bioprocess operating segment develops, manufactures and sells consumable products and hardware and
provides related services used principally in the development and manufacturing of therapeutic products. The
Bioscience operating segment manufactures and sells instrumentation, consumable products and services used in
drug discovery and other laboratory applications. For both operating segments, economic characteristics,
production processes, products and services, types and classes of customers, methods of distribution and
regulatory environments are similar.

The Company attributes net sales to different geographic areas on the basis of the location of the customer.
Net sales and long-lived assets (property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets) information by
geographic area is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Net Sales
United STAteS . . .ottt $ 488,240 $353,136 $311,166
Other AMETICAS . . o oo e e e e 76,523 66,530 56,118

AMETICAS ..ttt 564,763 419,666 367,284
BUrOPE .« oo 491,006 399,592 353,605
Japan ... 117,623 119,990 115,795
Other Asia/Pacific .. ... ... . .. e 81,979 51,783 46,579

Asia/Pacific . ... .. ... . . 199,602 171,773 162,374

Total .. $1,255,371 $991,031 $883,263
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December 31,
2006 2005

Long-Lived Assets
UNIEEd STALES -« . v v e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e $279,871 $188,670
Other AMETICAS . . o o oo e e e e e e e e 14,088 20,168

AIETICAS . . .ttt 293,959 208,838
France . ... . 83,170 75,296
Treland . ... .o 115,779 75,318
Other BUTOPE . . ..o e e 26,056 8,608

BUrOpe . oo 225,005 159,222

ASIa/Pacific ... .. e 6,939 3,189

Total .. e $525,903 $371,249

Long-lived assets are net fixed assets attributed to the specific geographic regions.

16. Investments in Affiliated Companies

Millipore has an equity investment in a South African company that is accounted for using the equity
method. During 2006 the Company recorded $548 of income and received dividends totaling $523. During 2005,
the Company recorded $659 of income and $0 dividends. During 2004, the Company recorded $826 of income
and $121 of dividends.

In addition, Millipore has an equity investment in an Indian company that is engaged in the manufacture and
sale of certain types of filtration systems and laboratory water purification systems. This investment was
previously accounted for using the equity method. In 2006, Millipore identified this entity as a variable interest
entity under the FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” As Millipore is
deemed the primary beneficiary, results of this Indian entity have been consolidated in Millipore’s consolidated
financial statements beginning January 1, 2006. The entity had total net assets of $8,467 at December 31, 2006.

17. Officer Compensation Agreements

Mr. Francis J. Lunger stepped down as CEO and President of Millipore on December 31, 2004 and as a
Director and Chairman of Millipore’s Board of Directors on March 1, 2005. According to Mr. Lunger’s
separation agreement, the Company recorded an aggregate of $7,520 in compensation expense, of which $2,501
was related to severance, bonus and other benefits and $5,019 was related to stock options. In 2005, the
Company recorded $519 for severance, bonus and other benefits related compensation expense and $3,242 for
stock options related compensation expense. In 2004, the Company recorded $1,982 for severance, bonus and
other benefits related compensation expense and $1,777 for stock options related compensation expense.

Dr. Martin D. Madaus joined Millipore as CEO and President and as a Director on January 1, 2005.
Dr. Madaus became Chairman of Millipore’s Board of Directors on March 1, 2005. In 2005, the Company
reimbursed Dr. Madaus $1,819 for certain compensation from his former employer forfeited by his acceptance of
Millipore’s employment offer. The compensation was a combination of $1,433 of cash and 8 shares of restricted
stock with a fair market value of $386. The fair value of the restricted stock was recorded as unearned
compensation as of the date of grant and will be amortized over the four-year restriction period. Upon the
adoption of SFAS No. 123R, the remaining unearned compensation of $290 as of January 1, 2006 was
reclassified to additional paid-in capital on the consolidated balance sheet. The Company also paid $94 for his
relocation costs in 2005.

In addition, the Company recorded $6,219 in compensation expense related to the separation of certain other
executive officers in 2005. The amount consisted of severance, bonus and other benefits related compensation
expense of $4,004 and stock option related compensation expense of $2,215 resulting from modification of
certain options pursuant to the separation agreements.
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The Company’s unaudited quarterly results are summarized below:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

2006
Netsales . ... $268.415 $273,775 $330,117 $383,064 $1,255,371
Costofsales ............ ... 125,772 130,249 169,261 200,326 625,608

Grossprofit ........ .. .. ..., 142,643 143,526 160,856 182,738 629,763
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . .. .. 82,286 87,538 106,785 122,233 398,842
Research and development expenses ............ 18,413 19,717 24,637 23,850 86,617

Operating income . . .........c..ouuenen... 41,944 36,271 29,434 36,655 144,304
Interestincome ...............ciiiiiiiinn. 6,892 9,268 4,713 542 21,415
Interest eXpense ... .......oouvimiennnnenan... (4,193) (7,992) (16,548) (16,603) (45,336)

Income before income taxes ............... 44,643 37,547 17,599 20,594 120,383
Provision for income taxes .................... 10,015 7,986 2,347 1,114 21,462
Minority interest . ............... ... 97 424 439 977 1,937
NEtinCome . ........uuuiiiiinnn.. $ 34531 $ 29,137 $ 14,813 $ 18,503 $ 96,984
Earnings per share:

Basic ......... .. $ 066 $ 055 $ 028 $ 035 $ 1.82

Diluted ......... ... .. ... $ 064 $ 054 $ 027 $ 034 $ 1.79
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ......... .. 52,713 53,183 53,286 53,452 53,160

Diluted ......... ... .. ... 53,883 54,207 54,172 54,468 54,245
2005
Netsales . ... $250,178 $244,964 $239,557 $256,332 $ 991,031
Costofsales ............o ... 114,103 116,125 116,862 124,933 472,023

Grossprofit ........ .. .. ..., 136,075 128,839 122,695 131,399 519,008
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ... .. 77,433 80,550 72,601 78,445 309,029
Research and development expenses ............ 16,073 17,341 15,709 16,929 66,052
Purchased in-process research and

development ™ ... ... ... ... ... .. — — 3,149 — 3,149

Operating income . ................c...... 42,569 30,948 31,236 36,025 140,778
Interestincome ...............ciiiiiiiinn. 675 633 894 1,264 3,466
Interest eXpense ... .......couvuiininan.. (1,834) (1,755) (1,432) (1,690) (6,711)

Income before income taxes ............... 41,410 29,826 30,698 35,599 137,533
Provision for income taxes @ . ................. 9,110 5,849 7,824 34,582 57,365
NEtinCome . .......ouuuiiiin ... $ 32,300 $ 23,977 $ 22,874 $ 1,017 $ 80,168
Earnings per share:

Basic ......... .. $ 065 $ 048 $ 044 $ 002 $ 1.57

Diluted ......... ... .. ... $ 064 $ 047 $ 044 $ 002 $ 1.55
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ......... . . 49,851 50,143 51,683 52,123 50,953

Diluted ......... ... .. ... 50,327 50,707 52,579 52,964 51,659
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For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, each of the quarters basic earnings per share do not sum
to the full year basic earnings per share because of rounding. For the year ended December 31, 2006, each of the
quarters diluted earnings per share do not sum to the full year diluted earnings per share because of rounding.

(1) In the third quarter of 2005, we expensed purchased in-process research and development related to the
NovAseptic acquisition because these costs had no alternative future uses and had not reached technological
feasibility.

(2) In the fourth quarter of 2005, our tax provision includes $30,634 tax obligations related to the repatriation of
foreign earnings and the release of $3,177 of tax valuation allowance.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.

This item is not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of the fiscal year covered by this report. Based upon that
evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported in accordance with and within the time periods specified in
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting can be found on page 57 of this
Form 10-K. The Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’s report on management’s assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting can be found on page 58 of this Form 10-K.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified during the three

months ended December 31, 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

This item is not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item with respect to our directors is incorporated by reference to our
definitive Proxy Statement for Millipore’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held on May 4, 2007
(the “Proxy Statement”) under the caption “MANAGEMENT AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS”. The Proxy
Statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than April 30, 2007.

The information required by this item with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and our Audit and Finance Committee and our Audit Committee Financial Expert(s) is
incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the captions “OWNERSHIP OF MILLIPORE
COMMON STOCK—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”, and “Committees, Meetings
and Compensation of Directors Shareholder Communications with Directors — Audit and Finance Committee”,
respectively.

Information required by this item with respect to our executive officers is set forth under “Executive
Officers of the Registrant” in Item 1 of this Form 10-K report.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, our principal financial
officer, and our principal accounting officer, as well as to our other employees. This code of ethics consists of
our Corporate Compliance Policy, our Employee Code of Conduct and our Rules of Conduct. We have made this
code of ethics available on our website, as described under “Other Information” in Item 1 of this Form 10-K
report. We also intend to provide disclosure on our website regarding any amendments to our code of ethics, or
waivers from our code of ethics as relate to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or principal
accounting officer, or persons performing similar functions, within four days following any such amendments or
waivers.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item with respect to executive compensation, compensation committee
interlocks and compensation committee report is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the
caption “Executive Compensation”, “Committees, Meetings and Compensation of Directors; Shareholder
Communications with Directors — Management Development and Compensation Committee — Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Report of the Management Development and
Compensation Committee”, respectively.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item with respect to Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity
Compensation Plans is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the caption “Equity
Compensation Plan Benefit Information”.

The information required by this item with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management of the Company is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the captions “Ownership
of Millipore Common Stock—Other Principal Holders of Millipore Common Stock™ and “Ownership of
Millipore Common Stock—Management Ownership of Millipore Common Stock™.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item with respect to certain relationships and related transactions is
incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions”. The information required by this item with respect to director independence is incorporated by
reference to the Proxy Statement under the caption “Corporate Governance—Committees, Meetings and
Compensation of Directors; Shareholder Communications with Directors”.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement under the caption
“Report of the Audit and Finance Committee”.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

The following documents are filed or furnished, or incorporated by reference, as a part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements.
The following Financial Statements are filed as part of this report

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ... ....... ... ... . . . . .. 58
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 ............ 60
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 . ......... . . i, 61
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004 62
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 . ........ 63
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . .. ......... ...t i e e 64
Quarterly Results (Unaudited) ... ... ... ... e e e e 101

2. Financial Statement Schedules.

No financial statement schedules have been included because they are not applicable or not required under
Regulation S-X, or the required information is included in the Company’s Financial Statements.

3. List of Exhibits.

A. The following exhibits are incorporated herein by reference. All referenced Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K
are those of Millipore Corporation [Commission File No. 0-1052]:

Reg. S-K
Item 601(b) Referenced Document on file with the
Reference Document Incorporated Commission
1.1 Purchase Agreement dated as of June 7, 2006 Form 8-K filed June 9, 2006

among Millipore, UBS Limited and Goldman,
Sachs & Co., as representatives for the initial
purchasers named therein

1.2 Purchase Agreement dated as of June 23, 2006, Form 8-K filed June 28, 2006
among Millipore, UBS Limited and Banc of
America Securities Limited, as representatives
for the initial purchasers named therein

2.1 Form of Master Separation and Distribution Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
Agreement between Millipore and Mykrolis
Corporation+

22 Form of General Assignment and Assumption Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
Agreement between Millipore and Mykrolis
Corporation+

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April  Form 8-K filed April 27, 2006
25, 2006 among Millipore, Charleston
Acquisition Corp. and Serologicals Corporation+

2.4 Share Purchase Agreement dated July 6, 2005 Form 8-K filed July 8, 2005
among Millipore International Holding Company
B.V., NovAseptic AB, and certain other entities
and individuals+

3(1) Restated Articles of Organization, as amended Form 10-K for year ended December 31, 1996
May 6, 1996
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Reg. S-K

Item 601(b) Referenced Document on file with the
Reference Document Incorporated Commission
3(ii) By Laws, as amended Form 8-K filed February 14, 2005
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate Registration Statement on Form S-3 ASR (No.
333-136451)
4.2.1 Common Stock Rights Agreement dated as of Form 8-K filed April 30, 1998
April 15, 1988, as amended and restated
April 16, 1998 between Millipore and The First
National Bank of Boston
422 Agreement of Substitution and Amendment of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003
Common Stock Rights Agreement dated as of
February 14, 2003 between Millipore and
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
423 Amendment of Common Stock Rights Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003
Agreement dated May 16, 2003 between
Millipore and American Stock Transfer and
Trust Company
4.3 Indenture dated as of April 1, 1997 between Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-
Millipore and State Street Bank and Trust 23025)
Company
4.4 Indenture dated as of June 13, 2006 among Form 8-K filed June 16, 2006
Millipore, Wilmington Trust Company and
Citibank, N.A.
4.5 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June ~ Form 8-K filed June 16, 2006
13, 2006 among Millipore and the initial
purchasers named therein
4.5 Indenture dated as of June 30, 2006 among Form 8-K filed July 6, 2006
Millipore, Citibank, N.A., and Citibank
International plc
10.1.1 Form of letter agreement with directors relating ~ Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
to the deferral of directors fees and conversion 1998
into phantom stock units*
10.1.2 Form of letter agreement with directors relating ~ Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
to the deferral of directors’ cash compensation®* 2002
10.1.3 Form of Amendment dated August 12, 2004 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Deferral Letter Agreement with Directors of 2004
Millipore Corporation*
10.1.4 Director Compensation™ Form 8-K filed February 21, 2006
10.2.1 1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Directors* 1998
10.2.2 Amendment dated November 18, 2003 to 1989 Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors* 2003
10.2.3 Form of Stock Option Grant to Directors under Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

1989 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee
Directors*
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Item 601(b) Referenced Document

Reference Document Incorporated on file with the Commission

10.3.1 Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan ~ Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003
for Non-Employee Directors*

10.3.2 Amendment dated November 18, 2003 to 1999 Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors®* 2003

10.3.3 Form of Stock Option Grant to Directors under Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1999 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee 2004
Directors*

10.4.1 Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Incentive Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 1, 2006
Plan dated April 26, 2006*

10.4.2 Form of Stock Option Grant to Executive Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Officers and other employees under 1999 Stock 2004
Incentive Plan*

10.4.3 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant to Form 8-K filed February 21, 2006
Executive Officers and other employees under
1999 Stock Incentive Plan*

10.4.4 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Grant for Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
Nonemployee Directors under 1999 Stock 2006
Incentive Plan*

10.4.5 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Document  Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
for Nonemployee Directors under 1999 Stock 2006
Incentive Plan*

10.5.1 2000 Deferred Compensation Plan for Senior Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Management* 2000

10.5.2 Amendment No. 1 dated March 31, 2001 to 2000 Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Deferred Compensation Plan for Senior 2001
Management *

10.5.3 Standard Deferred Compensation Agreement* Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

2000

10.6.1 Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan for Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Key Salaried Employees of Millipore 2000
Corporation, as amended through 2000*

10.6.2 Amendment dated March 31, 2001 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan for 2001
Key Salaried Employees of Millipore
Corporation*

10.6.3 Amendment dated November 18, 2003 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Supplemental Savings and Retirement Plan for 2003
Key Salaried Employees of Millipore
Corporation*

10.7 Millipore Incentive Plan (f/k/a 2000 Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Management Incentive Plan)* 2000

10.8 Form of Executive Termination Agreement with ~ Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
executive officers other than CEO* 2003

10.9 Form of Officer Severance Agreement with Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

executive officers other than CEO*
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Item 601(b) Referenced Document on file with the

Reference Document Incorporated Commission

10.10.1 Offer Letter to Martin D. Madaus dated October ~ Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
11, 2004* 2004

10.10.2 Executive Termination Agreement dated January Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1, 2005 between Millipore and Martin D. 2004
Madaus*

10.10.3 Officer Severance Agreement dated January 1, Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005 between Millipore and Martin D. Madaus* 2004

10.10.4 Restricted Stock Agreement dated January 1, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 1,
2005 between Millipore and Martin D. Madaus* 2005

10.11.1 Management Compensation Changes, Equity Form 8-K filed February 21, 2006
Grants and Approval of Payments under the
Millipore Incentive Plan*

10.11.2 Description of 2006 Metrics under the Millipore =~ Form 8-K filed February 21, 2006
Incentive Plan*

10.12.1 Master Patent License Agreement dated as of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
March 31, 2001 between Millipore and Mykrolis
Corporation

10.12.2 Master Patent Grantback License Agreement Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
dated as of March 31, 2001 between Millipore
and Mykrolis Corporation

10.12.3 Master Trade Secret and Know-How Agreement  Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
dated as of March 31, 2001 between Millipore
and Mykrolis Corporation

10.12.4 Tax Sharing Agreement dated as of March 31, Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
2001 between Millipore and Mykrolis
Corporation

10.13 Net Lease dated August 12, 2002 between Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
Millipore and Getronics Wang Co., LLC, with 2002
respect to the Company’s headquarters in
Billerica, Massachusetts

10.14 Officer Severance Agreement dated November Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
18, 2003 between Millipore and Francis J. 2003
Lunger

10.15.1 Credit Agreement dated as of December 15, Form 8-K filed December 20, 2005
2005 among Millipore and certain of its
subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A., and certain
other lenders and arrangers

10.15.2 Amendment No. 1 and Consent dated as of June  Form 8-K filed June 9, 2006
6, 2006 among Millipore and certain of its
subsidiaries, Bank of America, N.A., and certain
other lenders and arrangers

10.15.3 Amendment No. 2 dated as of July 13, 2006 Form 8-K filed July 18, 2006

among Millipore and certain of its subsidiaries,
Bank of America, N.A., and certain other lenders
and arrangers
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+  Millipore Corporation agrees to furnish supplementally to the Commission a copy of any omitted schedule
or exhibit to such agreement upon request by the Commission.
* A “management contract or compensatory plan”

B. The following exhibits are filed or furnished herewith:

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule
15d-14(a) (17 CFR 240.15d-14(a)), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule
15d-14(a) (17 CFR 240.15d-14(a)), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

Reg. S-K
Item 601(b)

Reference  Documents Filed Herewith
21 Subsidiaries of Millipore
(23)

24) Power of Attorney
(€29)

2002

2002

Documents Furnished Herewith
(32)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

MILLIPORE CORPORATION

Dated: February 28, 2007 By: /s/ KATHLEEN B. ALLEN

Kathleen B. Allen,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacity and on the dates indicated.

Signature % Date

/S/ MARTIN D. MADAUS Chairman of the Board of Directors, February 28, 2007

Martin D. Madaus President and Chief Executive
Officer
/s/  KATHLEEN B. ALLEN Vice President, Chief Financial Officer February 28, 2007
Kathleen B. Allen (Principal Financial Officer)

/S/  ANTHONY L. MATTACCHIONE Vice President, Corporate Controller February 28, 2007

Anthony L. Mattacchione and Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/  DANIEL BELLUS* Director February 28, 2007

Daniel Bellus

/s/  ROBERT C. BisHOP* Director February 28, 2007
Robert C. Bishop
/s/ MELVIN D. BooTH* Director February 28, 2007
Melvin D. Booth
/s/  ROLF CLASSON* Director February 28, 2007
Rolf Classon
/s/  MAUREEN A. HENDRICKS* Director February 28, 2007

Maureen A. Hendricks

/s/  MARK HOFFMAN®* Director February 28, 2007
Mark Hoffman

/s/  JoHN F. RENO* Director February 28, 2007
John F. Reno

/s/  EDWARD M. SCOLNICK* Director February 28, 2007

Edward M. Scolnick

/s/  KAREN E. WELKE* Director February 28, 2007
Karen E. Welke

*By: /s/ JEFFREY RUDIN

Jeffrey Rudin,
Attorney-in-Fact
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Safe Harbor Statement

The matters discussed herein, as well as in future oral and written statements by management of Millipore
Corporation that are forward-looking statements, are based on current management expectations that involve
substantial risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from the results
expressed in, or implied by, these forward-looking statements.

Potential risks and uncertainties that could affect Millipore’s future operating results include, without limitation,
the inability to successfully integrate Serologicals or other acquired businesses; failure to achieve design wins
into our pharmaceutical and biotechnology customers’ manufacturing design phase for a particular drug; delay,
suspension or termination of a customer’s volume production; lack of availability of raw materials or component
products on a timely basis; regulatory delay in the approval of new therapeutics; limitations on cash flow for
operations and investment due to increased debt service obligations; the inability to establish and maintain
necessary product and process quality levels, reduced demand for cell culture products using bovine serum; the
inability to realize the expected benefits of development, marketing, licensing and other alliances, competitive
factors such as new membrane or chromatography technology; the inability to achieve anticipated cost benefits
of our supply chain initiative; risks relating to our concentration of principal manufacturing operations; the
inability to utilize technology in current or planned products due to overriding rights by third parties; potential
environmental liabilities; conditions in the economy in general and in the bioscience and bioprocess markets in
particular; foreign exchange fluctuations; reduced private and government research funding; exposure to
product liability claims; and difficulties inherent in transferring or outsourcing of manufacturing operations.
Please refer to our filings with the SEC, including our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, for more
information on these and other risks that could cause actual results to differ.
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Millipore Corporation
Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Measures®
(dollars in thousands, except EPS data)

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2006

Gross
Gross Profit  Operating Operating Pre-tax Net Diluted
Profit Margin Income Margin Income Income EPS

GAAP results, twelve months ended
December 31,2006 .................. $629,763  50.2% $144,304 11.5%  $120,383 $ 96,984  $1.79
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Costs related to manufacturing

consolidation strategy ............ 23,181 1.8% 23,181 1.8% 23,181 15,131 0.28
Acquisition inventory fair value

amortization . ................... 24,870 2.0% 24,870 2.0% 24,870 15,963 0.29
Stock-based compensation expense . . . . 1,803 0.1% 12,200 1.0% 12,200 8,333 0.15
Acquisition integration and

restructuring eXpenses .. .......... 4,454 0.4% 15,930 1.3% 15,930 10,345 0.19
Purchased intangibles amortization . . . . 4,585 0.4% 15,906 1.2% 15,906 10,272 0.19
Environmental accrual .............. — — 2,100 0.2% 2,100 1,319 0.03

Bridge loan commitment fees in
connection with acquisition of

Serologicals .................... — — — — 1,310 895 0.02
Curtailment of retirement plan ....... — — 8,664 0.7% 8,664 5,696 0.10
Total non-GAAP adjustments . ....... 58,893 47% 102,851 8.2% 104,161 67,954 1.25

Non-GAAP results, twelve months ended

December 31,2006 .................. $688,656  54.9% $247,155 19.7%  $224,544 $164,938  $3.04

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2005

Gross
Gross Profit  Operating Operating  Pre-tax Net Diluted
Profit Margin Income Margin Income Income EPS

GAAP results, twelve months ended
December 31,2005 .................. $519,008  52.4% $140,778 142%  $137,533 $ 80,168 $ 1.55
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Costs related to manufacturing

consolidation strategy ............ 12,542 1.3% 12,542 1.3% 12,542 8,350 0.16
Acquisition inventory fair value

amortization .................... 2,172 0.2% 2,172 0.2% 2,172 1,446 0.03
Purchased intangibles amortization . . . . — — 4,333 0.4% 4,333 2,885 0.06
Costs related to divisional

consolidation ................... — — 3,673 0.4% 3,673 2,445 0.05
Executive termination costs . ......... — — 11,572 1.2% 11,572 7,704 0.15
Professional fees related to repatriation

of foreign earnings . .............. — — 1,066 0.1% 1,066 710 0.01
In-process R&D write-off ........... — — 3,149 0.3% 3,149 2,097 0.04
Income taxes on repatriation of foreign

CAMMINGS .o v v ettt — — — — — 30,634 0.59
Change in tax valuation allowance . ... — — — — — (3,177)  (0.06)
Total non-GAAP adjustments . ....... 14,714 1.5% 38,507 3.9% 38,507 53,094 1.03

Non-GAAP results, twelve months ended

December 31,2005 .................. $533,722  53.9% $179,285 18.1%  $176,040 $133,262 $ 2.58

(1) Non-GAAP adjustments include unusual or non-recurring items. We calculate and disclose these non-GAAP measures
because we believe that these non-GAAP measures may allow investors a better understanding of the underlying trends
in evaluating our results.
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Comparative Performance Graph

The graph below compares the five-year cumulative total return, including the reinvestment of all dividends,
starting from “100” on December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006 among Millipore, the S&P 500 Index and
the S&P 500 Healthcare Equipment & Supplies Index (including Millipore). It assumes $100 invested on
December 31, 2001 in each of the two indices and in Millipore.

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return

150
100
50
—&— MILLIPORE CORP
—F— S&P 500 INDEX
S&P 500 HEALTH CARE
EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES
0 T T T T T T

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

The information which forms the basis for the graph above has been provided by Standard & Poor’s
Compustat, a division of McGraw Hill.
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Management
Martin Madaus, Ph.D.
Chairman, President &

Chief Executive Officer

Kathleen Allen

Corporate VP & Chief Financial Officer

Dominique Baly
Corporate VP & President of
Bioscience Division

Bruce Bonnevier

Corporate VP, Global Human Resources

Dennis Harris, D.Phil.
VP & Chief Scientific Officer

Geoffrey Ide
VP, International Operations

Peter Kershaw

Corporate VP, Global Supply Chain

Jean-Paul Mangeolle
Corporate VP & President of
Bioprocess Division

Jeffrey Rudin
Corporate VP & General Counsel

Gregory Sam
Corporate VP, Corporate Quality

Charles Wagner
Corporate VP, Strategy &
Corporate Development

Board of Directors

Martin D. Madaus, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Board

Professor Dr. Daniel Bellus
University of Fribourg, Switzerland

Robert C. Bishop, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Board, Autolmmune Inc.

Melvin D. Booth
Retired President and Chief Operating
Officer, Medimmune, Inc

Rolf Classon
Chairman of the Board,
Hillenbrand Industries, Inc.

Maureen A. Hendricks
Former Managing Director,
Salomon Smith Barney, Inc.

Mark Hoffman
Independent Investor and Consultant

John F. Reno
Retired Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Dynatech Corp.

Edward M. Scolnick, M.D.
Senior Associate Member, Broad Institute,
MIT and Harvard University

Karen E. Welke
Retired Group Vice President,
Medical Markets, 3M Corporation

Corporate Headquarters

Millipore Corporation
290 Concord Road
Billerica, MA 01821-3405
T: 978-715-4321

F: 978-715-1380
www.millipore.com

Primary Manufacturing Sites

United States

Jaffrey, New Hampshire
Kankakee, lllinois
Temecula, California

International
Consett, England
Cork, Ireland
Molsheim, France
Livingston, Scotland

Registrar and Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Shareholder Services:

T: 800-937-5449

T: 718-921-8124

F: 718-236-2641

Investor Inquiries

Joshua Young

Director, Investor Relations

Millipore Corporation

290 Concord Road

Billerica, MA 01821

Tel: 978-715-1527

E-mail: Joshua_Young@millipore.com

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be
held on Friday, May 4, 2007 at 10:00 a.m.

at Millipore’s Corporate Headquarters,

290 Concord Road, Billerica,
Massachusetts.

© 2007 Millipore Corporation, All Rights Reserved.
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